XYIhiBERRTRE
EVRMKROBERLDT
SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG
BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED"

NEPTUNUS (a joint stock limited company incorporated

iy S in the People's Republic of China)
EE (Reh2E AR AFIBE M 2 B BRAR)

Stock Code BR#7%55 : 8329
* For identification purpose only {£ {38512 /A

20f8¢ﬁ

Annual Report /

<




CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-
sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from, or in reliance upon, the whole or any part
of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Shenzhen Neptunus
Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Dear shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Shenzhen Neptunus
Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Looking back to 2018, the macroeconomy of China maintained a steady
growth while the Chinese government furthered its effort in supply-
side structural reform and restructuring of industrial structure. The gross
domestic product grew approximately 6.6% and the overall condition is
better than expected. For the pharmaceutical industry, pharmaceutical
reform policies such as premium controls in medical insurance, lowering of
tender prices, control on proportion of drug cost and quality consistency
evaluation have been actively implemented, while the enhancing of
environmental requirements led to price increase in active ingredients. Under
the influence of such factors, there was increased pressure on the operation
of pharmaceutical manufacturing enterprises and their profit margin shrank
further. On the other hand, there are factors providing strong drive and
support for the robust development of the pharmaceutical industry such as
ageing population, increasing public health awareness, steady growth of
market demand, accelerated technological advancement, increasing stringent
regulatory environment for the pharmaceutical industry, full implementation
of the "Healthy China 2030" strategy and the government’s active
promotion of the development of Chinese medicines.

In 2018, the Group continuously strengthened and developed its
pharmaceutical business including Chinese herbal medicine, generic drugs,
transfusion and anti-tumor drugs, mitigating the impact of new national
medical policies on the market players. At the same time, the purchase and
sales of medicines and healthcare food products business also continued
to expand sales network and products in accordance with the industry
development and tried innovative marketing models to further expand its
business scale.
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Looking forward into 2019, it is expected that the steady economic growth
in China will continue. The State will continue to allocate more resources to
medical and healthcare, while the effect of implementing pharmaceutical
reform policies and measures such as premium controls in medical insurance,
lowering of tender prices, control on proportion of drug cost and quality
consistency evaluation will be more apparent. The policy of “procurement
with target quantity” launched at the end of 2018 is expected to change the
existing marketing models, reduce sale cost of pharmaceutical manufacturing
enterprises and lower drug prices significantly, which will bring new
challenges and opportunities for the pharmaceutical industry. The centralised
regulation of the quality of Chinese medicine decoction pieces will also
strengthen the regulation of Chinese medicine industry and regulate Chinese
medicine manufacturers.

The Board believes that the business of the Group is developing well
and is confident about the business prospects of the Group. The Group
will leverage on the opportunities and challenges in the pharmaceutical
and healthcare industry brought by national policies, as well as strive to
eliminate the impact of unfavourable conditions. Meanwhile, the Group will
proactively allocate more resources to the research and development of new
drugs, quality consistency evaluation for drug and product quality assurance
system, ensuring the sustainable and healthy development of the Group’s
pharmaceutical manufacturing and sales business.

On behalf of the Company and the Board, | would like to express my
heartfelt gratitude to all shareholders, business partners and staff for their
continuing support and trust in the Group.

Zhang Feng
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEESWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year”), the Group was
principally engaged in the research and development, manufacturing and
selling of medicines, and the purchase and sales of medicines and healthcare
food products in the PRC. The medicines being sold by the Group mainly
cover four therapeutic areas which are oncology, cardiovascular system,
respiratory system and digestive system.

Research and Development, Manufacturing and Selling of
Medicines

Currently, the Group manufactures its own medicines through its production
base (“Fuzhou Production Base”) located in Jin‘an District, Fuzhou, Fujian
Province, the PRC, including Chinese medicines (which includes more than
a dozen of dosage forms such as tablets, capsules, granules, oral solutions
and tinctures) and chemical medicines (which includes various dosage forms
namely tablets, capsules, granules, small volume injections, large volume
injections of glass bottle, plastic bottle and soft bag), with nearly 500
approval documents being registered. The Fuzhou Production Base is the
only narcotic production base in Fujian Province designated by the State and
also the only medicine production base for army reserves in Fujian Province
for the General Logistics Department of the Chinese People’s Liberation
Army.

Currently, the Group’s research and development work mainly fulfills
the internal development demands of the Group through conducting
independent research and development and cooperation with external
research and development institutions. Two pharmaceutical manufacturing
subsidiaries of the Group are recognized as high-tech enterprises in Fujian
Province and entitled to enjoy preferential corporate income tax treatment
for high-tech enterprises. The said subsidiaries currently possess various new
drugs and exclusive products with self-owned intellectual property rights,
including Tegafur, Gimeracil and Oteracil Potassium Tablets (the “TGOP
Tablets” or BE B, a new drug for anti-gastric cancer), Xiaozheng Yigan
Tablets CEAEZSATFA, an anti-liver-cancer drug), Proteoglycan Tablets (%
#ZEHFr, for enhancing the immune system), Biyuan Capsules (£4iB
%€, an anti-rhinitis medicine), Amaranth Berberine Capsules (H3{=EXE
%, a drug for acute diarrhea) and HTK Myocardial Protection Cardioplegic
Solution (HTK/UALER#E!EBEAR, a Class Il medical device). During the Year,
the relevant subsidiary of the Group was selected as one of the 2018 Fujian
Province Little Giant Leading Enterprises in Science and Technology and was
granted a special fund as an award of additional tax deduction on research
and development expenses. The applications for two invention patents of the
said subsidiary were also accepted during the Year.

SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED

EROER

HE-_Z-N\F+_A=+—BLEFE(XEF
B AEBTEETENFERNHTE  £E
KIHE  ARERRRBREOEE - NEEH
ENERTIERERE  LME RS FRES
FOBIER G AR BRI ©

HERWE - LEREE

BAl - AEENEEEMEBUNTEEEER
M BEZEOEES ([RMNEERE])ETE
B BRERKE(ERE - BEL - BRE - O
i~ BJEIS+RERER) B (ERE  BE
B BERE - NREIHE  KRETHEBR
PR Z (8B B ) 32 500 fERE ML SC - 12 )N
FEREMN  EEREREEHE —HEENMPRE
EEM  CREFZERTPEARBRELRY L
BEEE-—NBBEERNFEREIER -

BAT - AEBEETFEREE8 THEMEN
M ERE SN AR AEENA I ERT
Ko ARBETRAMRUEMNBRRAEESE
BATRMEE - IZXRARMERMEHES
I - LB AR B ATHER Z B EME A
BERBRER  WRSEHEETRA ([BF
BE ) AFEEEERR  ReE2EINZ
BEAR NAXAERINBE SMESRAZ
RHEEEZBEUARHTK O IR E PR (BR
“HBEFRSREM) S  NAFE - AEERAH
LB RRRERBER 2018 FERIN
EANRELE - ESAEWEER NG NGEE
BRES  WAMBAEAFENRFESTIE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Management Discussion and Analysis

Under the national policy in relation to quality consistency evaluation for
generic drugs promulgated in 2016, appropriate types of medicines were
proactively selected by a pharmaceutical manufacturing subsidiary of the
Group and the first batch of selected medicines were selected to undergo
the quality consistency evaluation for generic drugs in 2016. Currently, the
relevant work is under orderly progress and one of the selected medicines
has entered the relevant phase of examination and evaluation in the SFDA.

The sales of the Group’s new anti-cancer drug TGOP Tablets performed wvell
in 2017 and in the first quarter of 2018. However, as the supply of Tegafur,
one of the active ingredients of TGOP Tablets, was tight across China during
the Year, manufacturers of TGOP products (including capsules and tablets)
in China were affected to various extents. During the Year, the production
of TGOP Tablets by the relevant pharmaceutical manufacturing subsidiary
of the Group was also affected. Currently, though the Group has found
source of Tegafur supply, there are uncertainties about the reporting and
approval procedures and the continuous supply of Tegafur. The Group will
proactively push forward with the work and try to mitigate the impact on the
production and sales of TGOP Tablets brought by insufficient Tegafur supply
as soon as possible.

Under the impact of national policies, hospitals have restricted the use of
antibiotics and gradually eliminated outpatient transfusion. In addition,
there are more intensified drug tender competition and stricter inspections
of drug production and quality. As a result, there is further pressure on
the operation of pharmaceutical manufacturing enterprises. Meanwhile,
as the results of tendering process in certain regions were unsatisfactory in
2017 and relevant pharmaceutical manufacturing subsidiary of the Group
proactively implemented the “limiting production to guarantee quality”
measure, product sales of the sales and manufacturing business of the
Group decreased during the Year. In addition, the profit margin of the
sales and manufacturing business of the Group has further decreased due
to decrease in the selling price of the drugs, increase in the price of active
ingredients, higher quality requirement for drugs, increased investment in the
pharmaceutical enterprise drug quality assurance system and the increasing
expenses for drug re-registration and quality consistency evaluation. The
Group will proactively keep up with the national pharmaceutical policies and
policies in key areas such as Fujian Province, and make proper arrangements
for the next round of bidding and actively expand the product sales network,
in order to restrict and reverse the decrease in sales volume and endeavour
to strike a balance between the short-term results and the long-term
development of relevant pharmaceutical manufacturing subsidiaries.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SR EREI SN

The Pharmaceutical GMP Certificate of a production line for large volume
injections owned by a relevant pharmaceutical manufacturing subsidiary of
the Group was withdrawn in the middle of August 2017. Upon stringent
rectification, the relevant subsidiary of the Group has re-applied for the
pharmaceutical GMP certification and has re-obtained the Pharmaceutical
GMP Certificate during the Year upon meeting the pharmaceutical
GMP requirements upon site inspection. In addition, during the Year,
the Pharmaceutical GMP Certificates of relevant production lines of two
subsidiaries of the Group have expired. At present, all of the relevant
production lines have obtained new pharmaceutical GMP certificates
after re-certification. For details of the certification, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 27 June 2018 and 27 December
2018.

During the Year, a subsidiary of the Group received a Decision of
Administrative Penalty from Fuzhou Administration for Market Regulation
and was fined for RMB2.828 million. The Group has taken the incident very
seriously and urged all subsidiaries to take it as a warning, and to strictly
comply with the relevant laws, regulations and procurement procedures in
their respective operation to prevent occurrence of similar events. For details
of the incident, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 21
August 2018.

Purchase and Sales of Medicines and Healthcare Food
Products

Currently, the main products distributed by the Group are medicines and
healthcare food products, which include the well-known product series of
the Neptunus Ginkgo Leaves Tablets (8 E R ) and Neptunus Jinzun
(BE£M). In 2017, Neptunus® Yinkeluo® Ginkgo Leaves Tablets was
listed in the Rui Sub-List of China Pharmaceutical Brand List (4B %) %%,
[& 15 851%) sponsored by Menet (previously known as China Pharmaceutical
Economic Information Network).

During the Year, the purchase and sales of medicines and healthcare food
products business continued to grow. Among which, the sales volume
through large and medium-sized chain drugstores continued to grow due
to reasons such as the increase in demand in domestic pharmaceutical
retail and healthcare food products market, the increase in the number of
products and categories distributed by the Group, the adoption of a flexible
and diversified sales policy, and an in-depth optimization of the sales force
etc. Following the extensive promotion and in-depth implementation of “two
invoice system” (FIZ=#ll) and “one invoice system” (—Z2%l) in the PRC, the
business of selling drugs to ultimate medical institutions through professional
sales promotion companies has passed its adjustment and transformation
period and it is gradually recovering and taking on an increasing momentum.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In order to reduce the layers of intermediary within the distribution of
pharmaceutical products, the PRC government has actively implemented
“two invoice system” (RZEf]) throughout the country and “one invoice
system” (—ZEf)) in certain provinces. Due to the impact of such policies,
certain pharmaceutical products which were originally distributed through
the Group are now required, in some provinces, to be directly supplied
to hospitals or ultimate distributors by the pharmaceutical manufacturing
enterprises. To adapt to the new policy environment, the Group has
transformed relevant business into a pharmaceutical product sales
management service business based on the existing purchase and sales
business model and the needs of end-use consumers and manufacturing
enterprises.

Environmental, Social and Governance

The Group has been giving emphasis and taking actions in the aspects
of environment, society and governance, including: constantly improving
production efficiency, conserved resources and enhanced employees’
awareness of environmental protection. Regarding production, the output
corresponding to unit carbon emission increases, the pollution and the
emission of hazardous substance which are in violation of laws and
regulations are banned. Regarding office management, office supplies and
energy consumption are conserved. Also, the Group actively improved the
working environment and committed to social responsibility.

During the Year, the Company engaged a professional third party institution
to assist the Company in conducting the comprehensive communication
(from various dimensions) with stakeholders by way of face-to-face
communication, telephone interview, questionnaire and survey. The
relevant results are not only an important reference to which we review
and promote the sustainable development agenda of the Group, but also
provide a powerful basis for the material selection and preparation of our
environmental, social and governance report.

The environmental, social and governance report prepared by the Company
pursuant to Appendix 20 of the GEM Listing Rules will be published within
three months following the release of the Company’s annual report.

Event after Reporting Period

On 21 January 2019, the production lines for 15 dosage forms of a
subsidiary of the Company acquired the Pharmaceutical GMP Certificate
upon inspection and having complied with the requirements of Chinese
Good Manufacturing Practices for Pharmaceutical Products ((E&REEE =
EIRFRE)) after previous certificate expired. For details, please refer to the
announcement dated 23 January 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SR EREI SN

PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK

With the Chinese government continuously driving the reform of the
pharmaceutical industry, pharmaceutical enterprises will face more
stringent regulations. Although this may create short-term operating
pressures, the Group believes that a better regulated market will ultimately
bring opportunities to pharmaceutical enterprises in China and keep the
pharmaceutical industry grow in the long term. The Group believes that
the growth of the pharmaceutical industry in China is supported by a
combination of favourable factors, including the ageing population, the
overall two-child policy, Chinese government’s continual investment of
resources and funds in the pharmaceutical industry, and the rising income
level and better affordability of domestic consumers. Going forward,
the Group will leverage on the opportunities and challenges in the
pharmaceutical and healthcare industry brought by the national policies, as
well as strive to eliminate the impact of unfavourable conditions. Meanwhile,
the Group will also allocate more resources to the research and development
of new drugs, quality consistency evaluation for generic drug and product
quality assurance system, ensuring the sustainable and healthy development
of the Group’s pharmaceutical manufacturing and sales business.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group’s revenue for the Year was approximately RMB867,123,000
(2017: RMB790,286,000), representing an increase of approximately 9.72%
as compared with the corresponding period of last year. In relation to the
Group's revenue, approximately RMB433,453,000, which amounted to
approximately 49.99% of the Group’s total revenue, was derived from
the manufacturing and selling of medicines segment, while approximately
RMB433,670,000, which amounted to approximately 50.01% of the
Group's total revenue, was derived from the sales and distribution of
medicines and healthcare products segment. During the Year, the Group’s
revenue from the manufacturing and selling of medicines segment increased
by approximately 1.51% as compared with the corresponding period of
last year, while the revenue of the sales and distribution of medicines and
healthcare products segment increased by approximately 19.38%. Thereby
the total revenue of the Group resulted in an overall increase. A portion
of the Group’s revenue under the sales and distribution of medicines
and healthcare products derived from sales management services of
pharmaceutical products in the Year was approximately RMB15,857,000,
which amounted to approximately 3.66% of the revenue of the sales and
distribution of medicines and healthcare products segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Year, the Group’s gross profit margin was approximately 58%
(2017: approximately 54%), representing an increase of approximately 4
percentage points as compared with the corresponding period of last year.
The increase of gross profit margin was mainly attributable to the fact that
(i) the sales expenses borne by the manufacturing and selling of medicines
segment increased with the implementation of “two invoice system” (@3
ZH)) in pharmaceutical circulation across the country, which led to the
increase in prices for certain products, and such relevant impact on the sales
expenses and increase in prices of certain products has gradually increased
and emerged with the overall promotion and implementation of the “two
invoice system”(FIZ=l)); and (ii) due to the increase in market prices of
certain products, the manufacturing and selling of medicines segment raised
the prices of such products accordingly.

The Group’s gross profit during the Year was approximately
RMB502,215,000 (2017: RMB425,031,000), representing an increase of
approximately 18.16% as compared with the corresponding period of last
year. The increase was mainly attributable to the increase in the Group's total
revenue and gross profit margin.

During the Year, the Group's selling and distribution expenses were
approximately RMB349,026,000 (2017: RMB262,777,000), representing
an increase of approximately 32.82% from the corresponding period of
last year. The increase in selling and distribution expenses was mainly due
to (i) increase in the sales scale of sales and distribution of medicines and
healthcare products segment resulting in corresponding increase in sales
expenses; (i) the overall promotion and implementation of the “two invoice
system” (R ZEE) across the country which resulted in a significant increase in
the sales expenses as compared the corresponding period of last year.

The Group’s administrative expenses for the Year were approximately
RMB55,916,000 (2017: RMB51,523,000), representing an increase of
approximately 8.53% as compared with the corresponding period of last
year. The increase in administrative expenses was mainly due to the increase
in labour costs and rent expenses of the Group.

During the Year, the Group’s other operating expenses amounted to
approximately RMB41,220,000 (2017: RMB46,942,000), representing a
decrease of approximately 12.19% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year. The decrease in other operating expenses was mainly due
to decrease in provisions for obsolete inventory and inventory written off and
decrease in expensed research and development costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SR EREI SN

The Group’s finance costs for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB1,787,000 (2017: RMB3,229,000), representing a significant decrease
of approximately 44.66% as compared with the corresponding period of last
year. The decrease in finance costs was mainly due to the average principal
amount of bank loans of the Group during the Year decreased significantly
as compared with the corresponding period of last year, and finance costs
decreased accordingly.

Due to the above reasons, the Group's profit after tax decreased from
approximately RMB55,429,000 of the corresponding period of last year,
to approximately RMB51,064,000 of the Year, representing a decrease of
approximately 7.87%. Profit attributable to the owners of the Company
decreased from approximately RMB50,257,000 of the corresponding period
of last year, to approximately RMB48,089,000 of the Year, representing a
decrease of approximately 4.31%.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group usually finances its operating and investing activities with its
internal financial resources and bank loans. The Group’s transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi and the Group reviews its working capital
and finance requirements on a regular basis.

Banking Facilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no utilised banking facilities. Details
of banking facilities please refer to note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Shareholder’s Entrusted Loan

The Company obtained a shareholder’s entrusted loan of RMB9,000,000
from Shenzhen Neptunus Bio-engineering Co., Ltd. (“Neptunus Bio-
engineering”, a controlling shareholder of the Company) through an
entrusted arrangement with a bank. Neptunus Bio-engineering had
undertaken to the Company that it would not demand repayment of
the above-mentioned shareholder’'s entrusted loan unless and until: (1)
the repayment of such shareholder’s entrusted loan would not adversely
affect the operations of the Company and/or its business objectives as set
out in the prospectus published by the Company on 29 August 2005 (the
“Prospectus”); (2) each of the independent non-executive Directors was
of the opinion that the repayment of such shareholder’s entrusted loan
would not adversely affect the operations of the Company and/or the
implementation of its business objectives as set out in the Prospectus, and
the Company would make an announcement in respect of the decision
of the independent non-executive Directors made under (2); and (3) the
Company had a positive cash flow and had retained profits in the relevant
financial year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

NET CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had net current assets of approximately
RMB511,591,000. Current assets comprised cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB323,577,000, inventories of approximately
RMB113,138,000 and trade and other receivables of approximately
RMB242,983,000. Current liabilities comprised trade and other payables
of approximately RMB131,579,000, current tax of approximately
RMB13,749,000, contract liabilities of RMB13,378,000, entrusted loan of
RMB9,000,000 and deferred revenue of approximately RMB401,000. The
net current assets increased approximately by RMB40,928,000 as compared
with that of approximately RMB470,663,000 as at 31 December 2017. The
increase in net current assets as compared to that on 31 December 2017
was mainly due to the fact that (i) trade and other payables decreased
by approximately RMB45,370,000; (ii) interest-bearing bank borrowings
decreased by RMB30,000,000; and (iii) trade receivables and other
receivables increased by approximately RMB39,942,000.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the available utilised banking facilities of the
Group of RMB100,000,000 were secured by pledge of its buildings
and prepaid lease payments and the pledged buildings and prepaid
lease payments were stated at an aggregate value of approximately
RMB91,109,000.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

During the Year, the Group’s operating revenue, major selling costs and
capital expenditure were denominated in RMB. As at 31 December 2018,
the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were mainly denominated in RMB.
As such, the foreign currency risk facing the Group is limited. Currently, the
Group has not adopted any financial instrument for hedging purposes.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment revenue and segment results by business and region of the Group
for the Year are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SR EREI SN

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has contracted commitments for future
capital expenditure of approximately RMB3,356,000. The Board believes that
such capital expenditure can be financed by the Group’s bank deposits and
bank borrowings.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no significant contingent liability.

MAJOR INVESTMENT PLANS
During the Year, the Group did not make major investments.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed a total of 1,228 staff (2017:
1,231).

During the Year, the staff costs including directors’ remuneration which
amounted to approximately RMB83,377,000 (2017: approximately
RMB71,511,000). The salaries and fringe benefits of the Group’s employees
remained competitive. The employees’ incentives were reviewed and
determined annually pursuant to the remuneration and bonus policies of the
Group based on the performance of the employees. The Group also provided
various other benefits to its employees.

Compared with 31 December 2017, there was no significant movement in
the number of employees of the Group at the end of the Year.

The Group monitored closely the remuneration and fringe benefits of the
employees and rewarded employees in accordance with the Group’s business
performance. In addition, training and development opportunities for the
employees were also provided by the Group.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Profile

EX  EENGAEEEBE

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Feng (&%), aged 46, has been appointed as the chairman of
the Board and the compliance officer of the Company since June 2011. He
obtained a MBA degree from University of Technology, Sydney. Mr. Zhang
studied in Goteborg University, Sweden. He was a member of the 10th and
11th Jilin Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and the deputy chairman of the 10th and 11th session of Jilin
Youth Federation (F#& FFEEA ). He is a member of the 13th National
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a standing
committee member of the 12th Jilin Provincial Committee of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, the deputy chairman of the 12th session of
Jilin Youth Federation (5#M%& & FEiE ), the president of the 8th session
of council of Jilin Province Youth Entrepreneurs Association (FM%& &b
#R1E) and the deputy chairman of the 11th Jilin Federation of Industry
and Commerce (F#%& THf). Mr. Zhang was the general manager of
Shenzhen Neptunus Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Neptunus
Tongai Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Company Ltd., the deputy general
manager and the chief marketing officer of Neptunus Bio-engineering. He
is currently the deputy chairman of the 7th session of the board of directors
of Neptunus Bio-engineering, the controlling shareholder of the Company
which directly and indirectly holds 73.51% of the entire issued share
capital of the Company, a director of Shenzhen Neptunus Group Company
Limited, Shenzhen Quanyaowang Technology Company Limited (ZJITHZ
BRRI AR ARESE), Ascendent Bio-Technology Company Limited and
Fuzhou Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese Pharmaceutical Company Limited, the
executive director and legal representative of Shenzhen Neptunus Changjian
Pharmaceutical Company Limited, the chairman of the board of directors
and the legal representative of Shenzhen Neptunus Pharmaceutical Company
Limited and Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical Company Limited.

Mr. Xu Yan He (#27%F1), aged 61, has been appointed as an executive
Director since June 2011. On 3 March 2016, he was appointed as the
general manager and authorised representative of the Company. Mr. Xu
graduated from Zhejiang Engineering College, the PRC, with a bachelor’s
degree in 1982, and has nearly 30 years of experience in pharmaceutical
manufacturing industry in China. He was a member of the 11th and 12th
Fujian Provincial People’s Congress. He is a member of the 13th Fujian
Provincial People’s Congress, the standing deputy president of Fujian
Pharmaceutical Profession Association ({RiZ% EEIT3E), the deputy
president of Fujian Pharmaceutical Association (f8iE& %42 &) and Fujian
Medical Insurance Association (fBE22& EEMRMIHE). Mr. Xu is a director
of Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical Company Limited and Fuzhou
Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., the executive director,
general manager and legal representative of Fuzhou Fuyao Medical Co.,
Ltd., the chairman of the board of directors, general manager and the legal
representative of Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical (Lianjiang) Comapany
Limited and Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese Pharmaceutical (Lianjiang) Company
Limited. Mr. Xu has received a number of recognition, including Outstanding
Entrepreneur in Fujian and Outstanding Pharmacist in China.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Profile

4% BELAAERERE

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun (2I5 %), aged 60, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director since June 2011. Mr. Liu graduated from Nankai University, the
PRC in 1997, with a doctoral degree in Economics and a postdoctoral
degree in Management. As a professor, he is a renowned expert in
corporate management and development strategies. Mr. Liu was the
assistant to the secretary and head of Research and Consulting Department
of China Development Institute in Shenzhen, China (474 B3 9B (T
Ble%YI), and the independent director of Neptunus Bio-engineering.
He led and participated in a number of national key research projects and
corporate consulting programmes. Mr. Liu has extensive experience in
corporate management and capital operation. He is currently a director of
the 7th session of the board of directors and president of Neptunus Bio-
engineering, a director of Shenzhen Neptunus Pharmaceutical Technology
Research Company Limited (YIS T B BRI ZEFL AR A 7)), Ascendent
Bio-Technology Company Limited, Fuzhou Neptunus lJinxiang Chinese
Pharmaceutical Company Limited, Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical (Lianjiang)
Comapany Limited and Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese Pharmaceutical (Lianjiang)
Company Limited.

Ms. Yu Lin (F#F), aged 61, has been appointed as a non-executive Director
since February 2005. Ms. Yu graduated from Sun Yat-Sen University of
the PRC, and has more than 30 years of experience in biochemical and
pharmaceutical industries in the PRC. Ms. Yu was the director and vice-
president of Neptunus Bio-engineering and was responsible for the research
and development of new products. Currently, she is the legal representative
and the chairman of the board of directors of Shenzhen Neptunus
Pharmaceutical Technology Research Company Limited (F3I[/& T B8 2581
7ebi AR A A]) and a director of Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical
Comapany Limited and Fuzhou Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese Pharmaceutical
Company Limited.

Mr. Song Ting Jiu ((R¥EA), aged 63, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director since January 2014. Mr. Song graduated from Northeast Dianli
University in 1982. Mr. Song was engaged in the macroscopic and strategic
research regarding energy and the State’s economic development at the
Energy Research Institute under Chinese Academy of Sciences and was
granted the First Class Award of the State Scientific and Technological
Progress Award during such period. Since 1985, he has been engaged in
financial management and was appointed the positions of office supervisor,
deputy head and head at the Branch and Sub-branch of the Bank of China
in Shenzhen Municipality. Since 2002, he started taking tasks regarding
enterprise management and was the deputy general manager at Guangdong
Heng Feng Investment Company Limited (EREZEEHRE A F]), deputy
general manager at Shenzhen Heng Feng Real Property Company (#JIIE
LEHlE /A F)), managing deputy general manager at Heng Feng Hai Yue
Hotel (IBZ)81%/B/5), general manager of Jiangsu Neptunus Health Food
Company Limited, vice-president of Neptunus Bio-engineering, and the
deputy general manager of the Company.
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Mr. Zhao Wen Liang (#3X2), aged 43, was appointed as an executive
Director on 3 March 2016. He was re-designated to non-executive Director
on 6 June 2016. Mr. Zhao graduated from Harbin Normal University and
has been engaged in the sales management of pharmaceutical products.
He joined Neptunus Bio-engineering since 1998 and previously served as
regional sales manager as well as other positions. Mr. Zhao joined the Group
in January 2013 and was the general manager of Shenzhen Neptunus
Changjian Pharmaceutical Company Limited. He is currently a director of
Shenzhen Quanyaowang Technology Company Limited (&I 2 28R A
FR 2 7)) and Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical Comapany Limited, and
an executive director and legal representative of Shenzhen Quanyaowang
Medical Company Limited (RYIT2EEAHELZEBR/AR]) and Shenzhen
Quanyaowang Pharmaceutical Company Limited (R 2 BEEEEZEBR A
7l). He has over 10 years of experience in the marketing management of
pharmaceutical products.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon (£7k#), aged 61, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since August 2005. Mr. Yick holds a
bachelor’s degree in business administration, majoring in accounting, from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of both the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants in England. Mr. Yick has more than
30 years of experience in auditing, direct investment, investment banking
and corporate advisory services. In addition, Mr. Yick is an independent
non-executive director and chairman of the audit committee of Shanghai
International Shanghai Growth Investment Limited and China Singyes Solar
Technologies Holdings Limited (the shares of these two companies are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange), an independent non-executive
director, the convener of the nomination committee and a member of the
strategy committee of Chengdu Xinrong Environment Co., Ltd. (the shares
of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange), and an independent
non-executive director, the chairman of the remuneration and nomination
committee and a member of the audit and compliance committee of Nexteer
Automotive Group Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange).
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Profile

4% BELAAERERE

Mr. Poon Ka Yeung (%32F%), aged 52, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since August 2005. Mr. Poon
obtained his bachelor’s degree in mathematics with minor in economics
and marketing from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1989 and
was further admitted to the MBA degree by the University of Hull, United
Kingdom, in 1996. Mr. Poon has been appointed as an Honorary Institute
Fellow of the Asia-Pacific Institute of Business of the Chinese University
of Hong Kong since April 2002. He has been teaching marketing-related
subjects for the master’s degree in science program, MBA program and
Global Executive MBA program (OneMBA) of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Since June 2008, he has been appointed as visiting Adjunct Associate
Professor in the Department of Marketing of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. In addition, Mr. Poon has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Great Eagle Holdings Limited (the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) since March 2016.

Mr. Zhang lian Zhou (E#If}), aged 49, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 21 January 2016. Mr. Zhang
graduated from China Youth University of Political Studies with a B.A. degree
in 1990, from Beijing Foreign Studies University with a LL.B degree in 1992,
and from Boston University with a LL.M degree in 2002. He had been an
assistant professor of International Trade Law at Guangdong University of
Technology from 1992 to 1993. Mr. Zhang has been in private practice since
1993 when he was qualified to practice law in the PRC. He is now a partner
of Beijing Anjie (Shenzhen) Law Firm, an arbitrator of the International
Arbitration Tribunal of Shenzhen and the International Arbitration Tribunal of
Hainan Province.

Supervisors

Mr. Xiong Chu Xiong (B&Z##8E), aged 63, has been appointed as a supervisor
of the Company since June 2008. Mr. Xiong obtained a doctorate degree in
accountancy from Xiamen University in 1992. Mr. Xiong was appointed as
an independent director of Neptunus Bio-engineering up to August 2007.
Mr. Xiong is currently an accounting professor of Shenzhen University. Mr.
Xiong is also the independent director of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd. (ZWA &
MDA AT (stock code: 000014), China National Accord Medicines
Corporation Ltd. (BIZEEE—HEXRHABRAF) (stock code: 000028),
Shenzhen Wongtee International Enterprise Co., Ltd. (RYIIT 2EBE 2
BB AT (stock code: 000056) and Shenzhen Laibao Hi-Tech Co., Ltd.
CRYIZEE SR AR A 7)) (stock code: 002106). The Shares of these four
companies are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Profile

Mr. Wang Bin (E£#), aged 58, has been appointed as a supervisor of the
Company since June 2011. Mr. Wang graduated from Precision Instrument
Department of Harbin Institute of Technology, the PRC, with a master’s
degree in 1986. He was a teacher in Precision Instrument Department of
Harbin Institute of Technology, the deputy general manager of Shenzhen
Jingshan Group Joint-stock Company Limited (3R ILEBRDERQF),
the chief human resources officer of Shenzhen Neptunus Group Company
Limited (between 1997 and 2000) and the deputy dean of Harbin Institute of
Technology Shenzhen Graduate School.

Ms. Li Ting (Z1&), aged 37, has been appointed as an employee
representative supervisor of the Company since 30 December 2016. Ms. Li
obtained a bachelor’'s degree of science from Guangdong Pharmaceutical
University in 2004 and a master degree of commerce (advanced) from
the University of Queensland, Australia in 2008 with major in professional
accounting. Ms. Li joined the Company in September 2009 and previously
served as a general ledger accountant, accounting supervisor, assistant
to Board secretary (financial controller) as well as other positions. Since
February 2016, she has been serving as the director of the Board office of
the Company. And she started to hold a concurrent post as the deputy
director of compliance in the risk control and compliance department of
the Company since July 2017. Ms. Li possesses China securities practice
qualification and China intermediate accounting certification. She has rich
experience in finance, accounting and listed company governance. Ms. Li
resigned as the employee representative supervisor of the Company on 18
May 2018.

Ms. Cao Yang (BF%), aged 28, has been appointed as an employee
representative supervisor of the Company since 18 May 2018. Ms. Cao
is also currently the senior human resources manager of the integrated
management department of the Company, who is in charge of human
resource work of Shenzhen Neptunus Changjian Pharmaceutical Company
Limited (“Neptunus Changjian”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Ms. Cao also accepted the appointment of the Company to serve
as the head of the human resource department of Neptunus Changjian.
Ms. Cao possesses Cambridge Diploma in Business Administration. She
joined the Group in July 2013 and previously served as specialist, supervisor,
deputy manager and manager of the human resource department of
Neptunus Changjian. Ms. Cao has rich experience in enterprise human
resources planning, organization structure optimization, compensation
system construction, performance appraisal management, talent assessment,
recruitment, training, and labor cost control.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Profile

4% BELAAERERE

Senior Management

Ms. Lee Mei Yi (Z=2{%), aged 51, has been appointed as a joint company
secretary of the Company since 1 December 2008. Ms. Lee is an executive
director of Corporate Services Department of Tricor Services Limited
and a fellow member of both the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Ms.
Lee has over 20 years of experience in the corporate secretarial area.

Ms. Mu Ling Xia (F/% &), aged 48, has been appointed as the joint company
secretary, the Board secretary, the financial controller and the authorized
representative of the Company since April 2016, and vice general manager
of the Company since 25 June 2017. Ms. Mu graduated from Xi’an Jiaotong
University majoring in applied economics and obtained a master degree
in economics. Ms. Mu is a qualified board secretary of listed companies as
recognised by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and a qualified professional
accountant in China. She also has China securities practice qualification and
is a affiliate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
Ms. Mu previously served as the board secretary of Shenzhen Overglobe
Development Company Limited (FITHEERBRHER AR, the
director of the board office of Neptunus Bio-engineering, the securities
affairs representative authorised by the board of directors of Neptunus Bio-
engineering as well as other positions. Ms. Mu has been working on areas
such as listed company securities, financing and management for nearly
20 years and she possesses rich working experience in listed company
governance, capital operations, information disclosure, investor relations
management, investment and financing.
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Report of the Directors

The Board is pleased to present the report of Directors and the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Principal Activities

During the Year, the Group was principally engaged in the research and
development, production and sales of medicines, the purchase and sales of
medicines and healthcare food products.

Business Review

Details of business review during the Year are set out on pages 6 to 10 of
this annual report.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the published consolidated results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last two financial years ended 31 December 2018, and the
published consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the
Year is set out on pages 56 to 170.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the distribution of any dividends for the
Year (2017: Nil).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
and the Company during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Capital

There has been no movement for the Company’s share capital during the
Year, details of which are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and Company during the
Year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2018, the Company had no distributable reserves, while its
accumulated loss, calculated in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association and relevant rules and regulations, amounted to approximately
RMB98,440,000.
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Capitalized Interest
The Group has no capitalized interest during the Year.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or the laws of the PRC which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Sales Or Redemption of the Listed Shares
of the Company

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the
Company'’s listed shares during the Year. The Company and its subsidiaries
did not redeem, purchase or cancel any of their redeemable securities either.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for
approximately 8.27% of the total sales for the Year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 2.27% of the
total sales for the Year. Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 47.50% of the total purchases for the Year
and purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 30.72% of the total purchases for the Year.

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors, the supervisors of
the Company or any of their associates or any shareholders (who, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Company’s five largest
customers and suppliers.

Directors and Supervisors

The Directors and supervisors of the Company during the Year and up to the
date of this report, and their terms of employment were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Feng 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2017

3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June

2017

Mr. Xu Yan He
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Non-executive Directors
Mr. Liu Zhan Jun 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2017

3 years from her re-appointment on 25 June
2017

3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2017

3 years from hi
2017

Ms. Yu Lin
Mr. Song Ting Jiu

Mr. Zhao Wen Liang

[

re-appointment on 25 June

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon 3 years from hi

[

re-appointment on 25 June

2017

Mr. Poon Ka Yeung 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2017

Mr. Zhang Jian Zhou 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2017

Supervisors

Mr. Xiong Chu Xiong 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June

2017

Mr. Wang Bin 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2017

Ms. Li Ting Re-appointment on 25 June 2017, resigned
on 18 May 2018

Ms. Cao Yang From her appointment on 18 May 2018 to 24

June 2020

The Company confirms that as at the date of this report, it has received
annual confirmations of independence from Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon,
Mr. Poon Ka Yeung and Mr. Zhang Jian Zhou. The Company still considers
the three independent non-executive Directors during the Year to be
independent pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Service Contracts of Directors and Supervisors

Each of the Directors and supervisors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company with a term up to 24 June 2020 and is
subject to termination by either party giving not less than three months’ prior
written notice to the other.

None of the Directors or supervisors of the Company has entered into
any service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.
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Directors’ and Supervisors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration is subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Company. Details of the remuneration of
the Directors are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

According to the service contracts entered into between the Company
and its supervisors, (i) the Company shall pay Mr. Xiong Chu Xiong the
remuneration of RMB30,000 per annum for his service as a supervisor; (ii)
the Company shall pay Mr. Wang Bin the remuneration of RMB30,000
per annum for his service as a supervisor; and (i) Ms. Cao Yang, the
employee representative supervisor, is entitled to a supervisor’s allowance of
RMB20,000 per annum for her service as a supervisor.

Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees and their remuneration are set out in note
11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ and Supervisors' Interests in Contracts

Save for the service contracts of the Directors and supervisors of the
Company as disclosed above, there were no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to which the Company or its controlling shareholder
was a party and in which a Director or supervisor of the Company had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the Year
or at any time during the Year.

Share Option Scheme, Convertible Securities and
Warrants
Up to 31 December 2018, the Company and its subsidiaries have not

adopted any share option scheme and have not granted any option,
convertible securities, warrants or other similar rights.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

At no time during the Year and up to the date of this report, there was or is,
any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of the
Directors of the Company or an associate company.

During the Year, a Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Liability
Insurance is in place to provide appropriate cover for the directors,
supervisors and senior management of the Group. However, such insurance
coverage shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attach to such director, supervisor and senior management.
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors,
Supervisors and Chief Executives in the Listed

Securities

As far as the Directors or supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31
December 2018, the interests and short position of the Directors, supervisors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be and were recorded
in the register to be kept by the Company, or were required, pursuant
to Rule 5.46 to Rule 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Company:

Report of the Directors
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Mr. Song Ting Jiu (Note (a)) Beneficial owner Personal 1,521,500 0.12% 0.09%
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Long positions in shares of associated corporations of the Company:

RARBEEOEE RN 2R

Approximate
percentage of
associated

Number of corporation’s

Name of shares in issued

associated associated share capital

Type of corporation corporation {hAEE LS

Director/Chief Executive Capacity interests pis)c BEEELE ERITREAZ

B BETBRAE 514 ERER EEER ZBRHHE BYESL

Mr. Zhang Feng (Note (a)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 1,331,093 0.05%
Re§ & (M5 (@) EnEAA f@A  Bio-engineering
BEEY)

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun (Note (b)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 8,883,793 0.34%
Bl 5E LA (H15E b)) E=EAA 8 A  Bio-engineering
BEEY)

Ms. Yu Lin (Note (c)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 1,850,000 0.07%
Tzt (i () EnEAA f@A  Bio-engineering
BEEY)

Mr. Song Ting Jiu (Note (d)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 1,516,200 0.06%
RIEA Se 4 (M7 (@) EmEAA 8 A  Bio-engineering
BEEY

Mr. Zhao Wen Liang (Note (e)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 700,000 0.03%
SR E (B15E () BB A f@A  Bio-engineering
BEEY)

Ms. Mu Ling Xia (Note (f)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 656,000 0.02%
RIEBLL (K1) BEalEE A fEA  Bio-engineering

BEEY
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Notes:

(@  Mr. Zhang Feng, chairman of the Board of the Company and deputy chairman of
the board of directors of Neptunus Bio-engineering, was beneficially interested
in approximately 0.05% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus Bio-
engineering, the Company’s controlling shareholder, which in turn held directly
and indirectly the beneficial interest in approximately 73.51% of the entire issued
share capital of the Company, of which 70.38% was directly held and 3.13%
was indirectly held through Shenzhen Neptunus Oriental Investment Company
Limited (“Neptunus Oriental”).

(b)  Mr. Liu Zhan Jun, non-executive Director of the Company and director
and president of Neptunus Bio-engineering, was beneficially interested in
approximately 0.34% of the entire issued capital of Neptunus Bio-engineering,
the Company'’s controlling shareholder, which in turn held directly and indirectly
the beneficial interest in approximately 73.51% of the entire issued share capital
of the Company, of which 70.38% was directly held and 3.13% was indirectly
held through Neptunus Oriental.

(€0 Ms. Yu Lin, non-executive Director of the Company, was beneficially interested
in approximately 0.07% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus Bio-
engineering, the Company’s controlling shareholder, which in turn held directly
and indirectly the beneficial interest in approximately 73.51% of the entire issued
share capital of the Company, of which 70.38% was directly held and 3.13%
was indirectly held through Neptunus Oriental.

(d) Mr. Song Ting lJiu, non-executive Director of the Company, was beneficially
interested in approximately 0.06% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus
Bio-engineering, the Company’s controlling shareholder, which in turn held
directly and indirectly the beneficial interest in approximately 73.51% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company, of which 70.38% was directly held
and 3.13% was indirectly held through Neptunus Oriental.

(e)  Mr. Zhao Wen Liang, non-executive Director of the Company, was beneficially
interested in approximately 0.03% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus
Bio-engineering, the Company’s controlling shareholder, which in turn held
directly and indirectly the beneficial interest in approximately 73.51% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company, of which 70.38% was directly held
and 3.13% was indirectly held through Neptunus Oriental.

() Ms. Mu Ling Xia, vice general manager of the Company, was beneficially
interested in approximately 0.02% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus
Bio-engineering, the Company’s controlling shareholder, which in turn held
directly and indirectly the beneficial interest in approximately 73.51% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company of which 70.38% was directly held
and 3.13% was indirectly held through Neptunus Oriental.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors,
supervisors or chief executives of the Company nor their respective associates
held any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, or were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be and were recorded in the
register to be kept by the Company, or were required, pursuant to Rule 5.46
to Rule 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares

So far as the Directors and supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31
December 2018, the interests and/or short positions held by shareholders
(not being a Director, a supervisor or a chief executive of the Company) in
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO or had otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Company:

FERRN RGO K AARBERKR G K EDS

BARARESRESZMM  RZZ—\F+=A
=t+—H RR(WEFEARAFEF  EFELES
THAB)IRIBEFES R HAEIEAE 336 1KBH A
N AMETF 2 B MR s A AR BIAR 9D Sk AE RE AR
e LA E A 5 AN AR R Rl R Tk ss &k
BT

RARBIBRMD 2R

Approximate

Approximate

percentage of

Number of percentage of the Company’s
domestic all the issued
shares held domestic shares share capital
BAE =) EARRE
Substantial Shareholder Capacity RER RERKN EETRAEAN
FERR 514 RS EE BHEDL A ERY
Neptunus Bio-engineering (Note (a)) Beneficial owner 1,181,000,000 94.33% 70.38%
BEEY (B @) EmfEAA
Interest in controlled 52,464,500 4.19% 3.13%
corporation
R thEEER
Shenzhen Neptunus Group Company Interest in controlled 1,233,464,500 98.52% 73.51%
Limited (“Neptunus Group”) (Note (b)) corporation
BT EEROERAR SR EE S
(DBESE D #E®)
Shenzhen Neptunus Holding Group Interest in controlled 1,233,464,500 98.52% 73.51%
Company Limited (“Neptunus Holding”) corporation
(Previously known as “Shenzhen AR A E R
Yinhetong Investment Company
Limited”) (Note (c))
wRYEEEREEER AT
(DEEER D) (RiRE DRYITH IR
REBRAR D) (HE()
Mr. Zhang Si Min (Note (d)) Interest in controlled 1,233,464,500 98.52% 73.51%
RERSCE (M () corporation
PR E R
Ms. Wang Jin Song (Note (e)) Interest of spouse 1,233,464,500 98.52% 73.51%

ISR L (K e) [
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

Neptunus Bio-engineering was deemed to be interested in the 52,464,500
domestic shares of the Company held by Neptunus Oriental as the entire
issued share capital of Neptunus Oriental was beneficially owned by Neptunus
Bio-engineering. Neptunus Bio-engineering was also directly interested in
1,181,000,000 domestic shares of the Company. Therefore, Neptunus Bio-
engineering was directly and indirectly interested in 1,233,464,500 domestic
shares of the Company.

Neptunus Group was deemed to be interested in the 1,233,464,500 domestic
shares of the Company, which relate to the same parcel of shares referred to
in note (a) above, held by Neptunus Bio-engineering as Neptunus Group was
beneficially interested in approximately 45.96% of the entire issued share capital
of Neptunus Bio-engineering.

Neptunus Holding was deemed to be interested in 1,233,464,500 domestic
shares of the Company, which relate to the same parcel of shares referred to
in note (a) above, held by Neptunus Bio-engineering as Neptunus Holding was
beneficially interested in approximately 59.68% of the entire issued share capital
of Neptunus Group, which in turn was beneficially interested in approximately
45.96% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus Bio-engineering.

Mr. Zhang Si Min (“Mr. Zhang”) was deemed to be interested in 1,233,464,500
domestic shares of the Company, which relate to the same parcel of shares
referred to in note (a) above, held by Neptunus Bio-engineering as Mr. Zhang
was beneficially interested in 70% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus
Holding and the entire issued share capital of Shenzhen Haihe Investment
and Development Company Limited (“Haihe”), which in turn was beneficially
interested in approximately 59.68% and 20% of the entire issued share capital
of Neptunus Group respectively. Neptunus Group was beneficially interested
in approximately 45.96% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus Bio-
engineering.

Ms. Wang Jin Song (“Ms. Wang”) was deemed to be interested in
1,233,464,500 domestic shares of the Company, which relate to the same parcel
of shares referred to in note (a) above, held by Neptunus Bio-engineering as Ms.
Wang is the spouse of Mr. Zhang and was taken to be beneficially interested in
any shares held by Mr. Zhang.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and supervisors of the Company are
not aware of any other persons (except the Directors, supervisors or chief
executives of the Company) who held any interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO as at 31
December 2018.

RYTBEEFREDRMBROBIRDR  2018FF5H 29

Report of the Directors

Hyat

(a) AREBTIEVEXRHEEBEIRT2IPE BT
fE AR 100% M #Ezm METERFEE AR A
52,464,500 RN E R M VR - B8 T EWH
RAEBEAHESTRAHFERNANAR 52,464,500 %
RERMHER - ARSI ENEREFELARQR
1,181,000,000 RN & R W #Ex= - EIL)E T £
VIR B E S R EEEA A RE1,233,464,500
f& A& 1 s o

(b) HARETEEERIHABTEMEBEHITRA
4945.96% Mtz - AT T SEWR BERH
BT EYFARNARRN,233,464,500 % A E i
DERERS - B E P RE (a) ATt A — £ AR5 48R -

(0 HARNESTIEREXUASTIEER2IDHITR
A#)59.68% MR MEBTEEERBEEST
EYERIEHEITRALNL5.96% LS - H itk
BIEREEAEEERETEMBENEARR
1,233,464,500 R A B XD A - B F X
(a) ATt [ — AR 1D #ERE -

(d) BERERBEREE(RELEDEXZHBBTER
EHEBITRATON MEXRFYTELAELE
BREBRAR(EE]) 2PEEITRA100%
Wiz MEBEITERRKEEDFEZHERFELE
B 2B 3T A #959.68% M 20% A # 25 -
METEEEREABTEYER B HITRAL
45.96% Wiz - B RAEEREABEEHREE
4 YA R AT 1,233,464,500 % A& LD BY
HERS - B SCHRE () BTt A — SRR (5 48R o

(&) HRIESIMLE(TELL]) BREEZERE AT
VAR B B R SR Z IR0 R B 2
s ARETRIERABREREEEYNFE
HI AR R)1,233,464,500 8 A E D A= - B
ESCHEE (a) ATt B — SRR (D 4E R -

BREXFBEEEN BE_ZT-—/\F+ZA
=t—HB  ARAEFRESHIANTAETE
AL (ARRESE EEREHTRABRIN)
RARRZBOSBEBRD T - BEREESFR
HIE P15 336 (RZAm AR RIEF 2 B M AT
B RERRORR -



Report of the Directors
FRGHE

Continuing Connected Transactions
Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from Independent

Shareholders’ Approval Requirements

The continuing connected transactions of the Group exempt from
independent shareholders’ approval requirements during the Year are set out
below:

Neptunus Group Sales Framework Agreement

On 30 June 2017, the Company and Neptunus Group (a controlling
shareholder of the Company and therefore a connected person of the
Company) entered into the Neptunus Group Sales Framework Agreement,
pursuant to which the Group agreed to sell certain self-manufactured
or distributed products, including certain pharmaceutical products and
healthcare food products, to the Neptunus Group for the period from 30
June 2017 to 31 December 2019. The annual caps of such transactions for
the period from 30 June 2017 to 31 December 2017 and for the year of
2018 and 2019 would not exceed RMB22,000,000, RMB27,000,000 and
RMB34,000,000 respectively. For details of the transaction, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 30 June 2017.

During the Year, the Group has sold products of approximately
RMB22,557,000 in total to the Neptunus Group, which did not exceed the
annual cap of the above agreement.

Sales Management Service Framework Agreement

On 1 September 2017, Neptunus Changjian and Neptunus Pharmaceutical
(@ wholly-owned subsidiary of Neptunus Group and therefore a fellow
subsidiary and a connected person of the Company) entered into a sales
management service framework agreement for pharmaceutical products
(the “Sales Management Service Framework Agreement”), pursuant to
which Neptunus Changjian agreed to provide sales management service of
pharmaceutical products to Neptunus Pharmaceutical for the period from 1
September 2017 to 31 December 2018. The annual caps of such transactions
for the period from 1 September 2017 to 31 December 2017 and the year of
2018 would not exceed RMB14,000,000 and RMB25,000,000 respectively.
For details of the agreement, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 1 September 2017.

During the Year, Neptunus Changjian has provided sales management
service of pharmaceutical products of approximately RMB15,857,000 in total
to Neptunus Pharmaceutical, which did not exceed the annual cap of the
above agreement.
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Having considered the above, the Directors (including non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) are of the opinion
that the Neptunus Group Sales Framework Agreement and the Sales
Management Service Framework Agreement (1) were entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (2) are on normal
commercial terms and on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has issued a letter to the Board confirming that
the above continuing connected transactions:

(i) have received the approval of the Board;

(i) were, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group if the transactions involve the provision of goods or services
by the Group;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and

(iv)  did not exceed the respective annual caps.

Continuing Connected Transaction Not Exempt from Independent
Shareholders’ Approval Requirements

The continuing connected transaction of the Group not exempt from
independent shareholders’ approval requirements within the Year are set out
below:

Neptunus Pharmaceutical Distribution Agreement

On 10 December 2015, Neptunus Changjian entered into a distribution
agreement (the “Neptunus Pharmaceutical Distribution Agreement”)
with Neptunus Pharmaceutical (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Neptunus
Group and therefore a fellow subsidiary and a connected person of the
Company), pursuant to which Neptunus Changjian will purchase various
pharmaceutical products manufactured by Neptunus Pharmaceutical and
distribute such products within the PRC for the period from 1 January 2016
to 31 December 2018. The Neptunus Pharmaceutical Distribution Agreement
became effective on 4 March 2016, upon the approval by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held
on the very date. On 11 October 2016, the same parties entered into a
supplementary agreement (the “Supplementary Agreement”), pursuant to
which, upon the approval of independent shareholders of the Company
at the extraordinary general meeting held on 23 December 2016, the
annual caps under the Neptunus Pharmaceutical Distribution Agreement
for the period from 4 March 2016 to 31 December 2016 and for the year
2017 and 2018, were revised to RMB91,100,000, RMB114,000,000 and
RMB143,500,000 respectively. For details of the transaction, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 10 December 2015, 4 March
2016, 11 October 2016 and 23 December 2016.
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During the Year, Neptunus Changjian has purchased pharmaceutical
products of approximately RMB86,396,000 from Neptunus Pharmaceutical,
which did not exceed the annual cap of the above agreement.

Healthcare Food and Food Purchase Framework Agreement

On 17 October 2017, the Company and Neptunus Group (the controlling
shareholder and a connected person of the Company) entered into a
purchase framework agreement (the “Healthcare Food and Food Purchase
Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase
certain food and healthcare food products from Neptunus Group and its
subsidiaries (excluding the Group) (the “Intermediate Parent Group”) for
distribution in the PRC for the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2020. The Healthcare Food and Food Purchase Framework Agreement
became effective on 1 January 2018 upon the approval by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on
15 December 2017. The annual caps of such transactions for the year of
2018, 2019 and 2020 would not exceed RMB28,000,000, RMB36,000,000
and RMB47,000,000 respectively. For details of the transactions, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 17 October 2017 and 15
December 2017.

During the Year, the Group has purchased food and healthcare food
products of approximately RMB22,930,000 from the Intermediate Parent
Group, which did not exceed the annual cap of the above agreement.

Nepstar Distribution Agreement

On 17 October 2017, the Company and Shenzhen Nepstar Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Nepstar”) (being an associate of Mr. Zhang Feng and
thus a connected person of the Company) entered into a distribution
agreement (the “Nepstar Distribution Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Group agreed to provide pharmaceutical products, food and healthcare
food products to Nepstar and its subsidiaries (the “Nepstar Group”) for
it to distribute within the PRC for the period from 1 January 2018 to 31
December 2020. The Nepstar Distribution Agreement became effective
on 1 January 2018 upon the approval by the independent shareholders of
the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on 15 Decemer
2017. The annual caps of such transactions for the year of 2018, 2019
and 2020 would not exceed RMB28,000,000, RMB36,000,000 and
RMB47,000,000 respectively. For details of the transactions, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 17 October 2017 and 15
December 2017.

During the Year, the Group has provided pharmaceutical products, food
and healthcare food products of approximately RMB18,759,000 in total
to Nepstar Group, which has not exceeded the annual cap of the above
agreement.
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Having considered the above, the Directors (including non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) are of the opinion
that each of the Neptunus Pharmaceutical Distribution Agreement (as
supplemented by the Supplementary Agreement), the Healthcare Food
and Food Purchase Framework Agreement and the Nepstar Distribution
Agreement (1) was entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group; (2) are on normal commercial terms and on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

The auditor of the Company has issued a letter to the Board comfirming that
the above continuing connected transactions:

(i) have received the approval of the Board;

(i) were, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group if the transactions involve the provision of goods or services
by the Group;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and

(iv)  did not exceed the respective annual caps.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Year.

Competing Interests

On 21 August 2005, Neptunus Bio-engineering, the controlling shareholder
of the Company, entered into an agreement with the Company containing
undertakings relating to non-competition and preferential rights of
investments (the “Non-Competition Undertakings”), pursuant to which
Neptunus Bio-engineering had undertaken to the Company and its associates
(among others), that as long as the securities of the Company are listed on
GEM (previously known as the Growth Enterprise Market):

1. it will not, and will procure its associates not to, whether within or
outside the PRC, directly or indirectly (other than those indirectly
held as a result of the equity interest in any listed company or its
subsidiaries), participate in or operate any business in whatever form,
or produce any products (the usage of which is the same as or similar
to that of the products of the Company) which may constitute direct
or indirect competition to the business operated by the Company from
time to time; and
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2. it will not, and will procure its associates not to, hold any interest,
whether within or outside the PRC, in any company or organization
(directly or indirectly, other than those indirectly held as a result of
its equity interest in any listed company or its subsidiaries) when the
business of such company or entity will (or may) compete directly or
indirectly with the business of the Company.

Pursuant to the Non-Competition Undertakings, at a time when the
Non-Competition Undertakings are subsisting, whenever Neptunus Bio-
engineering or any its associates enters into any negotiations, within or
outside the PRC, in relation to any new investment projects which may
compete with the existing and future business of the Company, the
Company shall have a preferential rights of investments in such new
investment projects.

Neptunus Bio-engineering has confirmed with the Company that it has
complied with the Non-competing Undertakings during the Year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Staff Retirement Scheme

Details of the staff retirement scheme of the Company are set out in notes
2.18 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Review by Audit Committee

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee is of the opinion that the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 comply with applicable
reporting standards, GEM Listing Rules, and that adequate disclosures have
been made.
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Report of the Directors

Auditor BB

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited, Certified Public Accountants, was HMESHAITEE (B8) 2 ESFT AR QA

appointed as the Company’s auditor on 25 November 2016. Prior to the RZE—A"F+— A+ HABAEZEARAGN

appointment, the former auditor of the Company was Crowe Horwath (HK) ZEED o EREBZ A - ARE 2 AERERD R

CPA Limited, which had resigned as the auditor of the Company on 25 WESHMTEEEE(RE) @t EHMA

November 2016. RAR - BEEE(RE)GAMEBHER
T RNF+—AZ+RBEHTARE 2R —
k5

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Grant Thornton GAVBREREEHRBE (BE) 2:HMEBSME

Hong Kong Limited, who will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming RATEZ - BEA (BB @HMEBHAERAA

annual general meeting of the Company and being eligible, offer themselves BREERITZ2ARRBEFAS LAREE I

for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Grant Thornton ABEMBEEERBT - REBRTZBFERE

Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the BIRERAZRZENZIENE (FE) @00 SH AT

forthcoming annual general meeting. BRAGBARRRZIZEEAD -

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD REEFE

Shenzhen Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited R EIRBEEDEMBRAERAT

Zhang Feng E2

Chairman 5§54

Shenzhen, the PRC A BRI

21 March 2019 —E-hF=HA=-+—H
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TRER/HRE

The Company strives to attain a high standard of corporate governance. The
principles of corporate governance adopted by the Company emphasize a
quality board, sound internal control transparency and accountability to all
stakeholders.

(A) Corporate Governance Practices

The Corporate Governance Code was effective for accounting periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2005. The Company put strong
emphasis on the superiority, steadiness and rationality of corporate
governance. The Board is of the view that the Company has complied
with the requirements set out in Appendix 15 “Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report” of the GEM Listing Rules
throughout the Year except Rule E.1.2. Under Rule E.1.2, the chairman
of the Board, Mr. Zhang Feng, should attend the annual general
meeting. However, Mr. Zhang Feng was unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 25 June 2018 as he was on
business trip for other important business engagement. But Mr. Zhang
Feng appointed Mr Liu Zhan Jun, a non-executive Director, to attend
the meeting and take the chair for him.

(B) Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

During the Year, the Company has adopted a code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors on terms no less
exacting than the “required standard of dealings” as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all the Directors, all the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the “required standard of dealings” and the Company’s
internal code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors during the Year.
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(C) The Board

The Board is responsible for planning and overseeing the overall
development and management of the Company with the objective
of enhancing shareholders’ value. The Board, led by the Chairman, is
responsible for the approval and monitoring of the overall strategies
and policies of the Company, approval of annual budgets and business
plans, evaluation of the Company’s performance and oversight of
the management. As at 31 December 2018, the Board comprised
nine Directors, including two executive Directors, four non-executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The
composition of the Board during the Year is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Feng (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Xu Yan He

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun
Ms. Yu Lin

Mr. Song Ting Jiu
Mr. Zhao Wen Liang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon
Mr. Poon Ka Yeung
Mr. Zhang Jian Zhou

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Company to the
executive Directors, while reserving certain key matters for its approval.
The management is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the
Company under the guidance of the General Manager.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the Year, the Board performed the following corporate
governance duties:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(iii)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

Corporate Governance Report
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(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to
employees and Directors; and

(v) to review the Company's compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

The participation of non-executive Directors in the Board brings
independent judgement on issues relating to the Company'’s strategy,
performance, conflicts of interest and management process to ensure
that the interests of all shareholders of the Company have been duly
considered. The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages
15 to 18, with details of diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
qualifications concerning the Directors. The term of office of each non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors are set out
on page 23 of this annual report.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal action against the Directors.

The Board held nine board meetings during the Year. The Directors
did not authorize any alternate director to attend any board meetings
during the Year.

(D) Committees

The Board strives to maintain an excellent corporate governance and
has established committees with written terms of reference setting out
the powers and duties of the committees.

1.  Audit Committee
The Company had established the Audit Committee on 21
August 2005. The Audit Committee comprises one non-executive
Director, namely Ms. Yu Lin and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Mr. Poon Ka
Yeung. Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(i) to consider, and to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditors, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors, and to resolve
any issues of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

x)

(xi)

to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the auditing process
in accordance with applicable accounting standards;

to discuss the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations with the external auditors before the auditing
commences, and to ensure co-ordination where more than
one audit firm are involved,;

to review and monitor the integrity of the quarterly, interim
and annual financial statements, reports and accounts of
the Company, and to review significant financial reporting
judgments contained therein, before submission to the
Board, focusing particularly on any changes in accounting
policies and practices, major judgmental areas, significant
adjustments resulting from the audit, etc;

to review the Company’s financial control, internal control
and risk management systems;

to discuss with the management the system of internal
control and to ensure the management has discharged its
duties in maintaining an effective internal control system;

to review the external auditors’ letter to the management
and answer any material queries raised by the auditors to
management in respect of the accounting records, financial
accounts or system of internal control;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response
to the issues raised in the external auditors’ letter to the
management;

to report to the Board on the matters set out herein and,
in particular, the matters required to be performed by the
Audit Committee under the Corporate Governance Code;

to act as the key representative body overseeing the
Company'’s relationship with the external auditors; and

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the auditors may wish to
discuss (in the absence of management where necessary).
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During the Year, Audit Committee has reviewed the quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements of the Group, who was
of the opinion that these statements complied with the applicable
accounting standards, the GEM and legal requirements, and that
adequate disclosures have been made. The Audit Committee held
five meetings during the Year (of which two meetings were held
with the external auditors).

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 16
March 2012. Currently the Nomination Committee comprises
one executive Director, Mr. Zhang Feng, and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, Mr.
Poon Ka Yeung and Mr. Zhang Jian Zhou. Mr. Zhang Feng is the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(i)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) and diversity of the Board
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

(i)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships.

(i) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman of the Board and the
General Manager.

The Nomination Committee has adopted the revised Board
Diversity Policy (the “Policy”) which became effective on 17
December 2018. A summary of this Policy together with the
measureable objectives set for implementing this Policy, and the
progress towards achieving those objectives are outlined below.
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The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of its Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board, which can be achieved through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and industry and regional experience.

The Nomination Committee has primary responsibility for
identifying qualified candidates to become members of the Board
and Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis, with candidates being considered against objective criteria,
with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Nomination Committee is also responsible for monitoring the
implementation and reviewing the effectiveness of this Policy.

During the Year, Nomination Committee has reviewed the
Board composition, the effectiveness of the Policy and make
recommendations to the Board on the individuals nominated for
directorships. During the Year, the Nomination Committee held
one meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21 August
2005, comprising one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Feng, Mr. Yick Wing
Fat, Simon and Mr. Poon Ka Yeung. Mr. Poon Ka Yeung is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The major duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

(i) pursuant to provision B.1.2(a) of the Corporate Governance
Code, to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of
the Directors and the senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration;

(i)  to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of executive Directors and senior
management, which shall include non-monetary benefits,
pension rights and compensation payments (including
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment), and to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of the non-executive Directors;
and
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(i) to review and approve the remuneration suggestions of
the management according to the corporate goals and
objectives made by the Board from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee determined the remuneration
of the Directors according to their expertise, knowledge and
commitment to the Company with reference to the Company’s
profitability and the prevailing market conditions. The
Remuneration Committee should consult the executive Director

(i) 2BREESTRFRODLEFH
FBEEZ B RIEEEENF
B3R o

FHZBRENREFNERZE A
HMEHARRNER 2BARQA
WBEMEN BTN BEEEEH
- EHaRERBNFMES &
MZESERANTEERALE -

and the General Manager about its proposals relating to the
remuneration of the Senior Management.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting KEEANAFWEESRITT— X
to review and discuss the Directors remuneration packages of the Z R TARESSEETN R
current session of the Board and the remuneration packages for RARERESRERA B FIIEAE
the current session of the senior management of the Company.

(E) Record of number of Board and committee (E) EEgkMBZEETEARY

meetings and Directors’ attendance REEBNHELH
During the Year, the number of Board and committee meetings and REAFERN ESghkfiBZEE2gEX
Directors’ attendance are set out below: BREEFIHFLEOT

Annual General  Extraordinary Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Directors Meeting General Meeting Board Committee Committee Committee
Bz RRBEAE RREHKE =g ENZERS FHZERS REZRE
Zhang Feng (Chairman of the Board) 0/1 n 99 N/A 17 mn
RE(EFLLE) Tam
Xu Yan He 7 " 9/9 N/A N/A N/A
R @R TEHR TEm
Liu Zhan Jun ” 7 9/9 N/A N/A N/A
5T TEA TEA TEm
Yu Lin ” ”n 9/9 5/5 N/A N/A
T @R TER
Song Ting Jiu 17 n 9/9 N/A N/A N/A
REA @R qyili NEHR
Zhao Wen Liang 11 0N 9/9 N/A N/A N/A
HXR TEm TEm TER
Yick Wing Fat, Simon 11 17 9/9 5/5 17 1”1
ZkE
Poon Ka Yeung 0N 11 99 5/5 1”7 1”7
&G
Zhang Jian Zhou 11 ” 9/9 N/A N/A 17
i R A
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(F) Continuous Professional Development for

Directors

During the Year, all members of the Board had attended relevant
professional development such as trainings or seminars according to
their own professionals. The Company also gave advice to Directors
from time to time in respect of training courses. On 12 November 2018,
the Company arranged training in respect of “Duty to Disclose Interest
under Part XV of the SFO” and “Key Issues of Connected Transactions”
for Directors and senior management of the Company. All Directors
and relevant senior management of the Company have attended such
training. In addition, on 17 December 2018, the Company introduced
and explained “Review of the Corporate Governance Code and Related
Listing Ruler” and “Guidance for Boards and Directors” published by
the Stock Exchange on 27 July 2018 to the Directors and relevant senior
management of the Company during a Board meeting.

(G) Chairman and General Manager

As the leader of the Board, the Chairman is responsible for the approval
and supervision of the overall strategies and policies of the Company,
approval of annual budgets and business plans, evaluation of the
Company’s performance and oversight of the management. Mr. Zhang
Feng is the current Chairman of the Board. The General Manager
(same role as the post of chief executive pursuant to the Corporate
Governance Code) is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the
Company. Mr. Xu Yan is the current General Manager of the Company.
The articles of the association of the Company has set out the role
and powers of the Chairman and General Manager. The roles of the
Chairman and General Manager are separate and are not be performed
by the same individual.

(H) Directors’ Responsibility for Accounts

(1)

The Directors have confirmed and acknowledged their responsibility for
the preparation of the Company’s financial statements is in compliance
with the relative regulations and applicable accounting standards. The
Board has also warranted that the Company’s financial statements
would be distributed in due course.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the Year, approximately RMB1,122,000 (2017: approximately
RMB1,170,000) and approximately RMB371,000 (2017: approximately
RMB425,000) were charged to the Group's income statement for the
external auditor’s audit services and non-audit services respectively.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for overseeing the internal control system and
risk management of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. To
facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of business operations, to
ensure the reliability of financial report, to safeguard the Group'’s assets
and the interest of shareholders and to ensure compliance with relevant
laws and regulations, the Company emphasizes the importance of
a sound internal control system. The internal control system and risk
management is designed to mange rather than to eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board regularly and at least annually reviews the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control system and risk management through the
Audit Committee, executive management, functional departments,
external consultant of internal control and external auditors.

The Company was approved by the Board in 2017 to perform the
internal audit function by sharing the resources of the immediate
parent company, Neptunus Bio-engineering. And the internal audit
function is performed by an internal audit team, which comprises the
personnel appointed by the Company and secondment personnel
of Neptunus Bio-engineering. The internal audit team carried out
comprehensive auditing of certain subsidiaries during the Year.
Taking a risk-oriented approach, the team reviewed important control
activities in respect of key operation procedures, identified defects,
implemented defect rectification measures, organised and improved
internal risk control and management system for the purpose of risk
control. The audit result and rectification measures were submitted to
the Audit Committee and the Board for review in the Year. Currently,
the risk control and compliance department of the Company has
formulated the 2019 internal audit plan, taking into account the risk
management during the Year. During the Year, the management of
the Company has also appointed an external consultant of internal
control to conduct a review on the Group’s internal control system
and risk management system. Such external consultant of internal
control has carried out the analysis and independent appraisal of the
adequacy and the effectiveness of the internal control system and risk
management of the Group and has submitted the results of the review
and its recommendations and opinions for consideration to the Audit
Committee and the Board. The review covers all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance and risk management
functions. The Audit Committee and the Board have discussed the
relevant results of the review and appropriate modifications will be
made to the management system of the Group according to the
findings and recommendations therein. Also during the Year, the Audit
Committee and the Board has assessed whether the Group's resources
in accounting and financial reporting functions are sufficient, whether
the staff obtain sufficient qualification and experience and whether the
trainings for staff and related budget are sufficient.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of
internal control system with following procedures and reported the
result of the review to the Board:

1. discussing with executive management on areas of risks identified

2. reviewing the risks reported by external consultant of internal
control

reviewing external audit plan

reviewing the matters reported by external auditors

reviewing the internal audit rectification list

reviewing the internal audit plan

reviewing the report produced by executive management and
related functional departments to ensure appropriate controls are
in place and any deficiencies or irregularities, if any, are rectified

No v AW

Based on the information supplied, coupled with its own observations
and with the assistance of the Audit Committee, the Board believes
that, in respect of the nature and size of the Group’s operations and
business, the present internal control system and monitoring process
(including sufficiency of the resources in accounting and financial
reporting functions, staff’s qualification and experience and trainings
for staff and related budget) are effective and adequate and have
complied with the requirements under the provisions of the code.

(K) Procedures for Handling and Dissemination of

Inside Information

The Board has established the Inside Information Policy for the handling
and dissemination of inside information. The Inside Information
Policy has stipulated the principle and contents of inside information
disclosure, the inside information’s management, security measures,
responsible persons and departments, reporting methods as well as
the disclosure process, etc. The management of the Company must
take all reasonable measures from time to time to ensure that proper
safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement
in relation to the Company. Relevant inside information reporting
persons must promptly notify the Board secretary of the Company of
any matters that might constitute inside information and shall keep
confidentiality of such information. And the Board secretary of the
Company shall ask for instructions from the executive Directors as
soon as reasonably practicable, who will then evaluate whether the
information constitute inside information and if so, to disclose and take
other appropriate prompt action accordingly. In the event that there is
evidence of any material violation of the Inside Information Policy, the
Company will investigate relevant personnel for their responsibilities
and impose certain punishment, so as to avoid the recurrence of such
violation.
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Corporate Governance Report

Al A/ N
PEREAWE
(L) Constitutional Documents (L) BEXH
The constitutional documents of the Company have been published ARAMBBEXHEHNRGEME AR A
both on the GEM and the Company’s website. At the annual general RN e AT N\FNA-_THHESE
meeting convened on 25 June 2018, certain amendments to the TZRERAFAE LRBAHANRERE
articles of association of the Company were duly passed. Please refer to TERT - (BRI IBERA AR BN AZT
the circular dated on 4 May 2018 for the details of the amendments. —NFREAMBZBEA - RZFEFT
Save for such amendments, there has been no significant change in the G RAREFEERNARATNTEXH I ES
constitutional documents of the Company during the Year. KAE -
(M)Company Secretary (M)A RIME
The company secretary supports the Chairman, the Board and Board NREMEIREIE EFSNESZEE
committees by ensuring good information flow within the Board and g BMREZQADBEEMBEANARE
that Board policy and procedures are followed. The company secretary EEREREFEINERE  RRAIWERE
reports to the Board and assists the Board in functioning effectively eRE THhEEeg BRI
and efficiently. She also advises the Board on governance matters and BEE-KAREARFEHANESTERHER
facilitates the induction and professional development of Directors. R U LHES I ABREXEER -
All Directors of the Company may call upon the company secretary ARBI2RBELFIERERAAMERM
for advice and assistance at any time in respect to their duties and the EHEBENBFEEEeNEEELETH
effective operation of the Board and the Board committees. WEEZ B R R mE -
Ms. Lee Mei Yi and Ms. Mu Ling Xia are the joint company secretaries FEREUTNEEERTRARAZHE
of the Company, of which Ms. Lee is the external company secretary NElME - Hep - L L RBINERRWE
and Ms. Mu is a full time employee of the Company. Ms. Mu is also MEXLTAERARAFZ22BES - RN
the vice general manager and financial controller of the Company who BARAAZBBEIENPFBEEA B
has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. Ms. Lee and Ms. NAIEHBEAERE - TR REZLTR
Mu undertook not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training RKEERNEBEITDPRIS/NFZERAHE
during the Year. £Foll o
The primary corporate contact person at the Company is Ms. Mu Ling RARARNBE N EZBHBARREELL -
Xia, the joint company secretary, Board secretary, financial controller BARNBEARWE EFgWE W
and vice general manager of the Company. BBEAURBIRICE -
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(N) Shareholder’s Rights

0

(ii)

(iii)

According to the articles of association of the Company, two or
more shareholders holding more than 10% or more of the shares
with voting rights can sign one or more written requests with
the same format and contents, requesting the Board to convene
an extraordinary general meeting, and stating the topics of the
meeting. After receipt of the aforesaid written request, the Board
shall hold the extraordinary general meeting as soon as possible.
If the Board does not distribute the notice on holding the meeting
within 30 days after receipt of the aforesaid written request, the
shareholder(s) putting forward such requirement can convene
the meeting on his/their own within four months after the Board
receives such request.

Shareholders of the Company can make enquires to the Board
or the Company in relation to corporate governance or other
matters. The Company will not normally deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries. Shareholders may send written enquiries to
the Company, by email to mix@interlong.com, or by fax to (86)
755 8639 1610 or by mail to Suite 2103, 21st floor, Neptunus
Yinhe Technology Mansion, 1 Keji Middle 3rd Road, Nanshan
District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the PRC.

The Company encourages shareholders to attend and give advice
in the general meeting, or appoints proxies to attend general
meetings, and vote for them when they could not attend general
meetings. Under appropriate circumstances, chairman of the
Board, other members of the Board, Chairman of committees
under the Board or representative appointed by them, and
external auditors would attend general meeting of the Company,
and they would answer for the shareholders. They will also
consider or respond to the suggestions made by shareholders.

To put forward proposals at an annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting, the shareholders should submit a written notice of
those proposals with detailed contact information to the Company, by
email to mix@interlong.com, or by fax to (86) 755 8639 1610 or by
mail to Suite 2103, 21st floor, Neptunus Yinhe Technology Mansion,
1 Keji Middle 3rd Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong
Province, the PRC. The request will be verified with the Company’s
share registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the company secretary will ask the Board to include the
resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

ESgRE

To: All shareholders

The Supervisory Committee of the Company has exercised its powers
seriously to safeguard the interests of the Company and shareholders,
complied with the principle of good faith, discharged its duties
conscientiously and undertaken tasks in a diligent and proactive manner
in accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, the relevant Hong Kong
laws, regulations and the articles of association of the Company (the
" Articles of Association”).

The Supervisory Committee of the Company has reviewed in detail and
approved the audited financial statements and this report which will be
presented at the annual general meeting. Supervisors of the Company have
reviewed prudently the operation and development plans of the Company,
and carried out strict and effective supervision as regards whether major
decision-making and exact decisions by the management of the Company
are in compliance with the laws and regulations of the PRC and the Articles
of Association and safeguard the interests of shareholders. Supervisors
believe that during the Year, the operating results of the Company were
sufficient to reflect its position, and all expenses and costs incurred were
reasonable. The profit sharing scheme was in the long-term interest of
shareholders and the Company. The provision for statutory surplus reserve
and public welfare fund made during the Year has complied with the
applicable laws and regulations of the PRC and the Articles of Association.

During the Year, to the best knowledge of the Supervisory Committee,
no Directors or other senior management of the Company were found to
have abused his authority or have harmed the interests of shareholders
and employees. To the best knowledge of the Supervisory Committee, no
Directors or other senior management of the Company were found to have
violated any applicable laws or regulations, the Articles of Association or the
relevant regulations of China Securities Regulatory Commission. Supervisors
believe that the Directors and other senior management of the Company
have strictly observed their respective duties and acted prudently and
exercised their powers in good faith in the best interest of the Company.

The Supervisory Committee of the Company is full of confidence in the
future of the Company and would like to take this opportunity to express its
gratitude to all shareholders, Directors and staff for their strong support to
the Supervisory Committee.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Xiong Chu Xiong
Chairman of Supervisory Committee

Shenzhen, the PRC
21 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Q Grant Thornton

B [=]

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhen
Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 170,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018, and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B B EM RS

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
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opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 2R o

How the matter was addressed KM E WM
The Key Audit Matter in our audit BREETSE BEZERE
Valuation of inventories EFEWME

Refer to note 2.9 and 18 to consolidated financial statements.

At the reporting date, the Group held
inventories of approximately RMB113
million. In arriving at the net realisable
value of inventories, estimation and
management judgment, including use
ageing of historical aging statistics,
projection of expected volume and
price of future sales of inventories, were
exercised.

We have identified valuation of
inventories as a key matter to our
audit considering the materiality of
the balance and the calculations
are inherently subject to significant
judgement of management.

We evaluated and tested the controls
that management has established to
oversee and keep tracks of inventory
movements.

Among other substantive procedures,
we considered the accuracy of historical
provisions against actual inventory write-
offs.

On a sample basis we selected inventory
items and tested their net realisable
value calculation.

We compared subsequent sales prices
and volumes against those projected in
forecasts.
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The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

Intangible assets impairment assessment
Refer to note 2.6, 2.17 and 16 to consolidated financial statements.

At the reporting date, the Group has
intangible assets with indefinite life,
totalling approximately RMB99.6
million including anesthetic drug
production and selling rights and
trade name. These intangible
assets were individually assessed
at year end for impairment loss.
The valuation process employed
significant estimates and management
judgement over the cash flow
forecasts, discount rates, and
benchmark growth rates of
particular drug markets.

We identified impairment of intangible
assets as a key audit matter due to
the materiality of the balances and
the use of estimation and judgement
in accessing the recoverability of
intangible assets.

We obtained valuation reports from
the independent valuer employed
by the Company and assessed its
qualification and reputation.

We reviewed the valuation
methodology, questioned, among
other applicable models, the
valuation model selected and
assumptions made.

We have reconciled input data
to supporting evidence, such as
approved budgets and considering
the reasonableness of these budgets.

We have compared prior year
cash flow projections with actual
occurrence to consider accuracy
of management’s prior projections
and if the projections were overly
optimistic.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZ AN

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the 2018 annual report of the
Company, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagements and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e  evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZ AN

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AR A R

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial BREMRBN RSV ERRARENEE (E)
Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine MEREZEZES/BBENEIEYD - BPIFEEMLSE
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated HEHEAPLEV B RENBARAEE  BimE
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit FRRASR T ETE o P ERZ BAD RS o e i 35 L
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law FIH  RIFEBERIATAABRRELSEE -
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in HEBBERNERLT - RAIBTEHERAFIR
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be SREBRXFRENNAMRRBBELEN AR
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so Mz - BRPPRE T EERE TR B BZEE -

would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited BE(FB) GMEXAERAT
Certified Public Accountants HEDETAD

Level 12 BB

28 Hennessy Road HIEFFBE 28 5%

Wanchai 1218

Hong Kong

21 March 2019 —E-NF=A=+—H

Chiu Wing Ning HHKE

Practising Certificate No.: P04920 WMEFBERS : P04920
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEERREMEEHEER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AR¥T T ARETTT
Revenue WA 5,6 867,123 790,286
Cost of sales SHERAE (364,908) (365,255)
Gross profit EF 502,215 425,031
Other revenue Hrl A 7 11,731 8,915
Other net income Hitgl A F58 7 1,647 853
Selling and distribution expenses SHE Ko X (349,026) (262,777)
Administrative expenses THAX (55,916) (51,523)
Other operating expenses HAih s &5 (41,220) (46,942)
Profit from operations KRR 69,431 73,557
Finance costs BiSER 8(a) (1,787) (3,229)
Profit before taxation BB A F 8 67,644 70,328
Income tax expense FrS R 9 (16,580) (14,899)
Profit and total comprehensive REERAR
income for the year THRRERE 51,064 55,429
Profit and total comprehensive TS EEEREERT
income for the year attributable to: REEKEAEE
Owners of the company KABIHEE A 48,089 50,257
Non-controlling interests IR e 2,975 5,172
51,064 55,429
Earnings per share for profit BEFEERLRERA
attributable to the owners of A FEERR 2
the Company during the year BRER
Basic and diluted EEININE: 3 13 2.87 cents 3.00 cents
AR%2.87% AR¥3.005
The notes on page 63 to 170 are an integral part of these consolidated F63BEF 170 BB FTHREMBRE
financial statements. B —& 5 o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR 2R

As at 31 December 2018
RZE—NF+ZA=1+—H

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments

Intangible assets

Deposit for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Contract liabilities

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Entrusted loans from the immediate
parent company

Deferred revenue

Current taxation

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

BERAE
FRBEE

ME - BB kR
FANEERE
BVEE

BEVE  BFEREEN
wE

EEMIREE

RBEE

FE

R M B R e L At B W R IR
REMREFED

RBEE

AN BR R B EL A B A IR
BHAE

MERITEE

BB RRIZREER

W
BIEARE IR

REBEEFE

REERABRE

2017

T+

Notes RMB’000
MIsE AREFT
14 121,968
15 60,879
16 111,008
17 4,425
27(b) 1,719
299,999

18 146,468
19 203,041
22 350,724
700,233




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE SRR
As at 31 December 2018
RW-_Z—)\F+=-_A=+—H

2017
Tt
Notes RMB'000
b ARBFT
Non-current liabilities FREAE
Deferred revenue PEIEW S 26 3,212
Deferred tax liabilities REFIAR G 27(b) 17,682
20,894
Net assets EEFHE 749,768
EQUITY EE
Equity attributable to owners AARFEEA
of the company bR
Share capital il 28 167,800
Reserves i 29 482,049
Total #ct 649,849
Non-controlling interests IR ERE 99,919
Total equity ERBE 749,768
Zhang Feng Xu Yan He
R HEM
Director Director
E3 =
! - . NN N
‘The notes on page 63 to 170 are an integral part of these consolidated F63BEF 170 BRI TR & BB HE
i i ements B —HH o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—\GE+_A=1T—HILFE

2017
—T+tF
RMB’000
AREFT
Operating activities REEE
Profit before taxation BRI A 70,328
Adjustments for: P
Depreciation e 13,373
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T HE E R 1,570
Amortisation of intangible assets ER A EE 4,150
Impairment of trade receivables FEURBR TR E 350
Impairment of other receivables H{th e Y SR IERL (B 402
Reverse of impairment loss FEU AR SR (B BT 1B 1 Bl
on trade receivables (52)
Reverse of impairment loss on HAb fENGRIE R E & 1B D
other receivables (137)
Finance costs &R 3,229
Interest income B A (3,603)
Interest income from principal {RAAUTF R BURA
protected deposits (1,300)
Subsidy income released from R IR
deferred revenue HIRERE A (1,280)
Written down of inventories WRFE 12,460
Reversal of write down of inventories FEMORE D (307)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BEK
plant and equipment RIBHEE 106
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease payments  H&EFENHEEFIEH WS (1,030)



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE-Z— \E+-A=+—HILEE

Changes in working capital EEELEE

Decrease/(increase) in inventories wFaERL, ()

(Increase)/decrease in trade and JE UK BR TR H b U ERIB
other receivables (gm),/mo

Decrease in trade and other payables JE AT BR 3R e HL A FE A< SRIB R

Increase in contract liabilities EHBEEM

Cash generated from operations REEERS

Income tax paid — PRC BRFTEH -

Cash generated from operating activities E&FEHELRE

Investing activities REFEH

Deposit for acquisition of property, BEDE BEKLEHE
plant and equipment bz

Payment for purchase of property, BEWE - BEREE
plant and equipment EOANES

Payment for expenditure of intangible assets 74 2 5 37 95 3K

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME « BB RRED
plant and equipment FriS /IR

Placement of principal protected deposits TFRURATIFRR

Receipts from principal protected deposits IRANFITF FRE U R

Interest received B UAILE

Subsidy income received BN
Decrease in fixed deposits TEHFEROR S
disposal of i E TR E IR
ase payments Fr{S k1A

REED (FA)EBE
BT

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

2017
—E—+tF
RMB’000

ARET T

(21,872)

7,349
(10,175)

(24,698)

73,561
(17,778)

55,783

(12,526)

(12,148)

26,415
(170,000)
170,000

4,903

4,000

37,531

48,175



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mAEREESRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—T—\E+-A=+—HItEE

2018 2017
S Tt
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETFTT
Financing activities BEEH
Repayment of bank loans ERBITER (60,000) (150,000)
Proceeds from new bank loans FTIGERTTE SRFTISRE 30,000 80,000
Interest paid BFE (1,787) (3,229)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests IR IR R R 2 AR R (2,000) (5,200)
Net cash used in financing activities SEEHMARSEHE (33,787) (78,429)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash RERBEEEY OBL), &
and cash equivalents HEE (27,147) 25,529
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—HWRERBELSEEY 350,724 325,195
Cash and cash equivalents R+=A=+—B#i
at 31 December RERREEEY 323,577 350,724
Analysis of cash and cash RT=ZA=+—HH
equivalents at 31 December ReERRESEEYHN
Bank balances and cash RITHERRE S 323,577 350,724

The notes on page 63 to 170 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

63BEEF 170 BN BRI F5 A B HRE

—35

W
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEERBER

As at 31 December 2018
RZE—NF+ZA=1+—H

Attributable to owners of the Company

KOAEEAER
Statutory Non-
Share Share reserve Capital Retained controlling
capital premium fund resrve earnings Sub-total interests Total
e REE  REDEE et REER M FERES b 1
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Me#fT  ARETT ARETR ABBTRT MRETR ARETR MRETR ARETR
(Note 28) (Note 293) (Note 29¢ (Note 29b)
G 2B 2 SO
At 1 January 2017 M-Z-tE-f-A 167800 554,844 43749 (183.494) 21,693 599,592 99,947 699,539
Change in equity for 2017 “E-tERERE
Proftand total comprehenshe KEERAR
income forthe year Eil v - - - - 50,257 50257 5,11 55,429
Dividend paid from  subsicary K REaD
to non-controling ntrests HERERS > - - - - - (3200 (3,200
Transferto other esenves BRZEDEE - - 4870 - 4870) - - -
At 31 December 2017 R-E-tEt-A=1-A 167800 554,844 43619 (183.494) 67,080 649,849 99919 749,768
At 1 January 2018 H-%-/\§-A-A
Change in equity for 2018 Z3-\ERERE
Proftand toal comprehenshe REERAR
income for the year FENGEE
Dhidend paid from 3 subsidary KRR
to non-contrling nterests HEATRE
Transferto other resees HEREWER
At31 December 2018 R=%-NF+=A=1-8
1 page 63 to 170 are an integral part of these consolidated FIEEF170EMH BRI FLEVHRE
er H—Ep5 -

:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General Information

Shenzhen Neptunus Interlong Bio-techniqgue Company Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"”). The address of its
registered office is 1/F, Block 1, Research Building, Neptunus Technical
Center, Langshan 2nd R.N. Nanshan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong
Province, the PRC and on 11 July 2018, the registered office changed
to Suite 2103, 21st Floor, Neptunus Yinhe Technology Mansion, 1
Keji Middle 3rd Road, Yuehai Sub-district, Nanshan District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, the PRC and, its principal place of business is
PRC. The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

The Group is controlled by Shenzhen Neptunus Bio-engineering
Company Limited (“Neptunus Bio-engineering”), a limited liability
company incorporated and domiciled in the PRC and its shares are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. The ultimate parent company
of the Group is Shenzhen Neptunus Holding Group Limited, a company
incorporated in the PRC.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) include the development, production and sales of medicines,
the research and development of modern biological technology
business, the purchase and sales of medicines, healthcare food
products and the research and development of in vitro diagnostic
reagents. The Group's operations are based in the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018 were approved for issue by the board of directors on 21 March
2019.

Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation
These annual consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
> =+ 23

T E B TSR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-T—\E+-A=+—HItEE

2. Sig
2.1

2.2

64 SHENZHE

nificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the GEM Listing Rules
("GEM Listing Rules”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB™) which is also the functional currency of the consolidated
entities. All amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand except
where otherwise indicated.

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently applied
to all the years presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption
of new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group's
consolidated financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note 3.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for principal protected deposits which
is stated at fair values. The measurement bases are fully described
in the accounting policies below.

[t should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
Although these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and actions,
actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
When assessing whether the Group has power over the entity,
only substantive rights relating to the entity (held by the Group
and others) are considered.

N NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group includes the income and expenses of a subsidiary
in the consolidated financial statements from the date it gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses
on transactions between group companies are eliminated in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Where unrealised
losses on intra-group asset sales are reversed on consolidation,
the underlying asset is also tested for impairment from the
Group's perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements
of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity on a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at their proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
the equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the owners of the Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE_Z-\F+_A=+—HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2. Sig
22

2.3

nificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amounts of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, subsidiaries are
carried at cost less any impairment loss. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable at the reporting
date. All dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or
post-acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s profit or
loss.

Business combination

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value on the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquire
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
bargain purchase gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Business combination (Continued)

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity before the acquisition date are reclassified to profit or loss
when the Group obtains control over the acquiree.

Property, plant and equipment

Land held for own use under finance leases and buildings
thereon, buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land classified as held under operating leases, and
other items of plant and equipment (other than construction-in-
progress as described below) are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance
lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment. Cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the
cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their
intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they are located, and capitalised
borrowing costs. Purchased software that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that
equipment.

Buildings held under leasing agreements are depreciated over
their expected useful lives of 50 years or over the term of lease, if
shorter.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes, are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Group's accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BHEZ

E-N\F+_A=1T—RHILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4

2.5

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on assets other than construction-in-progress is
provided to write off the cost less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the
following rates per annum:

Plant and machinery

Motor vehicles

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Leasehold improvements

5to 10 years

5to 10 years

5to 10 years

5 to 30 years or over the
remaining term of

the lease, if shorter

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as separate assets, as appropriate, only when they are
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land and land use rights

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantively all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group.
Specially, the minimum lease payments (including any lumpsum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Leasehold land and land use rights (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated on a straight line basis over the
term of the lease/right of use except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the time pattern of benefits to be derived
by the Group from use of the land.

During the construction period, the amortisation charges provided
for prepaid lease payments are capitalised in construction-in-
progress in property, plant and equipment.

Intangible assets and research and development activities
Intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost
and acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. After initial recognition,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation commences when the intangible assets are available
for use. The following useful lives are applied:

Computer software 51to 10 years

Trademarks 10 years
Customer list 10 years
Selling licenses 5 years

The useful life of the anesthetic drug production and selling right
and trade name are considered by the management of the Group
as indefinite because the anesthetic drug production and selling
right, and trade name is expected to contribute to the Group’s net
cash inflows indefinitely.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.6 Intangible assets and research and development activities
(Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)
The assets’ amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Intangible assets, with finite and indefinite useful lives, are tested
for impairment as described below in note 2.17.

Research and development costs

Costs associated with research activities are expensed in profit
or loss as they occur. Costs that are directly attributable to
development activities are recognised as intangible assets
provided they meet the following recognition requirements:

(i)  demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective
product for internal use or sales;

(i)  there is intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

(i) the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated;

(iv) the intangible asset will generate probable economic
benefits through internal use or sales;

(v) sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can be
reliably measured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Intangible assets and research and development activities
(Continued)

Research and development costs (Continued)

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on development
activities along with an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.
The costs of development of internally generated software,
products or knowhow that meet the above recognition criteria
are recognised as intangible assets. They are subject to the same
subsequent measurement method as acquired intangible assets.

All other development costs are expensed as incurred.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the
financial asset and substantially all of its risks and rewards
are transferred. A financial liability is derecognised when it is
extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and initial measurement of financial assets
Except for those trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component and are measured at the transaction price
in accordance with HKFRS 15, all financial assets are initially
measured at fair value, in case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), plus transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are
expensed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.7 Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Classification and initial measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets, other than those designated and effective as
hedging instruments, are classified into the following categories:

- amortised cost;
- FVTPL; or

- fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The classification is determined by both:

—  the entity’s business model for managing the financial asset;
and

—  the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are
recognised in profit or loss are presented within finance costs or
other revenue, except for expected credit losses (“ECL") of trade
receivables which is presented within other operating expenses.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Debt investments

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the assets meet
the following conditions (and are not designated as FVTPL):

—  they are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold the financial assets and collect its contractual cash
flows; and

—  the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

2. TESTTHE (&
2.7 €@MIA(E)

THEE (F)
BE-E2-N\E-A-HEBERMNEX
(%)

EBEEC TR E (&)

? ERBYEE P T A ©REE
DR TR

- REERAEE

- BoFEERABRZE %

- ﬁ N FERF AR M 2R ([42
NHEFARMEERE])

DB T I MIAETE

i}

i3]
\‘5‘5

BHSREEZKRER

\

g
e

&

- TRMEEZANADRERH -

ERMEENBRANER ZMERBY
AR AR ERRE MDA
W25 EREERZAREEER
(TEHREEEBER]) ENEMEERx
K

EHAEREHE
@HTA
MR B 2 SRR

i BOA RS T 5164 (B3R
REATESARR)  AREERS
BRAEE

- NEBEHNRSRER/BNOMEF
BEEZRERATREZER
BE: R

- SREEZEHNBIELEZERS®
MEBARABINARE R ABEER
BZHE .

72 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets (Continued)
Debt investments (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in other revenue in profit or
loss. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is
immaterial. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other receivables fall into this category of financial instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that are held within a difference business model
other than “hold to collect” or “hold to collect and sell” are
categorised at FVTPL. This category includes principal protected
deposits.

Policy applicable before 1 January 2018

Financial assets are classified into loans and receivables.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition depending on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired and where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular way purchases of financial assets are
recognised on trade date. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments expire or are transferred and
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.7 Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Policy applicable before 1 January 2018 (Continued)

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to assess
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, impairment loss is determined and recognised

based on the classification of the financial asset.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate and

transaction cost.

Financial liabilities

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
interest-bearing bank borrowings, entrusted loans from the

immediate parent company.

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and, where
applicable, adjusted for transaction costs unless the Group

designated a financial liability at FVTPL.

Subsequently, financial liabilities are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method except for derivatives
and financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, which are carried
subsequently at fair value with gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss (other than derivative financial instruments that are

designated and effective as hedging instruments).

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an
instrument’s fair value that are reported in profit or loss are

included within finance costs or other revenue.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
(Continued)

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Interest-bearing bank borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred. Interest-bearing bank
borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Interest-bearing bank borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

Trade and other payables and entrusted loans from the
immediate parent company

Trade and other payables and entrusted loans from the immediate
parent company are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Impairment of financial assets

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

HKFRS 9's impairment requirements use more forward-looking
information to recognise ECL — the “ECL model”. Instruments
within the scope included loans and other debt-type financial
assets measured at amortised cost and trade and other
receivables.

The Group considers a broader range of information when
assessing credit risk and measuring ECL, including past events,
current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts that
affect the expected collectability of the future cash flows of the
instrument.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. FESHBEE)
2.8 Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 2.8 WMEERME(H)
Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued) BE-ZE—-N\F—-A—AREANEE
(%)

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is made HRAZAIELE B I SHEEY

between: &5l

- finandial instruments that have not deteriorated significantly - HYIPHERUREEELGERE
in credit quality since initial recognition or that have low EERBIEHARKEERR 2
credit risk (“Stage 1") and PRMIA(E R &

- finandial instruments that have deteriorated significantly in - HYIPERUREEEESEE
credit quality since initial recognition and whose credit risk is FERRECEEEERBMEZ®
not low (“Stage 2"). BTA(TEZMREER] -

“Stage 3" would cover financial assets that have objective [F=MER ] BENRERLERREN

evidence of impairment at the reporting date. EEEBRERMEE -

“12-month ECL" are recognised for the Stage 1 category while [+ —EABHEEEE| NE—BER

“lifetime ECL" are recognised for the Stage 2 category. THER - T [ 2HTEHEEEE] RE

“RERERTRER o

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-weighted TEEE EBE 2t 2 T B R s
estimate of credit losses over the expected life of the financial ARemIABFERAZEERRE
instrument. EEE °

76 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL
and recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each
reporting date. These are the expected shortfalls in contractual
cash flows, considering the potential for default at any point
during the life of the financial assets. In calculating the ECL, the
Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience and external indicators, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Group measures the loss allowance for other receivables
equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increase in the
likelihood or risk of default occurring since initial recognition.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial assets at the reporting date with the
risk of default occurring on the financial assets at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.
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2. EERETEE &)
2.8 SRMEERME (M)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.8 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

—  significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the
credit default swap prices for the debtor;

—  existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the end of each reporting period. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if it has a low risk of
default, the borrower has strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but
will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfill its
contractual cash flow obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.8

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued)
For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collateral held by the Group).

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade receivables and
other financial assets measured at amortised cost are set out in
note 32.2.

Policy applicable before 1 January 2018
At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to determine
whether there is any objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial assets
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;
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2. FEETHEA)
2.8 SRMEERME (M)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.8 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Policy applicable before 1 January 2018 (Continued)

—  significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is measured and
recognised as follows:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss
of the period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent that it does
not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss of the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.9

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion
and applicable selling expenses.

Cost is determined using the weighted average basis, and in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprise
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. It excludes borrowing costs.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amounts of any write down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write down or
loss occurs. The amounts of any reversal of any write down
of inventories are recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises revenue
(see note 2.15) before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the contract.
Contract assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy
set out in note 2.8 and are reclassified to receivables when the
right to the consideration has become unconditional (see note
2.7).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see note 2.15). A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see note 2.7).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. TESFHX(E)

2.11 Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued) 21 EHNEEREHNERE (H)
For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract REEFPIIUME—GAME * g7
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts, RENEEFBREYVEEFE -
contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are ZEEHNME TR FEEESR
not presented on a net basis. THEGHNNEHNEERGHNEIE -

2.12 Leases 2128
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of MAREBREA T —BHLH (BE IR
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that R —BER G ) AL HHRE A
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets RiETEEXZEEENEN - Uik
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of IR — BB AR RELHR
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation RBE—HEE - ZERTE HIREY
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether ZRPMNBNFEMEL - iR aZ
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease. R RGBSR UETT -
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group (i) HEFRREHRED R

AEBREBEROBENEE M
ZABR AR E S BB R A D
BEBEAEE  DOBERBE
ME - ESAByRRKER

q ds of hib to the G lassified BEREEEREENEN D
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as AB B AETRE - AE A TR S) ¢

operating leases, with the following exceptions:

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the

- REKLEHSEREFERANL

fair value of which cannot be measured separately o RFEEREE - EA
from the fair value of a building situated thereon, at TG ME A AR g
the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being BN FESESE  BlEA
held under a finance lease, unless the building is also BEREHESEAALE B
clearly held under an operating lease (see note 2.4). For EZIEFIMEE —IELLTE
these purposes, the inception of the lease is the time EEREFEE(RKME24) - 7t
that the lease was first entered into by the Group, or AEB®MmE - MRS
taken over from the previous lessee. HEAT AR E & IR ML

S HFTEA AR TR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.12 Leases (Continued)

(i) Operating lease charges as the lessee
Where the Group has the right to use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss on a straight line basis over
the lease terms except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased assets.

Leasehold land for own use

Interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments”
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

(iii)

2.13 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount
of the obligation can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is recognised
at the amount of consideration of shares issued, after deducting
any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental
costs directly attributable to the equity transaction.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.15 Revenue recognition
Revenue arises mainly from manufacturing and selling of
medicines and healthcare products.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group follows a
5-step process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer
2. Identifying the performance obligations
3. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance
obligations

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are
satisfied

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when
(or as) the Group satisfies performance obligations by transferring
the promised goods or services to its customers.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

Sales of goods

Revenue from manufacturing and selling of medicines and
healthcare products for which control of assets is transferred at
a point in time is recognised when the goods are delivered to
customers. The Group provides sales return polices to customers,
and the amount of sales return was insignificant.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

Sales management services to pharmaceutical products
Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the
services is rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.16 Government subsidies

Subsidies from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the subsidies will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.
Government subsidies are deferred and recognised in profit or
loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that
the subsidies are intended to compensate. Government subsidies
relating to the purchase of assets are deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and consequently are effectively recognised
in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

Government subsidies relating to income is presented in gross
under “Other revenue” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

2.17 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease
payments and the Company’s interests in subsidiaries are subject
to impairment testing.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful life or those not yet
available for use are tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they are
impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment whenever
there are indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value, reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal, and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pretax discount
rate that reflects current market assessment of time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent from those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows independently
(i.e., a cash-generating unit). As a result, some assets are
tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. TESFHX(E)
2.17 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued) 217 kSBEERME (H)
Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units are MESEEEMERANMEEBERLL
charged pro rata to the assets in the cash-generating units, except PINIReEESENVHMEENRG  HE
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below ENEEEE T REERERENA
its individual fair value less cost of disposal, or value in use, if FER L EXASEAEE (YA E
determinable. E) °
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable WMARETEEETRE SR 2 G
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable WAEMEEE - HEBERE T AL
amount and only to the extent that the asset’s carrying B B E RS RR R 0 S BT T ERR
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have WA WEHRTE REHESH 2R|
been determined, net of depreciation and amortisation, if no (E

impairment loss had been recognised.

2.18 Employee benefits 218 EEEF

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to central FTHIE S 45 F R 1 SR Mk £ 51 E)H 5

pension scheme

The Group participates in the central pension scheme (the AEEBAHEMEETBRNEEZINA

“CPS") operated by the local government authority for all of its B TR A 2 R R KB 5T )

employees in PRC. The Group is required to contribute a certain (TRKResTE8)) - "&EEHERES

percentage of their covered payroll to the CPS to fund the FeaEnETa LmRAKEEE

benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the HP o BZENRERES - AEER

CPS is to pay the ongoing required contributions under the CPS. RS BINE —RERRBZRNR

Contributions under the CPS are recognised in profit or loss as eFFERFEZ N ATAENHRK - RE

they become payable in accordance with the rules of the CPS. RINDFTEIVARA - PR E BN
B REBRARSENHRENER
BRAPHERR o

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and contributions e FREL FEBFBRELT

to central pension scheme are accrued in the year in which the REKRSEHEET HEREER

associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment EEREREHNEENINESEES

or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these He EXHBEREERBEERNTE -

amounts are stated at their present values. ZE B AYTIRERE -

Termination benefits ARUEREF

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of: when the BIERAMTIR THIME 2 B8R &

Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and R AREBETHBEMINEIREZZE

when it recognises costs for any related restructuring. BRI NERS R NRIEEFEE
KA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.19 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income earned
on the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, for the
acquisition, construction or production of any qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset is
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sales. Other borrowing costs are
expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sales are being
undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sales are complete.

2.20 Translation of foreign currencies

2.21

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end
of reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss, except those arising from foreign currency
borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation
which are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

Accounting for income taxes
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to the
current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the reporting
date. They are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.21 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on temporary
differences at the reporting date between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
tax losses available to be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit,
including existing taxable temporary differences, will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax

losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction

that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period the liability is settled or the
asset realised, provided they are enacted or substantively enacted

at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in
profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity if they relate to items that are charged or credited to other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in net if,

and only if:

(@ the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the

recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset

and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.21 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
in net if, and only if:

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

2.22 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components and
for their review of the performance of those components.
The business components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined following the
Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

2.23 Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.23 Related parties (Continued)
(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other

entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of

a group of which the other entity is a member);

(iii)

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi)

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Adoption of New and Amended HKFRSs 3. BRANETET L R AMEET BB ISR
HEEA

REB-NF-A-—HRAHEZRRZFE
HEERZHAT L RGBT ERBUBHRSE
3|

RAEE  AEEERERATHTES
FHEPAE R BAKENEEARME
ARAEER _ZE—-N\F-A—BRKZ
FEMENGRA W IBRR 2R L REE

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new and amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, which
are relevant to the Group’s operations and effective for the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning on 1

January 2018: A BB BIRE LR
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments BERVBWEER SmIA
F I
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers EXUMBRELN BFEAEHKRARME
and the related Amendments £ 1557 RAEET
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of BERVBMELEL URODERZZH
Share-based Payment Transactions 25 (IBETA) HEREE
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments BERVBREEL HWEBUBRSE
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts B A5 (BFTA) R4St IRER & 40 FE
FR& A B T R 2
A oemMT A
Amendments to HKFRS 1 As part of the Annual Improvements BERVBHREER (ERABEEMBRE

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

HK (IFRIC) — Int 22

to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
Transfers of Investment Property

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new and amended

£ 158 (BT A)

EAEGETERIZE 28
UACCHIEN)

A EAF 40
5k (1£5TA)

X (ERPBRE
2EZEg)-2
BE 225

B TPt sh -

ERZT—WFEE
—E-RNFEP
FENEL D
EABEBHERE
HEA-—ZT-—MNEE
—E-RNFEH
FEREZ D
B EME

INER Z RBNK
&

R LREERTER

HKFRSs had no material impact on how the results and financial B IS s RIS AR HAR OB HAfE 2 ¥ 48
position for the current and prior periods have been prepared and RHBRANGRREREINHELEERT
presented. Zo
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Adoption of New and Amended HKFRSs
(Continued)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”. It makes major changes to the previous guidance on
the classification and measurement of financial assets and introduces an
“ECL model” for the impairment of financial assets.

When adopting HKFRS 9, the Group has applied the standard
retrospectively to items that existed at 1 January 2018 in accordance
with the transition requirement and also applied transitional relief
and opted not to restate prior periods. Differences arising from the
adoption of HKFRS 9 in relation to classification, measurement, and
impairment are recognised in retained earnings.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has impacted the following area:

—  HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the
ECL model. The ECL model requires an ongoing measurement
of credit risk associated with a financial asset and therefore
recognises ECL earlier than under the “incurred loss” accounting
model in HKAS 39.

Besides, upon initial adoption of HKFRS 9 (i.e. 1 January 2018), the
Group applies the new ECL model to all financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other receivables).

The Group applies the HKFRS 9's simplified approach to measuring
ECL which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for trade receivable
and amount due from related parties (trade nature). The ECL on these
assets are assessed collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings based on debtors’ ageing.

RANFTR] AL I B F] BB BT 4R
HER (&)

PN
RZZB-NF-A-HAHERRBRZFE
HBEERZHAT LR EETEBUBHRS
=8 (%)

BB BHEERFEIN [£HT A/

FEMBHRELELE SRR ET LS ER
E3RIEMT R DENFTE] - FER
SIAERMEENBELFEREIIZEZEZS
kegEEREL [RHEEEE] EKX -

REFEMNE BN B IREERNE IR - AEH
ERBEERTHNR _F-—N\F—-A—H
FENABBEER - I5E B ER MG
NRTEBEBRETUES - RANEEH
BREERNEIFRENE - FTERRMETE
EEZZRNREENARESR -

RMEAMBHRERUFIRTEUTER

"
s :

- BAUBHRSENEIRUBHEER
EERAMKEEGEAE395%
MIEEEEE] EX - BHEREERE
BEABRBEAERSREERBN
EFERR HitEREHEEERE
AEERREFB ST EAF 395N
[EELEBR] gstEA -

AN - ERHRABTBIEREELE 95
(M—ZF—-NF—H—H) AEEHHDH
HHEEBEEEXNERRMBEREHEXA
AEMNEREE(ERRENRREFEDIN
Ko e W BR R e B B ISR IR )

AEERAE B BRELENFIROMBL
T30 - B PR R AR R R Mk B 5E 5 OB
(BZHE) ZReyRfEERERS
EFEEBE - ZFEENBHUEEBRLE
REFBANKRRERARESED ANEE
FEMEEITER AR
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Adoption of New and Amended HKFRSs
(Continued)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

For all other financial assets, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

The credit losses calculated pursuant to the new requirement are
not significantly different from the amount recognised under the
current practices. Therefore, the Group considered no additional ECL
adjustment upon initial application of HKFRS 9.

The reclassifications and remeasurements made to balances recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the date of initial
application (1 January 2018) are summarised as follows:

3.

S £ 23
‘e R M A
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-\F+_A=+—HILFE

SRANERET ST RS ST BB IS 4R
8 ()

=R P
R-ZB-NF-A-—HRAHEZRRZFE
HEERZHAT L RGBT ERBUBHRSE
R (%)

BB EEREIN [£HM TR I(E)
AEHEMEREENS  AEEZ T
BEAEREEBEAEBEERE KIES
BERERREERBRBERM  AAKE
EREHMEREERRE - FAETERE
HRMEEERIDEN B BRHERIAKE
FEGZAEEMSERETRRERM -

REBFREAENEEBERERBEEANE
PIERNSRYBEAZN - Fitt - A%
ERARERERBBVBRELERE IR
AL EIMNAEEBIERE -

HREBRERB(ZE—NF—A—H)%&
REMBRARPERBNEHRNET D E
MBHFFEM M T -

Measurement category 31 December 1 January
STEXER 2017 (HKAS 39) 2018 (HKFRS 9)
Original HKAS New HKFRS Bt —2-N\F
39 category 9 category +=—BA=+—H —HA—H
REEBEER FEBMBE®RE (BRE (BBMBE®RE
#395% 55l RIS oAl %2R 39%) ZRIE95)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Current financial assets
nBEEEE
Trade and other receivables Amortised cost Amortised cost
JRE M R R R LAt JE WRR TR REESHRAR FREESHR AR 191,085 191,085
Cash and cash equivalents Amortised cost Amortised cost
RELREEEY RERHR AR TR SHR AR 350,724 350,724
Total financial asset balances
REBMEELR 541,809 541,809

There have been no changes to the classification or measurement of
financial liabilities as a result of the application of HKFRS 9.
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Adoption of New and Amended HKFRSs
(Continued)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 and the related clarification to HKFRS 15 (hereinafter referred
to as “HKFRS 15") presents new requirements for the recognition
of revenue, replacing HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts”, and several revenue-related Interpretations. HKFRS 15
establishes a single comprehensive model that applies to contracts with
customers and two approaches to recognising revenue; at a point in
time or overtime. The model features a contract-based five-step analysis
of transactions to determine whether, how much and when revenue is
recognised.

HKFRS 15 has been applied retrospectively without restatement, with
the cumulative effect of initial application recognised as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 January 2018. In
accordance with the transition guidance, HKFRS 15 has only been
applied to contracts that are incomplete as at 1 January 2018.

RANFTR] AL I BB F] BB B 4R

HER (&)

PN
RZZB-NF-A-HAHBZRBRZFE
HBEERZHAT LR EEITEBUBHRS
=8 (%)

BB B EERE 155 KEEF SR
KA

BEVBERESENE 1SR RBEMBRS
FERFENS R 2 BEER AT EME [ FEM
B|EERIE 1558 ) 2FIFEBRANFTIR
T BREAGAERE 18R [MAI &
BERTERE 115 [ZEAL ] RETRA
HEARE - BEMBEWMEENF 155K
BRAREFPANZE —2EBE A RERK
AZ TR « P — Ml f B s — R B
BA - ZBEAZERSANRNRER B
RPETHELEDN - NEERBHER
WA~ FERWA 2 S5 M FERWA 2 B

ERPBHREENE 1S FECENER -
HAXETAES > HEXRERAELZ R
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Adoption of New and Amended HKFRSs 3. BRANETET L R AMEET BB ISR
(Continued) AR (58)
New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual periods R-ZE-—NE—A—BRELZBEBZEE
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 (Continued) HEERZHTILIRKEBITETBHBRE
28| (&)
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (Continued) BB BREERFE 155 FKEFEF SR
YWim |(4E)
In summary, the following reclassification was made to the amounts @iEms  REXERBHRH(ZE—N\F—
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at the A—R)8REGRe MBIk R ER 2 RIBEE
date of initial application (1 January 2018): HTRBEH DM :
Carrying Carrying
amount on amount on
31 December 1 January
2017 under 2018 under
HKAS 18 HKFRS 15
REEBETT REEBHE
ZRIZE185% 2RI SE155%
R=B—+tF RZB-—N\F
+=A=+—H Reclassification —BA—Bz2
ZEREE EEibak| IREE
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETFT ARETFT ARBTFT
Current liabilities RENEE
Trade and other payables FERTBR R & E b fE (< 5018 176,949 (11,731) 165,218
Contract liabilities aHBE - 11,731 11,731

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the receipt in advance of
sales of goods, and treated as receipt in advance, for which revenue
is recognised when the goods are delivered and the customer has
accepted the goods. The full amount of approximately RMB11,731,000
recognised in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 has no material impact on the Group's
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and the consolidated statement of cash flows.
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3. Adoption of New and Amended HKFRSs

(Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

RANFTR] AL I BB F] BB B 4R

HER (&)

T

ERMENRER BRI BEHREER

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements, REBETERGEVEBRERER - BT
certain new and amended HKFRSs have been published but are not yet A REEET BB B mE ERKEEME

effective, and have not been adopted early by the Group.

ARER - B E AR E R R -

HKFRS 16 Leases' BBV B E LR HE"
F165
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts BB ISR E %R REEE 43
ERVE
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative &I aRE %A HBEAME A
Compensation' F 95 (IBFTA) B
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between BB ISR E %R P& N BB
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate FI0HMBEEES NAKAERE
or Joint Venture® AERIZE 28 5% MHESEA
(BETAR) BEES
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment ERGRTERE 199 FHEUSET - SR
or Settlement!’ CEHEN) A
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates BEBGTERZE 285 REEQFINEE
and Joint Ventures' (BETA) ¥z REER
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material? BERBGEEAE 15 FERAMEHNTE?
and HKAS 8 REZ SR
%85 (BRI A)
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business* B WA LR EBHEE
F 35 (BRI A)
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to B EWE LR HEMEwELER
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle' (BETA) —E-HEFEFE
Tt FREH
ZEEE
HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' BB (BRI SRS FriS TR IE 2 T 1
REZEg) 2E TEE
F235
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 { RZE—NF-—A—BREERBZFE
AR A3
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 2 RZZ_EF-—A-BREERBRZFE
HRR A3
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 3 RZZEZ—F—A—HBkHERBZFE
SR
4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisition for which the 4 HEBABRAE T -_TF—A—Hx%2

‘Gz BEFEHMMAER 2R ZER
Bt REBEERBLER

acquisition date is on or offer the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020

XA B R EE

3 Effective date not yet determined 2
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Adoption of New and Amended HKFRSs

(Continued)
Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be adopted
in the Group’s accounting policy for the first period beginning on or
after the effective date of the pronouncement. Information on new
and amended HKFRSs that are expected to have impact on the Group's
accounting policies is provided below. Other new and amended HKFRSs
are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”
HKFRS 16 “Leases” replaced HKAS 17 and three related Interpretations.

As disclosed in note 2.12, currently the Group classifies leases into
finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the lease
arrangements differently, depending on the classification of the lease.
The Group enters into leases as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that lessors
account for their rights and obligations under a lease. However, once
HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between finance
leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients,
lessees will account for all leases in a similar way to current finance
lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease, the
lessee will recognise a lease liability and a corresponding “right-of-
use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee
would recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance
of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a
practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting
model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months
or less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which case the rental
expenses would continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over
the lease term.
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Adoption of New and Amended HKFRSs
(Continued)
Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee of
leases of office premises which are currently classified as operating
leases. The application of the new accounting model is expected to lead
to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing
of the expense recognition in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income over the period of the lease.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group plans to use the
practical expedient to grandfather the previous assessment of which
existing arrangements are, or contain, leases. The Group will therefore
apply the new definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that
are entered into on or after the date of initial application. In addition,
the Group plans to elect the practical expedient for not applying the
new accounting model to short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective approach
for the adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 and will recognise
the cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to the
opening balance of equity at 1 January 2019. Comparative information
will not be restated. In addition, the Group plans to elect the practical
expedient for not applying the new accounting model to short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets and not to perform a full
review of existing leases and apply HKFRS 16 only to new contracts.
Furthermore, the Group plans to use the practical expedient to account
for leases for which the lease term ends within 12 months from the
date of initial application as short-term lease. As disclosed in note 34,
as at 31 December 2018, the Group’s future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases amount to approximately
RMB6,434,000 for office premises, the majority of which is payable
within 5 years after the reporting date.
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Adoption of New and Amended HKFRSs 3. BRANETET L R AEMEET BB ISR

(Continued) AR (58)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued) EEMEMRERZE BN KEREER
(&)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) EBBHEERFE16% [E/(E)

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, BRHERHECEEAEEEIN  ~EE

the Group expects that the transition adjustments to be made upon TEE - BRERERVBREENZE 16

the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 will not be material. However, the KERTIEHAEERBEBTIEKR - A

expected changes in accounting policies as described above could i bl et RENIBE SRS

have a material impact on the Group’s financial statement from 2019 BR-E—NFUBHNITBREREEEX

onwards. s/

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements 4, BEEGTAFTTRAE

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on et RAEERBERALREAMEAZR (B

historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future RERBERIRT  HAREHELEGEZ

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. ) FHEETRE
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4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements 4. BEEESTEFTRHAE (E)
(Continued)
4.1 Estimate uncertainty 4.1 HETHBPEZE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and prepaid ¥ BERZERAMNHEENELY
lease payments and deposits for acquisition of land and BEARBEELH Y5 BERZK
property, plant and equipment BEE

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value BEMAKEDeEEEAFERLES
less costs of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, PRATERABENRSE - 5
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present FREMER  DEEFTRRRES R
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market HEHRHKEE FROTNERAET
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific REIBE M ST N EERERZE
to the asset, which requires significant judgement relating to ERTZRBREZHRATINE  TE
the level of revenue and the amount of operating costs. The B8 U A K HEFNAS 4 AR A 1 HH B K3
Group uses all readily available information in determining an B o AEEFBRERANERE R
amount that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable WERISEESENGHE  BEAEMN
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and supportable A T H AR AR DA R A 48 & AR AR Y
assumptions and projections of revenue and operating costs. oAt EmeasngdEEn
Changes in these estimates could have a significant impact RHEEEAEANTE  WAEHR
on the carrying amounts of the assets and could result in AR KA FHR BN R (B 18 2K gl
additional impairment charge or reversal of impairment in B2 FHRAREER - REWMEAR
future periods. The carrying amounts of the property, plant M - BB MEEMENEERER
and equipment and prepaid lease payments and deposit for HERKEYE BERKEDES
acquisition of property, plant and equipments as at the end of DRI AR 137,339,000t ( = F
the reporting period are approximately RMB137,339,000 (2017: —+tF : HARM 121,968,0007T)
approximately RMB121,968,000), approximately RMB59,309,000 4 ANR#59,309,000 L (—ZF—+4F :
(2017: approximately RMB60,879,000) and approximately AR 60,879,0007T) R ARE
RMB1,075,000 (2017: approximately RMB4,425,000) respectively. 1,075,000 C(ZF—+tF : HARHK

4,425,0007T) ©

Impairment of trade and other receivables FEYS R 5% R Bt JE W 5 B R 1B

Since the initial adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group makes BB B IEREAERFEOSREE - &K
allowances on items subjects to ECL (including trade and other SEREZRNEREEEEREHNIE
receivables and other financial assets measured at amortised cost) B (55 FE U AR 3R R L b JE WK IE e i
based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss BRI ENEMWERERE) ERNE
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions BENERER RTEHEER 2 BRED
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on B ERAEE 2 BERSE RE
the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as TS AR LA SR ATRE M (5T - AERER
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period as BHREMRIEHZEBREERTE
set out in note 2.8. TRAE 2 B A BRI 2 1F I B (R 5E

2.8)
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4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements 4, BEESTEHFTRAE (E)

(Continued)

4.1 Estimate uncertainty (Continued)

4.1 fEEFFRHABEE (&)

Impairment of trade and other receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate carrying amounts of
trade and other receivables (excluding prepayment and value-
added tax recoverable) to approximately RMB189,324,000
(net of ECL allowance of RMB2,133,000) and approximately
RMB18,829,000 (net of ECL allowance of approximately
RMB1,007,000) respectively.

Before the adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group assesses at the end
of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence
that trade and other receivables and other financial assets are
impaired. In determining whether there is objective evidence of
impairment, the Group takes into consideration the aging status
and the likelihood of collection by reference to the background
and repayment history of the debtors and the occurrence of
any default or disputes. Where there is objective evidence of
impairment, the amount and timing of future cash flows are
estimated based on factors such as repayment plans committed
by debtors and subsequent collections. An impairment loss is
made for trade receivables of which the present values of future
cash flows are less than their carrying amount.

As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate carrying amount of trade
and other receivables (excluding prepayment and value-added
tax recoverable) amounted to approximately RMB172,696,000
(net of loss allowance of approximately RMB2,130,000) and
approximately RMB18,389,000 (net of loss allowance of
approximately RMB1,228,000) respectively.

When the actual future cash flows are different from expected,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of trade
receivables and other items within the scope of ECL upon
application of HKFRS 9/other financial instruments before
application of HKFRS 9 and credit losses in the periods in which
such estimate has been changed.
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4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements 4. BEEESTEFTRHAE (E)

(Continued)

4.1 Estimate uncertainty (Continued) 4.1 fHEFTFHBREE (FE)
Write down of inventories MR E
The Group determines the write down for obsolescence of rEFSETREFTENHR - LE
inventories. Those estimates are made with reference to aged BEI2EFERRS T - BHRK
inventories analyses, projections of expected future saleability of ERHHEEBIMEEBNLR XA
the goods and management experience and judgement. Based ETmEL - BIEILERN - MEFEMNR
on this review, a write down of inventories will be made when HEKEERE (G ERFE - 8l
the carrying amounts of inventories decline below their estimated REBESHATENEE - ERTR
net realisable value. Due to changes in market conditions, actual AR A S BEREREENBR
saleability of goods may be different from estimation and profit AIREERfEAT BRI R A - Mt {HRTA =
or loss could be affected by differences in the estimation. The Brlge BED FEE2HPERNE
carrying amounts of inventories as at the end of the reporting HELHARK113,138,000t( ==
period is approximately RMB113,138,000 (2017: approximately —+F : HHARME 146,468,0007T) °

RMB146,468,000).

Impairment of intangible assets L ERE

The Group performs annual test on whether there has been RIEHNHF217HSHE - K
impairment of intangible assets in accordance with the accounting SESFHBRTEEEASREETA
policy stated in note 2.17. The recoverable amounts are the e A SEARAFERLEKX
higher of fair value loss costs of disposal and value in use. These REGERABERNERSE - MaHEA
calculations used in estimated of value in use require the use BEMFEAEZFEEATEREH R
of estimates and assumptions made by management on the REREEMEL MG RFRE
future operation of the business, pre-tax discount rate, and BRAATARER = AREIBGEHAEE
other assumptions underlying the value in use calculations. The FFEEHENSBEEMRSER - B
carrying amounts of intangible assets as at the end of reporting EERERPRANEEMEHOAREK
period is approximately RMB107,152,000 (2017: approximately 107,152,000 L (ZF—+F : HAR
RMB111,008,000). #111,008,0007T) °
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4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

41

4.2

Estimate uncertainty (Continued)

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in
tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses
not yet used and temporary deductible differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the unused tax credits can be utilised, management'’s assessment
is constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are
recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. The carrying
amounts of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period are approximately RMB1,523,000

(2017: approximately RMB1,719,000) and approximately
RMB16,914,000 (2017: approximately RMB17,682,000)
respectively.

Critical accounting judgements

Research and development activities

Careful judgment by the Group’s management is applied when
deciding whether the recognition requirements for development
costs have been met. This is necessary as the economic success
of any product development is uncertain and may be subject to
future technical problems at the time of recognition. Judgments
are based on the best information available at each reporting
date. In addition, all internal activities related to the research
and development of new software, products or know-how are
continuously monitored by the Group’s management.

YT EEFREDRMROBIRDT  2018F F5 103

ire BRI &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

4. EEGEMEETRAE (&)
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5. Revenue

Revenue arises mainly from manufacturing and selling of medicines and
the sales and distribution of medicines and healthcare products.

5.

A
WAFTERELERFEEEMARFEER
Hﬁﬁ;?:\umu)gﬂ%fkm °

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T AREFT

Manufacturing and selling of medicines AEMIEE S 433,453 427,022
Sales and distribution of medicines HE R HEEm MRS

and healthcare products* 433,670 363,264

867,123 790,286

pe For the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue from sales and
distribution of medicines and healthcare products included the revenue
from sales management services of pharmaceutical products of
approximately RMB 15,857,000 (2017: approximately RMB11,215,000).

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are disclosed in
note 35(b) to these consolidated financial statements.

*

BE-_Z—N\E+-_A=+—HILEE
SHE N 88 B ap I AR 1 GB AR A B HE BE R 6E
EEERBBAL AR 15,857,0007(=
T—LF HARM11,215,0007T) °

FRAASENIZER 2E-—THIBRE
RZEEA BRI 35(0) °
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Segment Reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised
by a mixture of both business lines (products and services) and
geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s executive directors, being the chief
operating decision maker, for the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the following three
reportable segments. No operating segments have been aggregated to
form the following reportable segments.

(i)  Manufacturing and selling of medicines;
(i) Sales and distribution of medicines and healthcare products; and

(iii)  Provision of research and development services of modern
biological technology.

Currently, all the Group's activities above are carried out in the PRC. No
reportable operating segment has been aggregated.

The first segment derives its revenue from the manufacturing and sales
of medicines.

The second segment derives its revenue from sales and distribution of
medicines and healthcare products and providing sales management
services of pharmaceutical products.

The third segment derives its revenue from the provision of research &
development services.
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6. Segment Reporting (Continued) 6. DEP=FR (HF&)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) PEEE -BERER

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s executive

E‘Jt.:ﬂé”*ﬁ%’«%fﬁ&”*ﬁla? o BB R
CAEESRITERIRATERE

directors monitor the results, assets and liabilities attributable to T EAHBOMEERES  BEER
each reportable segment on the following bases: afE:

Segment assets include all current and non-current assets with NEEBEREMERDRIERDE
the exception of deferred tax assets. Segment liabilities include all E-E BRERENEEE - 58

current and non-current liabilities with the exception of current
taxation and deferred tax liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

The measure used for reporting segments profit is “adjusted

BEREMBRBMIERBAEMGE B
BREEIRIEMETRIARE

WARRXTE2ERBYRELD
HERMEROMELNRAXIER
“*Bﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁim
RS RO BESATRRDED

RERDE GO TER [ KRR

EBT”. To arrive at adjusted EBT, the Group's earnings are EBTJ BENEHEBT A£LEZ

further adjusted for items not specifically attributed to individual AR T8I R BRME R 5 302 18

segments, such as directors’ fees and auditor’s remuneration and BELE—THE  WEZEHMRZ

other head office or corporate administration costs. BRIz  H@MRERRARTT
B o

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
adjusted EBT, the executive directors are provided with segment

Bl B A RE A B EBTZ 9 #F & #
S BITEERREHBEBEA(RE

information concerning revenue (including inter-segment DEEUWA) - DR EFEER A
revenue), impairment loss of trade and other receivables, reverse A FE UK BR FX N E b R UK R T B R (B S
of impairment loss on trade and other receivables, write down 1B FE AR Bk K H M E W SR IE AR E
of inventories, reversal of write down of inventories, used by the E R R B - MOR T & 17 B MUR#E [El
segments in their operations. Inter-segment revenue are priced B EER - P ERWMATIELE I

with reference to prices charged to external parties for similar
orders.

The Group changed the measure for disclosing the reportable
segment profit from adjusted earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation to adjusted EBT. Therefore,
certain comparative figures in the segment reporting have been
reclassified.

BALRBLURTEEL W ERMETT

EfE e

AEEBHERRD BEFZHE
BNBRFE - B TEREHEAIZ
R %IJE&?%%%M%EBT A
DHBERZETUEEBTEEETD
*Eo
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6. Segment Reporting (Continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as
provided to the Group's executive directors for the purpose of
resources allocation and assessment of segment performance for
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 is set out below:

=) =+ s

iR e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2-ZT- \F+-A=+—HILFE

6. DEPE2HR (&)

(a) DL - BEERES(H)
REE_Z-NFRZF—LF+=
A=+—BLFEZERS R &I
DERERAAEBNTESRBEES
REBRRD B2 EBEN T

Sales and distribution
Manufacturing and of medicines and Research &
selling of medicines healthcare products Development services Total
LENRESR HERABERRRARR i st
For the year ended 31 December 217 2017 217 2017
BET-A=t-BLFE Bt 3 3-tE E-tE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTTL ARETTL
Segment revenue ABRA
Revenue from external customers — SMREEIA 47,022 363,264 = 790,286
Inter-seqment revenue GELN 35357 - - 35,357
Reportable segment revenue  WEFHTHA 462379 363,264 = 825,643
Reportable segment (loss)/profit  WEHAH (BE) /¥l
(adjusted EBT) (f3%EBT) 29,021 47,925 (3710) 73,236
Write down of inventories g (10,814) (1,646) - (12,460)
Reversal of wiite down of inventories T EHEI&R 85 02 - 307
Impairment of: BE:
- trade receivables -BUER (350) = - (350)
—other receivables - Bt ElzE (1) - (401) (402)
Reverse of impairment loss on: EEERE
- trade receivables ~ el 3 I - 5
- other receivables ~EfpElsE 129 8 - 137
Income tax expense FiERfx (2,975) (12,024) 100 (14,899)
Reportable segment assets ERATEE 734,733 183,303 184,448 1,102,484
Reportable segment liabilities ~ WERAHEE 249,704 60,183 14,888 304,775

The Group's customer base is diversified and no customer with
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue.
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6. DE2IR (E

6. Segment Reporting (Continued) )
(b) ARFELIBUA - - BR - EERES

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or

loss, assets and liabilities

E

2018 2017
—E-N\F A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT
Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue A R R FRUA 904,751 825,643
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 73 PRI 85 (37,628) (35,357)
Consolidated Revenue RAEWA 867,123 790,286
Profit ol
Reportable segment profit A ERER D 265 7 70,860 73,236
Elimination of inter-segment profit 73 B R 14K 8 (706) (631)
Reportable segment profit derived from REAREBINREFH ] AR
the Group's external customers AE R 70,154 72,605
Unallocated head office and ROMEBRIEERS
corporate expense (2,510) (2,277)
Consolidated profit before taxation TR RITER A Y ) 67,644 70,328
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AR DI EE 1,118,527 1,102,484
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 53 B F P R TR K 88 (133,954) (103,971)
984,573 998,513
Deferred tax assets BIEIEEE 1,523 1,719
Consolidated total assets IREBERTE 986,096 1,000,232
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities AR EF A E 291,888 324,775
Elimination of inter-segment payables 2 EBE R A SRIB K 8H (135,287) (105,213)
156,601 219,562
Current taxation BREATIE 13,749 13,220
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIEE E 16,914 17,682
Consolidated total liabilities e BERE 187,264 250,464
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iR e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2-ZT- \F+-A=+—HILFE

6. Segment Reporting (Continued) 6. DEPZH (F&)
(c) Revenue from major products and services () REFEERRBRENBA
The following is an analysis of the Group'’s revenue from its major AT REAREEE 2 E I RB K
products and services: AT
2017
—E—tF
RMB’000
ARBFT
Medicines and healthcare products B MARTE S 779,071
Sales management services of B i E BT EIRS
pharmaceutical products 11,215
790,286
(d) Geographic Information (d) HhIEER
The Group's revenue and results from operations mainly derived AEBHRARKEXEFERGS
from activities in the PRC. The principal assets of the Group were WEBES - RFER - REBEMHE
located in the PRC during the year. Accordingly, no analysis by EEEMRTE - Bt - BEEREMRH
geographical segment is provided. BT o
(e) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers (e) AMHOREBEFEHHBKA
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group derives revenue HE_ZT-N\F+A=+—HILHF
from manufacturing and selling of medicines and healthcare B AEERE-—REEZREFER
products at a point in time in type of customer: EIDHRBEERHE SEmRIREE
m A

Manufacturing and selling of FEREEER

medicines
Sales and distribution of SHE Mo IEEE
medicines and healthcare ARG &

products




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BRSHRAR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE—T—\EI-A=t—RBILEE

7. Other Revenue and Other Net Income 7. HWAREMWB A FEEE
2017
—T—tF
RMB’000
ARBFT
Other revenue Ht A
Interest income from bank deposits FATFERFLEWA 3,603
Interest income from principal IRAAUTF R BURA
protected deposits 1,300
Government subsidies: AT B
— released from deferred revenue — B B RN ES 1,280
— directly recognised in profit or loss —EEAER 1,191
Others Hit 511
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease payments & &7 & KR IE RS 1,030
8,915
Other net income Ht B 5
Reverse of impairment loss on FEU AR FUR (B s R B
trade receivables 52
Reverse of impairment loss on H ) fEMRIB R (B B R 5 )
other receivables 137
Reversal of write down of inventories FEMRED 307
Net foreign exchange gains T 5 W 5 58 77
Others Hh 280
853

l-'
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8. Profit before Taxation
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging the following:

ire B ER R AT &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE_Z-\F+_A=+—HILFE

8. ER¥iAIRA

B A i A1) D AN BR LA T B I8 -

2018 2017
= % —FtF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREEFIT
(a) Finance costs (a) MBER
Interest on bank loans and other RITER R EMEERFE
borrowings 1,787 3,229
(b) Staff costs (including (b) EIRT(BIEEEMHE)
directors’ emoluments) (note) (PEE)
Contributions to defined EREFGRRGT R EER
contribution retirement plans 14,502 12,985
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TENREMEF 68,875 58,526
83,377 71,511
Note: Staff cost of approximately RMB24,292,000, RMB17,992,000, M5k BIRRAKNARY24,292,0007T © AR

RMB27,777,000 and RMB13,316,000* (2017: approximately
RMB24,054,000, RMB16,202,000, RMB23,781,000 and RMB7,474,000)
are included in cost of sales, selling and distribution costs, administrative
expenses and other operating expenses respectively.

17,992,0007t ~ AR#27,777,0007t & A
R#¥13,316,000t*(ZT—tF : HAR
#24,054,0007T + AR#¥16,202,0007T
AR# 23,781,000 7T & A R# 7,474,000
TL) D RIGTASEERS  HERDHERA
X ITERAX R EAME SR -
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iR e IS ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-/\F+-_HA=+—HILFE

8. Profit before Taxation (Continued)
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging the following:

(Continued)

8. BRBiIALER (&)
B BRI A D ASR LA TR IR - (#)

(c) Otheritems
Amortisation:
— prepaid lease payments
— charged to consolidated
statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income
— transfer to
construction-in-progress

—intangible assets*
Depreciation
Impairment of:

— trade receivables*

— other receivables*
Write down of inventories*
Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment*
Auditor’s remuneration
Auditor’s non-audit services

remuneration

- Operating lease charges:
~ minimum lease payment

“Other operating expenses”
rofit or loss and other comprehensive

2017
—tF
RMB’000
AR¥ETT
(c) HfhmH
s
—FENREREA
—FrAfRE BT
REAEERER
1,570
—HHEERTR
628
2,198
—mEE 4,150
e 13,373
VEAERE
— FEURBR R * 350
— H fh FE YRR IE 402
WomAF & * 12,460
HEME - B KR EHEIE
106
IZE RN S 1,170
ZEENIEE S
425
KERERRY
HEBERK 8,548
FERAR 355,062
HEEA
(RIEMIFE8(b) BT
TEREAMER)* 29,386

presented * HEESBEAAGFBEREMEERER

B [ B RS A e
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(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S + 23
iR ISR M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z— ) \E+-_A=+—HILFE

Income Tax expense 9. FTEHiAAX
Income tax expense in the consolidated statement of profit (a) RGEEERBEREAMEZEWRERIEN
or loss and other comprehensive income represents: FreBiBaiE
2018 2017
= Y- T4
Note RMB’'000 RMB’'000
P s AR¥T T ARBEFT
Current tax BN IR
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") PRSI
(TEEmEHR]) 17,152 16,339
Deferred tax IEERIE
Origination and reversal of T ZRENOITA KL
temporary differences 27(b) (572) (1,440)
16,580 14,899

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for as the Group
had no assessable profits to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
(2017: Nil).

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, two subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC are qualified as high technology enterprise.
In accordance with the applicable Enterprise Income Tax Law
of the PRC, these subsidiaries are subject to the PRC EIT at a
preferential rate of 15%.

The Company and other PRC subsidiaries are subject to the
PRC EIT at a rate of 25% (2017: 25%) for the year ended 31
December 2018.
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ERBE N - MR AFRE AL JEE
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R_ZE—N\FER=_ZE—tF+=A
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MEBAREGERK AR RN -
BIEEATREMSERGSRE  ZE5H
B R EIZEIE 15% ME BB BB &
EFTER

BHE-_Z—)\F+=-A=+—HLHF
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iR e R Rk I T
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\F+A=+—AILEE

9. Income Tax expense (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting

profit at the applicable tax rates:

9. FrEHiRx ()

Profit before taxation

Notional tax on profit before taxation,
calculated at the rates applicable to
profits in the countries concerned

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of unused tax losses
not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised

Income tax expenses

=

(b) FISHMAXEREAREAENS
AR
2017
—E—+F
RMB’000
AREFIT
R A% A& A 70,328
RRAEMAEEROEFEARE
FTERBATNE R ERIE
14,970
AAHF AL OFRETE 1,057
IERTRU RIS & (2,192)
RERH AT AR IER
ki 1,064
AR ERNTIBEE
FriSifsz 14,899
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SR A B RS R R M5

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-—Z—\F+-_A=+—ALFE

10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 10. EERERITHAEHME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) Hong RIEE BN AHEDIE 383(1) Rk AR (HE
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure EENEERRUFE2HBBRENESIE
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation and the chief ERBITHAR (BB ) F BT -

executives emoluments (that is, general manager) are as follows:

Executive directors BITES

Mr. Zhang Feng REBEE

Mr. Xu Yan He (General Manager) REMTAE (HaE2)
Non-executive directors FHTES

Ms. Yu Lin Tzt

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun B RS

Mr. Song Ting Jiu REAFHE

Mr. Zhao Wen Liang X REE
Independent non-executive directors BN FHTES
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon VY& vitad

Mr. Poon Ka Yeung ERHEE

Mr. Zhang Jian Zhou SR EE

RUTBERH
I .
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= + 23
‘e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \E+-_A=+—HILFE

10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments
(Continued)

10. EERSRITHRAEME ()

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits- scheme 2017
fees in kind contributions Total
a2 RIRETE —E+F
ok NEWN = X #aEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFT AR®EFT ARBFT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Zhang Feng SR E 44 - - 44
Mr. Xu Yan He (General Manager) RIALE (MAE) 44 601 23 668
Non-executive directors FHITES
Ms. Yu Lin Tt 44 - - 44
Mr. Liu Zhan Jun B 5B 44 - _ 44
Mr. Song Ting Jiu REALLE 44 - _ 44
Mr. Zhao Wen Liang N REE 44 - - 44
Independent non-executive directors BIYEHTES
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon DKL 212 = - 212
Mr. Poon Ka Yeung EEBEE 106 - - 106
Mr. Zhang Jian Zhou SRAEE 100 - - 100
682 601 23 1,306

During both years, no remuneration were paid or payable by the Group
to any of the directors or any of the 5 highest paid individuals set out
in note 11 as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement under
which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
both years.
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11.

12.

13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Individuals with Highest Emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one (2017: one)
are directors of the Company whose emoluments are included in
the disclosures in note 10. The aggregate of the emoluments of the
remaining four (2017: four) individuals are as follows:

11.

= =+ 23
‘e SRR
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z— ) \E+-_A=+—HILFE

REHNES
REEBRBHMEEZ T —&(CF—+
G —%B) BRAREF - AHBRERM
100 EBINE(Z2—+F : NE) BB
HIE B PF BB TR T

2018 2017

—E-N\#F —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREFIT

Salaries and other emoluments Fe REMME 1,856 1,796
Retirement scheme contributions BRIRGTEIME K 182 117
2,038 1,913

Their emoluments are all within the band of HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB876,000) for years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

Dividends

The directors do not propose the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share has been based on the
profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB48,089,000 (2017: approximately RMB50,257,000) and the
weighted average number of 1,678,000,000 ordinary shares (2017:
1,678,000,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share equals to basic earnings per share as there
were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for both years
presented.
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12.

13.

Bzz-_Z—N\Erk=-Z—+&%+=HA
=+ HLEFERSFMNEENTMHEE
NFEZTHEITE 1,000,000 T (FHNRAR
876,000 7T) ©

iz B
BEEV RSB RERNEEZE-_ZT—N\F+-A
=+ ALEFEEFARE(ZZT—tF:
) o

BREF

BREREF
BREANBFERERNQAES AE LS
A AR 48,089,000 T(ZE—+4F : 4
AR #¥50,257,0007) * UERAFEERNE
BT LB A INFE 520 1,678,000,000 A%
(ZZ—+4F : 1,678,000,000 P& L @AY ) 5t
§ °

SREARF
e 1 7 ] 2 4 4 30 R B E SN B E 84
AR WL R A S N B R EA
BRI -
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iR e Rk I T
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT— ) \F+-A=+—HItFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. Y% - BMERZME

Cost RHAE
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-/\§-A-R
Additions RE
Disposals HE
Transfer gx
At 31 December 2018 R=B-NETZR=1-8
Accumulated depreciation ZiRERAE

and impairment
At 1 January 2018 R=Z-\§-F-A
Charge for the year TEELH
Eliminated on disposal of assets HEAERYH
At 31 December 2018 R=B-NEtZA=1-8
Carrying amounts BEE
At31 December 2018 RZB-N\E+ZA=1-H

l-'
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A BT ERER M5

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE—T— \F+-A=+—BILEFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 14. )% ~ BEKFME (&)
Furniture,
Leasehold Plant and Motor fituresand ~ Construction-
Building  improvements machinery vehicles equipment n-progress Total
&Nz R %8
BT EV I ) G at: Rk TRIE &5

RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARRTT  ARMTT  ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Cost REHAE
At 1 January 2017 R-F—+£-f-H 86,605 2,340 107,631 2532 10,262 23120 232490
Additions AE 2,883 - 2,976 1,844 1,01 13,01 21,785
Disposals it - - (3935) (355) (594) (26,002) (30,886)
Derecognised on deregstration HE-ENBLAE
of a subsidiary B - - S S (7) = ()
Transfer &% 2201 - - - - (2220 -
At 31 December 2017 R-8-t&+-A=1-H 91,715 2,340 106,672 4,021 10,672 7962 223,382
Accumulated depreciation ZHERAE
and impairment
At1 January 2017 R-E—+E-f-H (21,889) (1.964) (58,892) (1,718) (7,082) (834) (92,379)
Charge for the year AEESH (4,012 (56) (7999) (286) (1,020 = (13373)
Eiminated on deregstration HE-ANEARRES
of a subsidiary - - - - 7 - 7
Eliminated on disposal of assets HERER - - 3,446 37 548 - 4331
Eliminated on transfer EREUH 387 - - - - (387) -
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE+ZA=+-A (25514) (2,020) (63,445) (1,667) (7,547) (1,221) (101,414)
Carrying amounts HEf
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F+-A=t-A 66,201 320 43227 2,354 3,125 6,741 121,968
* At 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’s buildings with a total * RIE-N\E+ZA=+—8 A&EEE
carrying amount of approximately RMB31,800,000 (2017: approximately THREEEmELNARK 31,800,000t (=F
RMB33,159,000) were pledged to secure the Group’s bank facility of —+F : HHARHK33,159,0007T) HIIEFE
RMB 100,000,000 (2017: RMB100,000,000). ERAREERITRE AR 100,000,0007T
ZZ—+4 : AR¥100,000,0007T)HIHE

o

RYTBEREEREMEMROABMRAT  2018FFH 119



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=~ =+ 23
iR e SRR EE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

15. Prepaid Lease Payments

15. A HEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Cost BRERAE
At 1 January R—H—H 72,000 110,238
Disposal k= - (38,238)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 72,000 72,000
Accumulated amortisation E-Sg 5]
At 1 January Hn—H—H (11,121) (10,660)
Charge for the year NEEZ M (1,570) (1,570)
Eliminated on disposal of assets HEE ER - 1,737
Transfer to construction-in-progress EHEERETRE - (628)
At 31 December R+-_A=+—8H (12,691) (11,121)
Carrying amounts BRMEE
At 31 December R+—-_A=+—~H 59,309 60,879

The prepaid lease payments represent interest in land situated in the
PRC which were amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

On 19 October 2017, the Group entered into the resumption
agreements with Lianjiang County Land Development Centre and the
Lianjlang Committee, pursuant to which the Lands will be redeemed
by the Lianjiang County Land Development Centre for a total
consideration of approximately to RMB63,869,000.

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s prepaid lease payments with
a total carrying amount of approximately RMB59,309,000 (2017:
approximately RMB60,879,000) were pledged to secure the Group's
bank facility of RMB 100,000,000 (2017: RMB100,000,000).

ZENEEFREUNFENEE - hig
& ZERNEEFEREENRRER
RBESH o

RZZE—+t&+A+NA AEE@REET
FEWBERPLRBIEZ SR L IREHRD
2B BEITIHLHERPOLHUNER
BH AR 63,869,000 TfEZS L -

R-_ZE—NE+-_A=+—8 A&£H
MR TEE N ARES59,309,000L( = F
—+tF: H AR%60,879,0007T ) B FE
NEERBEEALAEERITHREAR
# 100,000,000 t( — T —+F: AR
100,000,000 7T) Hy G ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE—T—\E+-A=+—HItEE

16. Intangible Assets 16. B EE

Anesthetic
drug
production
Computer and selling Customer Selling
software  Trademarks rights  Trade name list licences Total
R
Ejus []:] EHE £K28 EFZE  HENTR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETT  ARETR ARETE  ARETn  ARETT  ARETR
Note 16(a) Note 16(a) Note 16(b)
itk 16() fifzH16() fitE16(0)
Cost R
At 1 January 2017 and “E-tE-A-BR
31 December 2017 “E-tE+-f=1-H 676 75 53,143 46,483 39,502 1,007 140,886
Addition NE 112 - - - - - 112
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\E+-A=t-H 788 75 53,143 46,483 39,502 1,007 140,998
Accumulated amortisation Rt BEREE
and impairment
At 1 January 2017 RZE—t5-f-H (676) (79) - - (24,170) (807) (25,728)
Charge for the year REESH - - - - (3,950) (200) (4,150)
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—+F+-A=1-H
1 January 2018 k=F-N\E-A-H (676) (75) - - (28,120) (1,007) (29,878)
Charge for the year REERM (18) = = = (3.950) = (3.968)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=1-A (694) (75) & = (32,070) (1,007) (33,846)
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+ZA=1-H 94 - 53,143 46,483 7432 - 107,152
At 31 December 2017 RZB-tE+-A=+-A - - 53,143 46,483 11,382 - 111,008
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T E B TSR R M5

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-T—\E+-A=+—HItEE

16. Intangible Assets (Continued) 16. B EE (&)

(a) Anesthetic drug production and selling right and trade (a) MBEEHEEREKAE

name
The recoverable amounts, which were assessed by reference to
a valuation carried out by Verity Appraisals Company Limited,
an independent qualified professional valuer with appropriate
qualification and experience in the valuation of similar assets
in the relevant industry, of the anesthetic drug production and
selling right and trade name based on the estimated value-
inuse calculations were higher than their carrying amounts at
31 December 2018 and 2017. Accordingly, no provision for
impairment loss for anesthetic drug production and selling right or
trade name is considered necessary.

The recoverable amount of the anesthetic drug production and
selling right is determined based on value in use calculations.
These calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budget approved by the executive directors covering a five-year
period. Cash flows beyond five-year period are extrapolated using
an estimated weighted average growth rate of 2% (2017: 3%)
which is consistent with the forecasts. The growth rates used do
not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the medical
industries. The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of
21% (2017: 21%). The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant segments.

The recoverable amount of trade name is determined based on
the fair value of trade name as measured using a royalty rate of
4.5% (2017: 4.5%) on sales and discount rate of 21% (2017:
21%). The annual sales was projected based on financial budgets
approved by the executive directors covering a five-year period
and has been extrapolated using an average 2% (2017: 3%)
growth rate. The average 2% (2017: 3%) growth rate is based
on the average 10-year consumer price index in the PRC and
does not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the
pharmaceutical industries.

R G EHE R BER & 2 b 22 2 55
BAREBREOAIRESE (2R
BYRAEENBLAEREXME
Bt ERR AR (REEHEBT
ERUBEETHRENERRER)IE
HABERETHE) SR EER=-F
—NER_Z—tH+_H=+—H
RBRTE(E o Bt - 78 b i I L 2 3
AR EE R RIEL R ERERRE -

TR L EE S AR A RS R TR A R £
BIIRBEREENTETAMERE °
ZENENAERERTESRHAEZR
FHMRAEREENR 2 RIEAM
AE-BERFHZREREEM2%
T —F  3%) WfAEH T
R (BRI B0 ETIER - AN
BRENGHBABEETENRITISIE
X -RERENFTRER/21%(=F
—tF 21%) - ERAMNKRE DA
BERE - WRIRA R BB AR E R ©

¥BRBOATKESEIREEEN
45% (= —+HF :45%) Far g
WERGBERR21% (- T —+4:
21%) B2 (B BB AFTERE
E o FEEEDRERNITESH AR
ERNTHMNTREELETREA - W8
2% (ZZF—+t%F : 3%) FHEER
FE o 2% (ZZF—+F : 3%)FY
#RERENPE10FFHHEEERK
BH R R BABHETERPFHIE
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16. Intangible Assets (Continued)
(@) Anesthetic drug production and selling right and trade
name (Continued)
The anesthetic drug production and selling right and trade
name has an indefinite useful life which was assessed by the
management at the end of the reporting period.

The anesthetic drug production and selling right and the trade
name used to produce revenue to the segment of manufacturing
and selling of medicines under Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao
Pharmaceutical Company Limited.

(b) Customer list

The customer list has a finite useful life and is amortised on a
straight-line basis over 10 years. The useful life of the customer
list is determined with reference to the estimated future revenue
from the customer list which is based on historical information.
The management is of the view that the future economic benefits
that can be derived from the customer list beyond the 10-year
period are insignificant.

The customer list used to produce revenue to the segment of
manufacturing and selling of medicines under Fuzhou Neptunus
Fuyao Pharmaceutical Company Limited.

17. Deposit for Acquisition of Property, Plant and

Equipment

The deposit of approximately RMB1,075,000 (2017: approximately
RMB4,425,000) mainly represents deposit to acquire property,
plant and equipment for the production base in Fuzhou. During the
year, additional deposit of approximately RMB1,075,000 (2017:
approximately RMB12,526,000) was paid and approximately
RMB4,425,000 (2017: approximately RMB9,015,000) was reclassified
as property, plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-\F+_RA=+—HILFE

16. BILEE (&)

(a) m&&@%%&%%%%%@

M HEEREELREFELAEABERE
FRER - YHEREBR2ZRPRET
AP

i B 22 S e S S A TE A R A e M
BT RBHEERNAINEREER
SHEDEEERA ©

(b) BEFEE
BB EERE A AFRI S
ERI0FREE -  RPZEMAERA
E@E%%ﬁﬁriﬁﬂﬁﬂmxa
BEPBEMEFARAREEMEE -
BERA  10FHBBE ﬁa%ﬁ
HENRREES=IEEW °

EPABRARARNEERERESR
PR X B H % ap A EE M BH ) RREE AR MR
Ao

17. BBV  BEEXENZSE

ZEFHANREE,075000 TRE (—E—+
£ AR 4,425,000 7T) EB A AEN
WAEEEMBEYE - BEKRENERS -
REERN  BEXNHARE 1,075,000 (=
T+ G AR 12,526,000 7T ) RBIMNE
S RHARE 4425000 (ZF—+LF: 4
AR#¥9,015,00070) HEFH DR AWE - K
=G
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-T—\E+-A=+—HItEE

18. Inventories

18. 78
2018 2017
—E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Raw materials =R 63,013 86,046
Work-in-progress paa I n 20,618 20,388
Finished goods Uk 29,507 40,034
113,138 146,468

The analysis of the amounts of inventories recognised as expense and
included in profit or loss is as follows:

BRARASX LA ABENFESEOITN

T
2018 2017
—=-N\F I
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
5T AR¥T T ARETF T
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFERESRE 356,864 342,909
Write-down of inventories WoREE (i) 5,970 12,460
Reversal of write down of inventories FEMR D (i) (608) (307)
362,226 355,062
Notes: 5T
()  As at 31 December 2018, write down of inventories was approximately iy MNZBE-NE+-A=+—8" ME=FE
RMB5,970,000 (2017: approximately RMB12,460,000). During the year, HANREES5,970,000 L (ZEE—+F : HHA
obsolete inventories of approximately RMB5,970,000 (2017: approximately R ¥12,460,000T) - FAMEFELH A
RMB12,460,000) were identified and recognised in the consolidated R¥5,970,000 0 (ZZE—tF : YARE
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 12,460,000 ) ERRE B M EMEEIK
mRAZR RER
(i)  During the year, obsolete inventories written down previously were sold. (i) FR - EAMBRNREFSEEEE -

Therefore, a reversal of write down of inventories of approximately
RMB608,000 (2017: approximately RMB307,000) was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

At - 7S MOR B E 49 A R % 608,000 7T
ZE—+F  HARK307,00070) RERE
BEREMEERSRPER -
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19. Trade and Other Receivables 19. BUWERF R H At B U TR IR
2018 2017
—e-n% i
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MIsE AR¥ET T AREFT
Trade receivables FEWBR X 121,565 121,790
Less: ECL allowance/allowance for B BHEEEEEES
impairment loss BB EEE (2,133) (2,130)
119,432 119,660
Bills receivables EUEE (i) 69,892 53,036
189,324 172,696
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries G EL NG (i), 33(d) 1,978 1,897
Amounts due from related companies FENS A& A RIFIA (ii), 33(d) 11,054 13,183
Amount due from the intermediate A GRS YNCIE /@]
parent company (i), 33(d) 212 138
Other receivables Eo A e R IE (iv) 7,246 4,556
Value-added tax recoverable AU B2 (E R (iii) 257 462
Prepayment and deposits AR RIES (iv) 33,919 11,337
Less: ECL allowance W TEHE RSB RHE (1,007) (1,228)
53,659 30,345
242,983 203,041

All of the trade and other receivables classified as current assets are
expected to be recovered within one year.

Notes:

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had discounted bank acceptance bills
approximately RMB69,892,000 (2017: approximately RMB53,036,000).
These bank "acceptance bills matured within one year from date of
issue. The Group considered the issuing banks of the bills are of good
credit quality, therefore, the ECL of these receivables are considered as
insignificant.

BHRALBARDEEN BRI RE
A F IR A R — AU E -

B3

The amounts are unsecured, interest tree and repayable within one year (ii)
Further details on the Group's credit policy is set out in note 32.2.

Value-added tax recoverable is value-added tax paid by the Group eligible (iii)
for offsetting value-added tax payable to arise on future revenue streams

in accordance with relevant PRC tax laws.

Other receivable, prepayment and deposits mainly represent deposits (iv)

prepaid in advance to suppliers approximately RMB29,763,000, these
ageing within one year, the management have been considered the
financial position of those supplier and with closely monitoring and
communication with the suppliers, the Group considered the impact on
ECL to be low, therefore, the impact on ECL is considered as immaterial.

RITRTRFEENBRMBRBBRAT  2018FF5R 125
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19. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 19. BUERF R H At EUR TR 1B (1)
(a) Ageing analysis (a) BRERD
Based on the invoice date, which approximates the respective AT AAREE 2 B IR R R ERER
revenue recognition dates, the ageing analysis of the trade and (HBFESEERE(ZZ—tF 1
bills receivables net of ECL (2017: net of allowance for impairment B EEEREEFE) ) IFEEAE(HE
loss), was as follows: FBWAERBBES) 20 2Rk D
#r

2018 2017

—B-N\F —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFT

Within 3 months AR 133,535 133,170

More than 3 months but less HBE3EAEDR12ME A

than 12 months 54,235 38,340

Over 12 months HBiB121E A 1,554 1,186

189,324 172,696
Trade and bills receivables are due within 30-180 days (2017: 30- FEURBR R S BN — R =R S
180 days) from the date of billing. Further details on the Group's HEFT M F302180BN(—F—+4F :
credit policy is set out in note 32.2. 302180 H) REIAE T - AEBEEE

BERAE — SR BRI HEE32.2

(b) Impairment of trade receivables (b) FEWERFURE
The movement in the ECL allowance (2017: allowance for FEWERHTESHECEEEERREE(ZZ
impairment loss) of trade receivables is as follows: —+F  FEEEEE) 2EB0T ¢
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFIT
Balance at 1 January calculated REEBGFTERIE39
under HKAS 39 e ENR—A—R
B s SR 2,130 2,282
ECL/allowance for impairment loss FRBERZEREES
recognised during the year B/ REEIEEE 272 350
ECL/allowance for impairment loss FABEZEEES
reversed during the year B REESIERE (61) (52)
Amount written off during the year FAMBE ST (208) (450)
At 31 December RS = I=E == 2,133 2,130
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19. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 19. BRI R Hth FE UL FRIE (4&)
(c) Impairment of other receivables (c) Eﬂﬂﬂ?lﬂl IE;EJUE
The movement in the ECL allowance (2017: loss allowance) of Hib e BB S EEBRE (=
other receivables is as follows: T—+5F : BFEEE) 2EFH0OT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARBEFT
Balance at 1 January calculated under BEFE ST AERFE395%
HKAS 39 STEMR— A — B 1,228 963
ECL/allowance for impairment FAERZ B EEEE
loss recognised during the year VERIEY SEi=b it = 402
ECL/allowance for impairment loss FRERZBHEESE
reversed during the year BB EEE (216) (137)
Uncollectible amount written off MEE T e EEE (5) -
At 31 December R+=—HA=+—H 1,007 1,228
20. Contract Liabilities 20. 6B E
2018 2017
ZEB-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T ARETIT
Contract liabilities arising from ELEBTBRKREIR
receipt in advance ZEREIE 13,378 =
The contract liabilities represented the aggregate amount of the EHBEEIRERERARERETZ
transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that are BABENRZEREEE - NREBTEH -
unsatisfied as of the end of the reporting period. The Group expects PTHREHNABITEYETONRSEBRA
the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied performance EEMFRFEZ R G REEERARA -

obligations will be recognised as revenue when the Group transfers
good or service to the customer.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s contract liabilities amount to RZE—NE+ZA=+—"H '  &x&
approximately RMB10,265,000 received in advance within one year, R—FRNBURNENEABROARE
as a practical expedient, this amount do not need to be considered for 10,265,0007C ' fER—BERBEEFR * %
the effect of a significant financing component. The remaining contract PRI ITHEEEREAMEKINTLE -
liabilities amount to approximately RMB3,113,000 received for more EREBA—FNEANEBHNAARE
than one year, and the effects of a significant financing component is 3,113,0007T * EARER D EEM o
insignificant.
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20. Contract Liabilities (Continued)

For all other contract with an original expected duration of one year or FLRTEEAEAR A —F sk — FLARBEAM
less, as permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to EHMEs BREFTAVBEREEDE 1S
these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. 5 DBEZERTHAEONR ZEREA]
TRHE -
Movements in contract liabilities BB EEE
2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Balance at 1 January R—A—Bz&# 11,731
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of recognising AFAERTAFVELABEZRAEZR
revenue during the year that was included in the aHadERd
contract liabilities at the beginning of the year (8,939)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of receiving AR —Z—N\E+=-A=+—HEizE
deposits as at 31 December 2018 EBHANBEEM 10,586
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—RBz2&% 13,378
21. Principal Protected Deposits 21. RARBFR
The principal protected deposit is the structure deposits stated at fair REBEFRREBEFRIEATFEF AR
value through profit or loss earning the minimum return for the range HETE A BE0.0% E4.75%( - T —+4F ¢
from 0.0% to 4.75% (2017: 0.0% to 4.1%) interest per annum with 0.0% Z=4.1%) FFEFE - HE|HIHAR B
maturities from 35 days to 185 days (2017: 30 days to 95 days). 35KRE185K(ZZE—+F : 30KEISK) °
As at 31 December 2018, all principal protected deposit have been RZE—NF+ZA=+—H8"  FIERAK

matured and no outstanding balance noted.

20. SNEE (&)

BFRE Eim R EAREE AR o
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22. Cash and Cash Equivalents 2. RERBFETEZEY

2018 2017

S S

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREFT

Cash at bank and on hand RITFER MRS 323,577 350,724

In 2018, deposits with banks carry interest at market rates which range RZZT—N\F  RITFEREDSEFREND
from 1.50% t0 2.38%. (2017: 1.35% to 2.38%) per annum. F1.50% %E2.38%(=ZF—+tF : 1.35% =
2.38%)FtE o

REBRITARSELBDEFTHRFHDY
BITAARBEHENRITERODARE
323,577,000t (ZE —+tF : AR
350,724,0007C ) - AR I IEAI B
BB - BB B INEE R D R A
B - ERERNEEERTE  ~AEEELES
MEREETIINEXEBORITHEARERL
HRBINEE o

23. EERAR K

Included in bank and cash balances of the Group, approximately
RMB323,577,000 (2017: approximately RMB350,724,000) of bank
balances denominated in RMB placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is
not a freely convertible currency. Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sales and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks that are authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

23. Trade and Other Payables H {th B+ 7R 1E

2018 2017

—E-N\fF i

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B =E AR¥T T ARETTT

Trade and bills payables R R BN RIE 46,193 70,718

Receipts in advance FEMRIE 1,430 13,160

Other payables and accruals Efh e A N R E A (if) 55,139 61,793

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries AR RN ERRFRIE (i), 33(d) 27,196 31,262
Amounts due to the immediate ENEBR A RRIE

parent company (i), 33(d) 23 -

Amounts due to related companies FEfT & A RIFIA (i), 33(d) 1,598 16

Financial liabilities measured g BT IDWINAR 1)
at amortised cost TRIBE 131,579 176,949
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23. Trade and Other Payables (Continued) 23. BRI R EMENSFRIE (&)
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or FR A FE A BRER I B A FE A SRIB TR BA R — 6
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand. An NENHERBBASRIREREE - R2
ageing analysis of trade and bills payables at the end of the reporting WHARZREZ BB ENEMNRRRER
period, presented based on the invoice date, is as follows: ERMERITOT ¢

2018 2017

—B-)N\F —FtF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETTT

Within 3 months 3EAR 13,748 57,140

4 to 6 months 4Z6(EA 27,676 6,064

7 to 12 months 721218 A 2,348 510

Over 1 year 1A 2,421 7,004

46,193 70,718

Notes: T

(i) The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. () ZETHEBAEER 2ERAREKESR -
(i)  Other payables and accruals mainly represent security deposit, VAT (i) HiaENFEREFEAZZERIR
payable, selling expense payable and other tax payables of approximately JERTIBET - BNIHEB R R EAMERT
RMB20,866,000, RMB10,208,000, RMB3,786,000 and RMB13,673,000 18 - 5 RI# AR 20,866,000 © AR
(2017: approximately RMB24,741,000, RMB8,530,000, RMB3,678,000 10,208,000 7T + A R % 3,786,000 7T & A
and RMB10,886,000) respectively. R#13,673,000L(ZZ—+L4F : HARE

24,741,0007T + AR%8,530,000T * AR
¥ 3,678,000 7C & AR 10,886,000 7T ) °

24. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings 24. M ESRITEE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

Effective interest rate Maturity RMB’000 RMB’000

BRA®R FHA AR®TT ARBFT

Short-term bank loan — secured Nil (2017: 4.35%) within 1 year

EHRTER - FHER B(CT % :435%) A - 30,000
The interest-bearing bank borrowings are carried at amortised cost. All WERITEETIREHN AR - A%
of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in RMB. All outstanding FiBEEEHUARBE - B REZRR
bank loans were repaid during the year ended 31 December 2018. TEREREZE-_ZE—N\F+_A=1+—

HIEFEEE -
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24. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings (Continued)

25.

For the year ended 31 December 2017

At 31 December 2017, the Group have been pledged buildings
and prepaid lease payments were stated at an aggregate value of
approximately RMB33,159,000 and approximately RMB60,879,000
respectively. And the Group has available utilised banking facilities of
RMB70,000,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2018

At 31 December 2018, the Group have been pledged buildings
and prepaid lease payments were stated at an aggregate value of
approximately RMB31,800,000 and approximately RMB59,309,000
respectively. And the Group has available utilised banking facilities of
RMB100,000,000.

Entrusted Loans from the Immediate Parent
Company

On 5 April 2011, the immediate parent company further agreed
to extent the repayment date of entrusted loan in the amount of
RMB9,000,000 as Neptunus Bio-engineering had undertaken to the
Company that it would not demand repayment of the abovementioned
shareholder’s entrusted loan unless and until: (1) the repayment of
such shareholder’s entrusted loan would not adversely affect the
operations of the Company and/or its business objectives as set out
in the prospectus published by the Company on 29 August 2005 (the
“Prospectus”), and (2) each of the independent nonexecutive directors
was of the opinion that the repayment of such shareholder’s entrusted
loan would not adversely affect the operations of the Company and/
or the implementation of its business objectives as set out in the
Prospectus, and the Company would make an announcement in
respect of the decision of the independent nonexecutive directors
made under (2); and (3) the Company had a positive cash flow and had
retained profits in the relevant financial year.

R BEREEREMEMROBMRAT 201855 131
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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24. M ERITIEE (&)

25.

BE-_Z—+t5+-A=+—HLEE
R-ZE—+HF+-_A=+—8 AEBHY
BREFNEEREMNEERENERERE
2 B4 A B # 33,159,000 7T M 4 A R #
60,879,000 7T ° A& B A] L B) A A9 ERT At
& B AR 70,000,000 7T °

BE-Z—-\F+-A=+—-HLFE
R-ZE—NF+-_A=+—H AEBH
BREFNEENREMNHEEREREEE
HIER - 2RI AL AR 31,800,000 7T K4
AR #59,309,000 7T o A& B A &)Y
BITRVE B AREE 100,000,000 7T ©

HEE&QFERER

N-E——FEMARE BREELEYA
KRR ABEFTEEREELARRS
AEF EESARREE—FEREZT
B R AR % 9,000,000 T EEH - KIE
MEE WEEZREZAEBERETS
HARBZEBR /KA RABR_ZEZTR
FNAZ+NBFIBEZBRER((HBRE
B AEAREZEGBIZEEBKTFTE
QEBUIATESRAEEZRREZR
BERETSHARRZEB R RETH
RERIAMAD A Z K B IZEEKTFF
2 PRAQRERIE N IERITE BRIE
Q)FIfEREELASE : RO)ARARINER
MRFEEHSEEHRSRERRBAT -
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26. Deferred Revenue 26. IRIE U &
Subsidy A Subsidy B Subsidy C Subsidy D Subsidy E Subsidy F - Other subsidy Total
HEIA HhEs HBC #ED EE HEF B Eh

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMIT  ARMTz  ARBTR ARBTR ARRTR ARWIz ARRTn ARBTR

At 1 January 2017 RZZ—t5-A-A 500 167 511 4 2,807 - 868 4893
Amortisation for the year A E& (500) (167) (212 - (401) - - (1,280)
At31 December 2017and A= —+%
1 January 2018 TZA=H-BR
“E-\5-f-B - - 299 40 2,406 - 868 3,613
Additions g - - - - - 300 - 300
Amortisation for the year ~ AEE##H - - - - (4o1) - (868) (1,269

At31December2018  W=F-N\%

+=A=+-B - - 299 40 2,005 300 - 2,644
Deferred revenue refers to the subsidies granted by the Shenzhen R s 18 R Y T BHR B R/ 30OR Y T B R
Bureau of Science and Technology and/or the Shenzhen Bureau BRMHARFETHEZREERRE D
of Finance for assisting the Company in performing research and By o WA TR LARL & E £ i 35
development of medicines products. Income will be recognised to X ME - BERZBNEAEHNIER
match with the research and development expenses incurred; useful life TEACEF o

of property, plant and equipment or when the project is completed.

The directors consider that, except for the subsidies mentioned in note EERE - BRMTE7 K26 FTHUEE SN -
7 and note 26, there were no other forms of government assistance AEETEYEMEXNBTER EE
from which the Group has directly benefited. 1Fa5 -
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27. Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial

(b)

position represents:

r e B AR R A B9 TSR

FEPBMRRRADBIRE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFT
PRC EIT B HFTEH

Provision for the year INFERAE 11,407 10,878

Balance of tax provisions relating BRI FE AR
to prior years TRIRR L 2,342 2,342
13,749 13,220

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised

(b) ERBEEREEEREE

RERE MR K TR B R AT IR

in the consolidated statement of financial position and the (BE)/ BaENEKRSBI REAEER
movements during the year as follows: 2T
Fair value
change of
non-current
assets Others Total
FERBEE
AT EEE Hit et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AR¥T T AR¥T T
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—tF—H—H 18,394 (991) 17,403
Credited to profit or loss FFAEERR (712) (728) (1,440)
At 31 December 2017 and RZZT—t5F
1 January 2018 +=ZA=+—RHAK
—N\§F—HF—H 17,682 (1,719) 15,963
Credited to profit or loss FFAB&ER (768) 196 (572)
At 31 December 2018 R=-Z—N\F
+=A=+—H 16,914 (1,523) 15,391
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27. Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (Continued)

7. FRE BT R A PSR
(lnﬁ)
(b) ERRBELBREERER @ (&)

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF R AREFT
Net deferred tax assets recognised ERERE B ISR R IR A
on the consolidated statement of RERIBEESFE
financial position (1,523) (1,719)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised ERERE ISR R IERE
on the consolidated statement FERIEBEFE
of financial position 16,914 17,682
At 31 December B+=A=+-—H 15,391 15,963

() Deferred tax assets not recognised
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately RMB65,920,000 (2017: approximately
RMB88,638,000) available for offset against future profits that
may be carried forward for five years for PRC EIT purposes. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

() ¥KRBANWEEHBEE
REWMAR  AEENABAHRIES
BH# AR¥ 65,920,000 0( =T —+
F Y ARH#S8S,638,0007T) + AIALA
8 R 20m ) 32 AT 3t AR B 1 TS
%ﬁf@:ﬁﬂz .ﬁiﬁgfﬁﬁﬂi;{/ﬂﬁﬂjum’
AT AR EE B ERRLEHIEEE
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28. Share Capital 28. A
2017 2017
Number of
shares
S 3
Notes BRirEE —E—+F
i3 '000 RMB'000
Registered, issued and fully paid: 3t ~ B#1T &
HRBRT -
Domestic shares of SRAEEAREC.10T
RMBO0.10 each RINERK (i) 1,252,000 125,200
H shares of RMBO.10 each SHREEAREC.I0T
HIHAR (i) 426,000 42,600
1,678,000 167,800
Registered, issued and fully paid: AT ~ BEITR
BRI -
At 1 January and at 31 December  A—A—HK
+-RA=+—H 1,678,000 167,800

ME BN HERE B AR IR EIRA
RS WERRARRGZE LAGRER —
R IARERRHBEARRRIBG TEER
BRISHER]

The owners of domestic shares and H shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote
per share at meetings of the Company. All domestic shares and H
shares rank equally with regard to the Company'’s residual assets.

Notes: B E i ;
RERIREW RN EHZSF

(i) The domestic shares are not currently listed on any stock exchange. (i)

HIREBEZZTTHF
BMAERZ AR

(i) The H shares have been issued and listed on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 5 September 2005.
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29. Reserves

(a)

(b)

(c)

Share premium
Share premium arose from the issue of shares at prices in excess
of their par value less share issue expenses.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve comprises (i) the difference between the total
amount of fair value of shares issued to the immediate holding
company and a fellow subsidiary of the Company and the amount
of the net assets value acquired during the acquisition of Fuzhou
Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (“Neptunus Fuyao”), (ii)
the difference between the total amount of consideration paid
to the immediate parent company and a fellow subsidiary of the
Company and the amount of the net assets value acquired during
the acquisition of Shenzhen Neptunus Changjian Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Neptunus Changjian”), and (iii) the difference
between the total amount of consideration paid from immediate
parent company and a subsidiary of the Company and the
amount of the net assets value disposed during disposal of
Taizhou Neptunus Nano Bio-medical Technology Company
Limited (“Neptunus Nano”).

Statutory reserve fund

The Company is required to allocate at least 10% of its net profit
according to its PRC audited financial statements to the statutory
eserve fund until the balance of such reserve has reached 50% of
the Company’s issued share capital. Any further appropriation is
optional. The statutory reserve fund shall only be used for making
up losses or for capitalisation into share capital, provided that the
remaining balance is not less than 20% of the issued share capital
after such capitalisation.

29. 1B

(a)

(b)

()

R4 E
BEHTZBROHELENROEEBH
HE(EMRERNDETER -

=N
BEXRRBEREORARRERERA
AR — R M E AR ETH RO
NP EAERKWBRNE TRERE
BRAR(EBEREDRKEREEE
FEZENER (VXN TFARFRE
BEARR—FERRMERRNKE
HERENBRIIEERREBEBRELR
A(IEEREDMKBEEFENS
BzEMEE R(NAXFEBER
ARARE-EHEARENRER
BELEFMNEERREYBEBRIE
BERAR([BEMNK]BEHEEE
FHE 2 T H) SRR o

EEAES

RARBEDEEBIER R EEZ
BRENGEANI0%DEEAEAERTE
T HEZREEHBEINARATD R
TRRZANEI50% ALk o AD R AIRIE(E
HAERZEIMNER - EEAEESRATA
REREE  KERNMEARAE -
HETLORETEBEARLENHD R
1TIRA20% ©
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29. Reserves (Continued)
(d) Distributability of reserves

(e)

At 31 December 2018, the Company had no distributable
reserves, while its accumulated losses, calculated in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association and relevant rules and
regulations, amounted to approximately RMB98,440,000 (2017:
approximately RMB102,047,000).

Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it
can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an
adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net
debt is defined as total debt (which includes interest-bearing
bank borrowings and entrusted loans from the immediate parent
company) plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash and cash
equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity
less unaccrued proposed dividends plus adjusted net debt.
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29. f#&fE (1)
(d) BEZTHRME

(e)

RZE—NF+_A=+—8 &2
R E RIS IR FEE - MIEA AR
BERMAIREEETE RAFE
HZEEE L AR 98,440,000
(ZZ—+tF : HHAR¥ 102,047,000
JL) °
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29. f#fE (&)
(e) BAEE (#H)
RZE—N\F - 25 B EE A 5 0K 6
ZE—+FER ARBELRARER
ER30%E70% 2 - BERFELRE
B R REEJESHERN TR

29. Reserves (Continued)
(e) Capital Management (Continued)
During 2018, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from
2017, was to maintain a gearing ratio within 30% to 70%. In
order to maintain the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital

to shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce
debt. The gearing ratio at 31 December 2018 and 2017 was as

ROBRB SR BITHRD - ARR
BOEEAR - EHHOERRERHE

follows: BENABLEE RZZE—N\FEk=
T—t+tHF+-A=t+—HHNELXEE
&
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tfF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
b AR¥TT AREETFTT
Total borrowings BEHRH
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ERITEE 24 = 30,000
Entrusted loans from the immediate HEBEARERER
parent company 25 9,000 9,000
9,000 39,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents WIRERIRESEEYD 22 (323,577) (350,724)
Adjusted net surplus TR RBSRTEE (314,577) (311,724)
Total equity e RE 798,832 749,768
Gearing ratio BERAELE N/A N/A
TEH N3 A

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the gearing ratio of the
Group was nil. Except for a subsidiary of the Group which is
subject to externally imposed capital requirements under lending
arrangements in interest-bearing bank borrowings as disclosed in
note 24, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.
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30. Contingent Liability 30. REE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no significant RERPR  AEEWEERNLAEE -

31.

contingent liability.

Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising From 3. EXEEREER BB 2HIR
Financing Activities
The changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing activities AEEELAMETHCABES A DE
can be classified as follows: UM
At 1 January 2018 RZZE-NF-H—H
Cash-flows: RERE:
— Repayment — BN
- Proceeds —FTi85A
At 31 December 2018 R-Z-N\F+=-A=+—-H
At 1 January 2017 R-E—+F—-A—H 100,000 100,000
Cash-flows: RERE:
— Repayment —E; (150,000) (150,000)
— Proceeds —FisIa 80,000 80,000
At 31 December 2017 RZB—tF+=A=t+—H 30,000 30,000

7?@”%‘7‘;55“ 3

e
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32. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include, cash and cash
equivalents, interest-bearing bank borrowings, trade and other
receivables and trade and other payables, and entrusted loans from
the immediate parent company. The Group have exposure to the credit
risk, liquidity risk and currency risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

32.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2. B ERERE R BRRBEK

AEENIZSRTIARE He kB
SEY WERITEE  BREREREM
FEURIE - BRI R H b B FIE R E
BEARERER AEEAXEEER
g RBECEBEREEERR - RIEZE
RO mEERHI T - EREEEREE
ZERE - BRERREBRIGEE N
izl

N1 eMEERBEZER
REWMPR  SESHRTENERARE
Ul

2018 2017
—B-N\F —FtF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost REHENAGTENERHEE
Trade receivables and bills receivable G N ES 189,324 172,696
Financial assets included in other receivables &t AEfbEWRIEN S BEE 18,829 18,389
Cash and cash equivalents HERIRESZEY 323,577 350,724
531,730 541,809
Financial liabilities -y =R
Financial liabilities measured RN ENEREE
at amortised cost
Trade and bills payables FERTBR R FE SR 4R 46,193 70,718
Financial liabilities included in other payables &+ AEMER KBNS RE E 69,675 81,629
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ERITEE = 30,000
Entrusted loans from immediate parent BB ARIEER
company 9,000 9,000
124,868 191,347
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32. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 2. R EEBEERBE (&)
Policies (Continued)

32.2 Credit risk 322 EERMR

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral,
where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial
loss from defaults.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash
and cash equivalents is limited because the counterparties are
the major banks in the PRC with established credit ratings, for
which the Group considers to have low credit risk. Given the high
credit ratings of the banks, management does not expect any
counterparties to fail to meet its obligations.

Effective on 1 January 2018

In respect of trade and other receivables, in order to minimise risk,
the management has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations of its customers’ financial position and condition
are performed on each and every major customer periodically.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer operates.
The Group does not require collateral in respect of its financial
assets. Debts are usually due within 90 days from the date of
billing.

In respect of trade receivables, the Group’s exposure to credit
risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of
each customer. The default risk of the industry and location in
which customers operate also has an influence on credit risk. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group had no significant
concentrations of credit risk for which individual trade or other
receivable’s balance exceeds 10% of the total trade and other
receivables.
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32. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

32.2 Credit risk (Continued)
Effective on 1 January 2018 (Continued)

()

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 30-180 days from the
date of billing. Trade and receivables are written off (i.e
derecoguised) When there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using
a provision matrix. ECL allowance for amounts due from
related parties arising from ordinary course of business (i.e.
trade nature) are to be considered arising from allows 0%-
4% for amounts that are current and within 12 months,
10%-50% for amounts that are between 1 and 3 years
and 100% for amounts that are over 3 years according to
the past due ageing. As the Group's historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group's different customer bases.

2. I EREEBENRBEK (8)
32.2 ERB (&)

RZZB-NF-A—-BEX(A)

(1)

TR
AEENEERBRIESSES
B BRI (3L A A
MAERER) FRE - RIS E
B e A E B AR
AEEYHERESEEARBE
o o

AEBMEMBEERBBETESHE
EEMEFETENEETE -
ZEFHEEREFLIMNEEH
FIBHB S B BTA T BEE
N WEBRFPEEREARPL
EEBIENCERBEEHRNE
® o FEUER S AR ZE B HIEE 30
Z180RANEIH - EUWARF K E
UG FRIB 5 TE HA T B 4 12 UK B0 B il
(B4R IERERR) - AEBMBET
gREFEUEHESMS -

AREEZESHRE2HBHEES
BEZSBAERKERER
BiE - S BEERREER
ATESE REFHPBERELE
(BN 518 )/ eI B E 5 /I8
ZTEBEEEBREE  BHRAR
BaHRRELESEATRI12MEA
NS REEE0%-4% 123
FE S BEE 10%-50% &8
W3FEHSERE100% ° BR
AEBELEEBBERTER
TTRMEN BRI EABAN
BREBREZEEZR  AREREH
BREENEERBE IR AEE
TREFHEBIELE—FED -
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32. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 32. i EREREEEREBER (B)
Policies (Continued)
32.2 Credit risk (Continued) 32.2 FERB: (&)
Effective on 1 January 2018 (Continued) RIEB-—NFE—A—-BEXR(EA)
() Trade receivables (Continued) () EMREEF(E)
The following table provides information about the Group'’s TR -_ZE-NF+ A
exposure to credit rick and ECL for trade receivables as at =+—BERkR=ZZE—/\F—HA—H
31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018 was determined as AEBEHEGEE R O K& E
follows: WIER B TEEE EEIBmER]
Current and Over 1 year
Within but less than Over 3
—E-N\FE 12 months 3 years years
31 December 2018 +=-A=+—H past due past due past due Total
BRIk HEiB1EF
1288 R BILR
BiER 3¢iﬂ§ﬂ BIB3F et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBT T AR®T T AR® T

ECL rate FEHEEEER 0%-4% 10%-50% 100% =
Gross carrying amount 4ARRTEE

— trade receivables — BRI 117,976 1,680 1,909 121,565
Lifetime ECL ZHITE A E &8 39 185 1,909 2,133
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32. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

32. M EREEBEREEK (&)

32.2 Credit risk (Continued) 322 fFEARE)
Effective on 1 January 2018 (Continued) RZE—NEFE—A—BEX(E)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued) () JERE (&)
Current and Over 1 year
within  but less than Over 3
—E-N\F 12 months 3 years years
1 January 2018 —H—H past due past due past due Total
BiR1F
EAR EEDSS
1218 A R Ay EB3Fan st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥T R AR¥TR
ECL rate EHEEREER 0%-4% 10%-50% 100% -
Gross carrying amount AR E
~trade receivables — FRYAR X 118,434 1,404 1,953 121,791
Lifetime ECL 2 EFEEE EIESTE 23 154 1,953 2,130
As set out in note 19, at 31 December 2018, the Group A E19RTE - K =T — )\
had discounted bank acceptance bills approximately F+-A=+—RA FEEZE
RMB69,892,000 (2017:approximately RMB53,036,000). BRBITREEBRBOABARE
69,892,000 T(=F—+%F : HHA
FR# 53,036,000 7T) °
Nonetheless, the Group only accepts bank acceptance R AEEERENTE T ER
bills issued by major banks in the PRC and considers that TROTZBRTELER TR
credit risk associated with such bank acceptance bills to be EHZSRTEALEBRZEER
insignificant. BB o
(i) Financial assets included in other receivables at amortised (i) FFA R M JEU S TE A 4 5 5 AR

cost

Financial assets included in other receivables at amortised
cost include other receivables and amount due from related
parties. The management would make periodic collective
and individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on ageing of the receivable balance,
historical settlement records and past experience as well as
current external information. Other monitoring procedures
are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In these regards, the credit risk of
other receivables are considered to be low.
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32. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 2. KRAREEBEEREE (&)
Policies (Continued)

32.2 Credit risk (Continued)
Effective on 1 January 2018 (Continued)

32.2 ERB (&)
R=ZZB-—NF—A—BEM(E)

(i) Financial assets included in other receivables at amortised (i) B EN I B85 K 5 &
cost (Continued) W E A E ()
Besides, the management is of opinion that there is no AN BEBERA - BYIIRTER
significant increase in credit risk on these other receivables R A% S H M R M RIE 00 (= B R R
since initial recognition as the risk of default is low after ARG - AREEME2.8

considering the factors as set out in note 2.8 and, thus, ECL
recognised is based on 12-month ECL. The ECL rate applied
for the amount due from related parties included in financial
assets included in other receivables as follow.

FEAZERBEBRRRIEKE  H
It BEREREBEEESRR =
EAATEHEEEEFNE - Rem
EE M 2 B b FE YR IE R A FE UL
EHFRBERANBEHREEESE
RO -

(@) amounts due from related parties within the Group — (a) ERAEBERNEESFRIE—
guarantee provided by the ultimate holding company mfi&ﬁ@@ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ Enh=F8
which with strong financial capacity, therefore, the ZRR A EIRMEER - Bt

Group consider the credit risk is mitigated by the Z!S’Eluuﬁ%ﬂ%ﬂffii‘ﬁ,ﬁﬂﬁ
guarantee, and the impact on ECL is considered as EEE - mEHEEEE Y
immaterial. FEWRBEM -

(b) amounts due from related parties outside the Group- (b) FEWAREELASNGE T KIE
ranging from allows 10% for amounts that are — BEAEHRRTT—Z

between 1 and 2 years, 20% for amounts that are
between 2 and 3 years and 100% for amounts that
are over 3 years according to the past due ageing, total
approximately RMB1,007,000.

RFERFIES10% * N ?ﬁﬁ
§£¢maﬁﬁm%&tﬂ
=FEMFRIEAE100% 0 A
#) AR ¥ 1,007,000 7T ©

32.3 Liquidity risk 323 REBESRAR

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management, including the short-term investment
of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to parent company’'s board approval.
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants
to ensure that it maintains sufficient amount of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. The Group
relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of liquid fund. As
at 31 December 2018, the Group has available unutilised banking
facilities RMB100,000,000 (2017: RMB70,000,000) for loan and
issue of bills of details of which are disclosed in note 24 and no
outstanding bank loan as at 31 December 2018.
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32. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Po

licies (Continued)

32.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, interest-bearing bank borrowings
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest
time band regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent
that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount
is derived from the applicable interest rate at the end of each
reporting period.

Interest-bearing bank HeBRE
borrowings Variable rates %
~Neptunus Fuyao ~-HTRE

Entrusted loans from HENAH

immediate parent company  Z3EfER
 Amount due to the immediate  FEftEBRFAT]

ERAAHE
RFHE
EREEATNE

2. AR EEEERBEK (B)

323 RBES AR (&)

TRFANAKEFTESRABNT
BRAWIHA ZXRBEAKEA
EANZNZREHNSRAERR
RARSRERE - ABME - B34
BREREEGFOMBRITEER TG
AREHHEE MARRTETAE
BBITEEERN - HFTESRA
EREIH B TR IR 1% 5 1) E 5K A B4R
o ZRABZIMNERASRER
BE-GENERERIE  BRUBAE
BRNE2|MMRABERFIE -

2017
ZEtF
Weighted Total
arrange Within contractual
effective Tyearor  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate on demand cash flow amount

mER  R-ERE ARAE
ERHE  RERRE  REREEE REE

% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTL  ARETT  ARETR

4.35% 30,000 30,000 30,000
S 9,000 9,000 9,000
= 31,262 31,262 31,262
= 16 16 16
= 121,069 121,069 121,069

191,347 191,347 191,347
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32. Financial Risk Management Obijectives and

Policies (Continued)

32.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)
The amounts included above for interest-bearing bank borrowings
comprised term loans from banks with a requirement on
demand clause. The maturity analysis of the term loans based on
agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements is
summarised as follows. The amounts include interest payments
computed using contractual rates. Taking into account the
Group's financial position, the directors of the Company do
not consider that it is probable that the banks will exercise
their discretion to demand immediate repayment. The directors
of the Company believe that the term loans will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements.

Maturity Analysis — Term loans subject to a repayment on
demand clause based on scheduled repayments

ire BRI &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2. BEREE R RREEK (&)

323 REBELEE (&)
beﬁﬁ%zw,ﬁE%ﬂ%%ﬁ%ﬁ@%W’%
BREREBEGIOBITEHER - &
RE R & FTEl 15 € 5T 818 38 E 5
EXONEBHA MM NT - 252
HEEEE N ES ::E"]ﬂgﬁm/\ o
EERINAEENFBMRR - AR
ERA waT#:T%Eﬁ@EI@@I%%
EREEEE AR RESHEE - %
ETHEFBBEBEERIBZEEE
EITJ\E/HJME\% °

HHBAS-MEREREERRNES
BN (R AEREE)

Total

Within contractual

one year or undiscounted
on demand cash flow Carry amounts

R—FRAH BRRITR
BERERE Remesn AREI{E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT

As at 31 December 2017 RZE—tF

+=-—A=+—H 31,211 31,211 30,000

No outstanding interest-bearing bank borrowings as at 31
December 2018.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those effective interest
rates determined at the end of the reporting period.
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> =+ 23
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-—T—\F+-A=+—BILEE

32. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 32. EREKREEBERECK (8)
Policies (Continued)

32.4 Currency risk 32.4 E¥E
Presently, there is no hedging policy with respect to the foreign B Al - 37 & 5 B ONE B B 6Y ¥ 4 I

exchange exposure. The Group’s functional currency is Renminbi
as substantially all the turnover and expenditure are in Renminbi.
The Group’s transactional foreign exchange exposure was
insignificant.

No sensitivity analysis of currency risk was prepared as the impact
was insignificant.

32.5 Fair values

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables are not materially different
from their carrying amounts because of the immediate or short-
term maturity of these financial instruments. The carrying
amounts of interest-bearing bank borrowings and entrusted
loans from the immediate parent company approximate their fair

T o AR FTA 2 E BN RE 0 A
ARBFE BAEENIEEE S
AREE - AEENRX HINERBREN

HRAFETK  MAUBREEEER

DNFE

ReEMBRESFEY  BURERLEM
FEMCGRIR - FE A5 BR 3 B HL A B A< 5R0R
MR ERAREERS  RESZ
SR T AR SN E AN B H o K
BRUTERLEBRARZEERN
REEEEQFERE - 2 FENLK

XReROBRERBUSBRTAREA
M5 KB FHE -

values. The fair value is estimated as the present value of future
cash flows, discounted at current market interest rates for similar
financial instruments.
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ire B ER R AT &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-\F+_A=+—HILFE

33. Material Related Party Transactions 33.ERBEERIRS
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these consolidated MGARGETBRREMFFRZ XS
financial statements, the Group had the following transactions with Gy REBNAFERN Y EHEEFET N
related parties during the year. HNERR S
(@) During the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group (@) REZE_Z—N\FER_T—+F+=
entered into certain continuing connected transactions. A=+—HLFE AEEFTVAT
SEMER S
(b) The Group had the following significant transactions with related by AEBRAFENZEHEAELTETT
parties during the year: HNEBRRS

HEBSLARETHRELIRS

Related party transactions with the immediate parent

company
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E+F
Name of related parties Relationship Nature of transactions Note RMB'000 RMB'000
BERER B& XHME lif3 ARBT R ARBFT
Neptunus Bio-Engineering Immediate parent Sales of goods (ii) 70 47
company
BEEY BEERRA HERY

RYTBEREEREMEMROBMRAT 201855 149
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-T—\E+-A=+—HItEE

33. Material Related Party Transactions 33.ERBERIRS (&)

(Continued)

(b) The Group had the following significant transactions with related (b)
parties during the year: (Continued)

AEERAEENGEEETETT
FIBRZS « ()

BB ARETHHRERRS

Related party transactions with the intermediate parent

company
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—tF
Name of related parties Relationship Nature of transactions Note RMB’000 RMB'000
HELEB B XENE i ARBT R ARBFT
Shenzhen Neptunus Group Intermediate parent Rental of office (i) 1,075 1,116
Company Limited company HABAE
(“Neptunus Group”) REEATF

AT RERNER A
(IBT&E))

HERAWBARETHHEESRS

Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+fF
Name of related parties Relationship Nature of transactions Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BER A8 B XHME First AR¥TT ARETT
Shenzhen Neptunus Pharmaceutical Fellow subsidiary Purchase of finished goods (ii) 86,396 75,170
Company Limited RIZMBAR BERNm
(“Neptunus Pharmaceutical”) Sales of goods (ii) - 1
ABEEEBR R HEE
([ET#]) Services fee (ii) 15,857 11,215
RIS B A
Hangzhou Neptunus Bio- Fellow subsidiary Purchase of finished goods (ii) 11,028 10,981
engineering Company Limited EEAIEING FEERN M
MMBTENTIRERAR
Shandong Neptunus Yinhe Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 3,585 3472

Pharmaceutical Company Limited

IWRBERABEARAT]

EEGH- NG

HERW
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33. Material Related Party Transactions

(Continued)

(b)

The Group had the following significant transactions with related (b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

parties during the year: (Continued)

Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries

(Continued)

Name of related parties

BEL AR

Relationship

B

=) =+ N
iR e R AT
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT—- \F+-A=+—HILFE

B.EAEEIRS ()

AEBERAFENGRBEETETT
FJIEBRRZ S : (&)

RHERAMBRAAETHNRELIRS
(%)

Shenzhen Neptunus Jiankang
Technology Development
Company Limited

AmETRERRERERAF

Jiamusi Neptunus Pharmaceutical
Company Limited
EAEIRERRAF

Hubei Neptunus Pharmaceutical
Group Company Limited
(previous known as “Hubei
Neptunus Pharmaceutical
Company Limited")

MBI REEEER A
(RITE DB ERERRAR])

Henan Dongsen Pharmaceutical
Company Limited
AERREZERAR

Henan Neptunus Pharmaceutical
Group Limited (previous known
as "Henan Neptunus Yinhe
Pharmaceutical Company Limited”)
AEEEBREEEERNA (A
DA ETRABEAR AR )

Fellow subsidiary

EEGEING

Fellow subsidiary

BRGNS

Fellow subsidiary

RZMBRR

Fellow subsidiary

EEGHING

Fellow subsidiary

EEGH/NG

2017
—E—+tF
Nature of transactions Note RMB'000
RHME fiizx AREFT
Purchase of finished goods (ii) 7,389
BEEMM
Sales of goods (i) 25
HEEN
(Returns of goods)/Sales of goods (i) 442

(HERE)/HEEN

Sales of goods

HEEM

Sales of goods

HERD

Sales of goods

HERD



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BT HRARMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-—2—N\EI-A=t—RBILEE

33. Material Related Party Transactions 3BERBEERIRS (&)
(Continued)
(b) The Group had the following significant transactions with related (b) AEBERAFERNGEMPETHETT
parties during the year: (Continued) NEARS : (&)
Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries HRZMBARETNEELSRS
(Continued) (&)
2017
“Z—tF
Name of related parties Relationship Nature of transactions Note RMB'000
HELER B RHME i3 AREFT
Guangxi Neptunus Yinhe Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 571
Pharmaceutical Company Limited RZNBAR HEEY
ERSTRTREERAT
Heilongjiang Province Neptunus Fellow subsidiary (Returns of goods)/Sales of goods (ii) 353
Pharmaceutical Company Limited EEANEING (BEERR)/HEEY
BETABTIREERAR
Jining Neptunus Huasen Pharmaceutical - Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) -
Company Limited EELENG! HEEY
BESIERBEARAR
Heilongjiang Shukang Neptunus Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) (iv) 1,535
Pharmaceutical Company Limited EESGENG! HEEY
BEDSTNRBEERAR
Henan Neptunus Kangrui Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 406
Pharmaceutical Company Limited EESENG! HEEY
S IRRELARAT
Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 130

EESHEYNS] HER
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33. Material Related Party Transactions

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

(b)

=) =+ N
iR e R AT
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT—- \F+-A=+—HILFE

B.EAEEIRS ()

The Group had the following significant transactions with related

parties during the year: (Continued)

Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries

(Continued)

Name of related parties Relationship

BEL AR I

Nature of transactions

RHMHE

(b) AEERAFEANGEMETHETT
FJIEBRRZ S : (&)

RHERAMBRAAETHNRELIRS
(%)

2017

—T—+F

Note RMB'000
Bitzt ARETT

Shenzhen Neptunus Jiankang Shiye Fellow subsidiary

Company Limited RZMBAT
MmETREEXERAR
Jiangsu Neptunus Jiankang Fellow subsidiary
Bio-technology Co., Ltd. EEREING

TEHEIRFEMHMBARLR

Guangdong Neptunus Longkang Fellow subsidiary

Medical Technology Services EELEVNG
Company Limited
ERETEREERMRBERLA
Sulu Neptunus Pharmaceutical Group  Fellow subsidiary
Company Limited (previsous known — [EZE A ]
as "Zaozhuang Yinhai Pharmaceutical
Company Limited")
HESIRESEERAR
(BT [ RE B REARAR])

Anyang Hengfeng Medicine Co.,Ltd.
L5 ERBEARAT

Fellow subsidiary

EEGYNG

Purchase of finished goods

BERMKm®

Sales of goods
HERY
Purchase of finished goods

BEHN M

Sales of goods

HERD

Sales of goods

HERD

Sales of goods

HERD

RYIHIEE R

1,034

31
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE—T—\EI-_A=t—RBILEE

33. Material Related Party Transactions 3BERBEERIRS (&)
(Continued)
(b) The Group had the following significant transactions with related (b) AEBERAFERNGEPETHETT
parties during the year: (Continued) NEARS : (&)
Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries HRZMBARETNEELSRS
(Continued) (&)

2017
—E—+fF
Name of related parties Relationship Nature of transactions Note RMB’000
HERAB [ LES RHHE i3 ARBFT
Shenzhen Quanyaowang Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 2,860
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. EES VA HEEM
T2 EREXERAA
Changsha Neptunus Pharmaceutical Fellow Subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 58
Company Limited RIZMBAR HEEY
Y BTBEBRNA
Guangxi Guilin Medicine Co., Ltd. Fellow Subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 21
ERENSTERERAR EESENG HERY
Heze Neptunus Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 82
HERTREERNAA EESENG HEEY
Zhoukou Renhe Pharmaceutical Fellow Subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) -
Company Limited RZKBAR HEEM
FRmCMEETRAR

I:_Sichuan Neptunus Jinren Pharmaceutical Fellow Subsidiary Sales of goods (ii)

FZHBAT HERD

Fellow Subsidiary Sales of goods (ii)
EEENG! HEEW




33. Material Related Party Transactions

(Continued)

(b)

The Group had the following significant transactions with related (b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

parties during the year: (Continued)

Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries

(Continued)

Name of related parties

BEL AR

Relationship

B

=) =+ an

iR e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=+—HILFE

BEAXEEIRS ()

AEERAFENGRBEETETT
FIEBRRZ S« (&)

REAMBRAAETHNRELIXRS
()

Henan Dejitang Pharmaceutical
Company Limited
EEEEREERAT

Henan Neptunus Yinhe
Pharmaceutical Company Limited

AEETRIBEERAR

Neptunus (Zhanjiang) Pharmaceutical
Company Limited
BECEL)BEBRAR

Neptunus (Shaoguan) Pharmaceutical
Company Limited
BT (M) BEBRAR

Jilin Neptunus Jiankang
Bio-technology Company Limited
EMEEREAMNEARAR

Nanning Neptunus Jiankang
Bio-technology Company Limited

BESIRREMNEERLR

Fellow Subsidiary
RZMBERE

Fellow Subsidiary
RZMBENE

Fellow Subsidiary
RZMBAE

Fellow Subsidiary
EEENG

Fellow Subsidiary
FEENG

Fellow Subsidiary
FEEG

2017
—T—+F
Nature of transactions Note RMB'000
REMHE Fiask AREFT
Sales of goods (ii)
HERY

Sales of goods (ii)
HEEY

Sales of goods (ii)
HEEY

Sales of goods (ii)
HEEY

Sales of goods (i)
HERY

Purchase of finished goods (ii)
BEEMK M

Sales of goods (ii)
HEEY

Purchase of finished goods

BERKE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

33. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

(b) The Group had the following significant transactions with related
parties during the year: (Continued)

Related party transactions with related companies

33. Ejtﬁﬁ 7‘3_3&% (n\a

(b) AEBRAFEANGEEETETT
FIBRZS « ()

EREARETHNREIRS

2018 2017

—E-N\F “EtF

Name of related parties Relationship Nature of transactions Note RMB'000 RMB'000

BER A8 B XHME i AR¥ETT ARBTT

Shenzhen Nepstar Pharmaceutical Related company Sales of goods (ii) 11,831 18,085
Company Limited NG HEEY

("Nepstar Pharmaceutical”) Marketing fee (iii) - 282
AMITETERBERRAR ZHER

[ERBE])

Jiangsu Nepstar Pharmaceutical Related company Sales of goods (ii) 6,928 -

Company Limited BERT HEEY

THSTERBEBRAR
Notes:

(i) Neptunus Group leased office premises to the Group, the rental of
office premises was charged at pre-agreed rates with reference to
market rates.

(i) The purchases, sales and services income received were transacted in
the normal course of business on the same terms as those charged
to and contracted with other third party suppliers and customers
respectively.

(iii)  The marketing fees were based on pre-agreed rates with reference
to the volume of purchase of goods from the Group.

(iv) The Company was no longer the related company of the Group
since 23 April 2018.

GEE

(i) BEEEOREELERSZWE
WMAEYEBRSTRIET IS ERIZE
SREEBUKER -

(iy BHRIWEBE  HEMRBERAT
—REBBED  REHEME=T
PLRE ™ I 5 P AT AT L A0 YER B 7T #4948

R IRFETT

(i) EHEBMDHE2ZERAAEENER
REBEZ - WANHENERFE -

(v) ZRARA=T )\EP_T]H T=Hi
TERAKERE
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33. Material Related Party Transactions

(Continued)

() Financing arrangements

Entrusted loans from the
immediate parent company

Details of the terms and conditions of the entrusted loans from
the immediate parent company are disclosed in note 25.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=] =+ A
iR e R AT
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT—- \F+-A=+—HILFE

B.EAEEIRS ()
© BEZH

Amounts due to
related parties

EARERRE
2017
—T—tF
RMB'000
ARBTT
HERRRER
3k 9,000

EBES AR REERNGER RGN Z
FHBRMIRE 25 IR EE -

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties (d)y MRBEENBESEH

Amounts due to
related parties
as at 31 December
Rt=A=t-H
EREELE

Amounts due from
related parties
as at 31 December
Rt=A=t+-H
W& SR8

2017 2017

“T—tF “TtF

RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT

Entrusted loans from the
immediate parent company

Amount due to the immediate
parent company

Amount due from intermediate
parent company

BEBRAZREEN
ENEBERRFE

il Gl S YNGE e

7%mmﬁ§If+\

e
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iR e Rk I T
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT— ) \F+-A=+—HItFE

33. Material Related Party Transactions

(Continued)

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued)

Amounts due from
related parties
as at 31 December
R+=A=+-AR
FEWBIE SRR

Amount due from/to fellow

subsidiaries:

Neptunus Pharmaceutical

Shenzhen Neptunus Jiankang
Technology Development
Company Limited

Shandong Neptunus Yinhe
Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Henan Dongsen Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

Hangzhou Neptunus Bio-engineering
Company Limited

Anhui Neptunus Yinhe Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

Henan Neptunus Baiyue Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

Jiamusi Neptunus Pharmaceutical
Company Limited
i Neptunus Deming Pharmaceutical
Limited
aceutical Group
ious known
ical

l-'
,qTECHI*IQUE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

o4 AN
MBS :
BERE

RITEERERR
FRAERAA

WREERTBE
BRAF
ARRREE
BRARA
mMETEN IR
BRAF
ZEEBTRIEE
BRAR
e
ZERAA
2R
BRAR
iR
BRAR
WIEEBEEE
BRAR
(7178 Didti8 X
BEARRA)
AEETRE
SEBRATF

.

33.EXBAESRS ()

(d) HARBENBES & (E)

Amounts due to
related parties
as at 31 December

RT=A=t+-8
A BES R
2017 2017
e e
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
- 27,370
- 2,348
9% -
235 -
- 1,403
= 5
15 -
70 -
20 -
6 -
12 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT—- \F+-A=+—HILFE

33. Material Related Party Transactions 3BEREERIRS (E)
(Continued)
(d) Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued) (d) MARBEMEELEHS(E)
Amounts due from Amounts due to
related parties related parties
as at 31 December as at 31 December
Rt=A=t-H Rt=A=t-8H
W EE S FE ERBESTE
2017 2017
“TtF T—+F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT
Amount due from/to fellow B/ R %
subsidiaries: (Continued) MBARFE : (&)
Heilongjiang Province Neptunus BEIAETEE
Pharmaceutical Company Limited BRAR
Guangxi Neptunus Yinhe Pharmaceutical & 5)8 T 48 i 582
Company Limited BRAR

Sulu Neptunus Pharmaceutical Group &/ TREEE
Company Limited (previous known BRAR (ATFE [ R
as "Zaozhuang Yinhai Pharmaceutical  $EE2EARAF )
Company Limited”)

Shenzhen Quanyaowang Pharmaceutical 3| & Be4g &E 2
Company Limited BRAR
Jiangsu Neptunus Jiankang TEBTREEY

Bio-technology Company Limited REARAT
Anyang Hengfeng Pharmaceutical ZHEEEBEERAF

Company Limited

Henan Neptunus Kangrui R T RIn g
Pharmaceutical Company Limited ARAR

Changsha Neptunus Pharmaceutical R8T REEB AT
Company Limited

Neptunus Baicaotang Pharmaceutical /BT BEE &
Company Limited BRAR

Neptunus Jianchang (Beijing) Medical ST E (Jt2) B&
Devices Company Limited wERARAR

Jilin Neptunus Jiankang EWETRE
Bio-technology Company Limited EMRBEBR AT

Shenzhen Neptunus Property R TMEEE

Management Company Limited BRAH
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iR e R R R I T
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\F+A=+—AILEE

33. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)
(d) Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued)

Amount due from/to fellow e,/ e A%
WEARZE : (&)

RIMEILEER

subsidiaries: (Continued)
Shenzhen Neptunus Shenyu

Shiye Company Limited BRAR
Sichuan Neptunus Jinren mIETe B
Medical Group Company Limited SEERAR
Qingdao Neptunus Yinhe BEERTIRIEE

Medical Company Limited BRAA
Neimenggu Neptunus Medical REENEED-
Company Limited BRAR

Henan Neptunus Yinhe Medical Company 7 & T #7752 4
BRAREEDI AT

Limited Jiaozuo Branch

Daging Neptunus Zhongkang AEBERREE
Pharmaceutical Company Limited BRAR
Shenzhen Hongyang Property MM EGNEER
' Management Company Limited BRAR
Huizhou Neptunus Hongyu BB BEEE
Pharmaceutical Company Limited BRAE
anjiang) BE(ET)BE
ompany Limited BRAR
inhe Pharmaceutical |LIER;EF 7% %
i Branch BRARGRTHAH
BT AR
ARAR

MEEE AR
| AIEMED AT

=

33.ERBAESRS (18)

(d) mABENRES &% (E)

Amounts due from
related parties
as at 31 December

Amounts due to
related parties
as at 31 December

mt=A=t-H RMt=A=t-H
EREELHE ENBELHE
2017 2017
“TtF —FtF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTTL ARBTT
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=+—HILFE

33. Material Related Party Transactions BEREERRS (E)
(Continued)
(d) Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued) (d) WMARBENESE#H(E)
Amounts due from Amounts due to
related parties related parties
as at 31 December as at 31 December
R+=A=t-H R+=A=+-H
FEWBIE SRR ENBERRE
2017 2017
e 3 —EtF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Amount due from/to fellow BN,/ R Z
subsidiaries: (Continued) MEARE : (&)
Shantou Yuankang Medical SSET T R B B
Company Limited BARAF = -
Zhoukou Renhe Pharmaceutical BOmi-mEEE
Company Limited BRAR = -
Shenzhen Neptunus Medical Technology 3115 F BB &R T
Research Company Limited RABERAR = -
Shenzhen Neptunus Jiankang Shiye FITETREEE
Company Limited ARAA = 70
Yichang Neptunus Yinhe Pharmaceutical HE/EF $iTE %
Company Limited BRAR 5 -
1,897 31,262
Amounts due from/to related Bl R EEAT
companies: A
Nepstar Pharmaceutical ERELE
Jilin Neptunus Jiankang Bio-technology ~ EMETEEAY
Company Limited BBAERAR
Shenzhen Hongyang Property TG YEERE
Management Company Limited BRAR
Nanning Neptunus Jiankang BESTRREY
Bio-technology Company Limited MBAERAR
Jiangsu Nepstar Pharmaceutical THETERBE

Company Limited BRAR
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iR e R Rk I T
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-2—\F+A=+—AILEE

33. Material Related Party Transactions

(Continued)

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued)

such Chinese name.

(e) Reconciliation of the Group’s amounts due from/to related parties

nature and non-trade nature, consisted of the following:

Trade nature
Amount due from/to fellow subsidiaries

Amount due from/to related companies

Non-trade nature
rusted loan from the immediate

BB EREEIRS (1B)

(d) MARBEMEESEHS(E)

Details of the terms and conditions of the entrusted loans and HEEORAESXEREMEERE

financial assistance from the immediate parent company are RG22 FHIB BRI FE25 K& 33(b)

disclosed in notes 25 and 33(b)(i). The balances with these related (Ve HEAERRINGEHRAEEWT - £

companies are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. BRBRENREE -

*  The English transliteration of the Chinese name in this consolidated * EEAENERT  AEEHMBHREAR
financial statements, where indicated, is included for information R ZTEEE B EEAREER 2
purpose only, and should not be regarded as the English name of A TREFEZRIXEBZEXS

B o
(e) AEBREBKATBREELE BRESH
arising from the ordinary course of business which are trade in MEREESEE B ENEE
FHRIEHREE NEIE
Amounts due from Amounts due to
related parties related parties
as at 31 December as at 31 December
Rt=A=1-A Rt=B=1-A
EhBERE EfBERE
2017 2017
“E-tF ZEtF
RMB000 RMB‘000
AREFT ARETT
Note (b) Note (o)
(o) i)
B5ME
B/ ENRZNBARE 1897 31,2600
e/ ERBEARE 13,153 16
15,050 31,278
*EA1E
ERSARZERER i 9,000
AN SN & -
i Gl SN 138 -
Bl /R ZIHB AR a -
ERBERAZE Rl -
168 9,000
15218 40,278
G BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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33. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

Note:

(a

(b)

The ageing analysis of amounts due from related parties arising from
the ordinary course of business which are trade in nature and based
on invoice date is as follows:

=] =+ NN
iR e Rk M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT—- \G+-A=+—HILFE

B.EAXHEEIRS ()

ff

w

(@) REBEBBETELBEZILER
HA %R A HI0 fE U BE & 5 FOERR B
DT

2017
—T—tF
RMB'000
ARETT

Within 3 months 3EAR
More than 3 months but less than 12 months  #23&31& A8 51218 A
Over 12 months BiB121EA

The ageing analysis of amounts due to related parties arising from
the ordinary course of business which are trade in nature and based
on invoice date is as follows:

10,168
4,794
88

15,050

(by MAEREBARIELBZIUER
ERHEZANENERES RBREK
DT -

2017
—T—+F
RMB’'000
AREEF T

Within 3 months 3@ AR
More than 3 months but less than 12 months #3831 A 18 5 218 A
Over 12 months BiB121EA

75'&ﬂllﬁ‘i°fI T

31,247
31

31,278
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \E+-_A=+—HILFE

33. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

(f)  Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in
note 10 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in
note 11, are as follows:

33.EXBAESRS ()

) EFEEBEAEWS
AEEFIBEREEBAEMSBELM
FARAREEZNSE(RHF 10
BRI TFETESFNEENSE
(REIFE 1T REE) T -

2018 2017

S G —E—tF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARETF T ARBFT

Short-term employee benefits BT 3,275 3,079
Post-employment benefits RORE R 182 140
3,457 3,219

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 8(b)).

Two of the key management personnel remuneration (short-
term employee benefits: approximately RMB570,000 and post-
employment benefits: approximately RMB31,000) were not
included in the above notes since they were not the individuals
with the highest emoluments disclosed in note 11.

(9) The related party transactions in respect of (b) and (c) above
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The disclosures required under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules are provided in the Report of the Directors.
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HEREBRENTEITRA ] (R
8(b)) A °

MTZEREAEMNE EHEER
M - KIAREES70,000 7T FARRAER) -
#WAER¥31,0007) R BHEFE LAl
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34. Commitments

(@) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2018

e R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

34. i&E
(@ UWFTRZZE-—N\F+=-_A=+—80=%

authorised and not provided for in the consolidated financial BB NREW RN R E B #RE
statements were as follows: PEH R -
2018 2017
—E-N\#F I
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBEFT
Property, plant and equipment M- BERREE
Contracted for, but not provided for: BRI 4B AR -
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB K 3,356 430
(b) At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease payments by RZZFE—NF+ZA=+—H " RBE

under non-cancellable operating lease are payable as follows:

AR HRIE 2 TH A R R R &R AR B

MEWT -
2018 2017
—B-N\E Tt
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARETFT
Within 1 year R—FR 1,932 1,611
After 1 year but within 5 years —FHRERAFA 4,502 2,431
6,434 4,042

The Group as lessee leases office premises under operating leases
arrangements. Leases for the office premises are negotiated for
one to five years term (2017: one to four years). None of the
leases includes contingent rental.

AEERBECERETHBRE TH
RNE #ﬂ#’“ﬁﬁﬁﬁ(ﬁiﬁiﬁﬂi«ﬁ%?ﬁﬁﬁ
EHENTEEHAEE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e B ERR M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\F+A=+—AILEE

35. Statement of financial position of the Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

at the end of the reporting period includes:

35. "D B M AR R &
BERAATIR 2 MBARGIM R NENE
KT

2017
—E—+F
RMB’000
AREFTT
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment L EN 3,490
Investments in subsidiaries (note b) BRI E (FiiEb) 465,520
Deferred tax assets RIEFL IR E B 189
Value-added tax recoverable ALK [ E R 462
Loan receivable from subsidiaries REWB AR ZEWER -
460,661
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables UL BR 3k K2 H Ath FE U Zh I8 94,199
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRSEEY 86,297
180,496
Current liabilities i =R i
Trade and other payables FETRR R R oAt JE A< 7R IE 5,548
Entrusted loans from the immediate HEODARNERLMER
parent company 9,000
Current taxation BNEATSIE 2,342
16,890
rent assets REBEERE 163,606
REERABEE 624,267
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=) =+ an

iR e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=+—HILFE

35. Statement of financial position of the Company 35. AA BB BRI R (8)
(Continued)

2017
—E—tF
RMB’000
ARBEFT
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred revenue FAEW 340
340
Net assets FEE 623,927
Equity Ex
Equity attributable to AAREE AEGEER
owners of the Company
Share capital R 167,800
Reserves (Note a) ffEH (Fizta) 456,127
Total equity ERBE 623,927
Note a: Mizta :
Movements in equity of the Company for the year were: RRRRAFEREREFOT ¢
Share Statutory Accumulated
premium reserve fund losses Total
IR 1E EELES RitEE st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2017 R—ZE—+tF—A—H 554,844 3,330 (118,876) 439,298
Profit for the year and total FREMNRFA -
comprehensive income for the year 2 E A% 16,829 16,829
At 31 December 2017 and R-Z—+F+=-A
1 January 2018 =+-RER-ZT-N\F
—A—H
Profit for the year and total ENHMREAZE
comprehensive income for the year U5 4848
At 31 December 2018 R-EB-N\F

+=A=+-H




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
= + 23

T E B TSR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-—T—\F+-A=+—BILEE

35. AR AR R ()

35. Statement of financial position of the Company

(“Neptunus Changjian”)**
AETREBEERAR
(DeEREN*
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(Continued)
Note b: MizEb :
The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2018: UNTTER-_ZE—N\F+_A=1+—"HFEZE
MEBAREE :
Proportion of ownership interest
BERERLA
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation Class of authorised/issued effective Held by Held by
Name of subsidiary and operation  shares held and paid up capital interest the Company  subsidiaries  Principal activity
MR EE/BRf KEEH KAH i |

NAER EEBY BERHER RAZRAFE ERER B8 NARE  TEEHR

Ascendent Bio-Technology Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% - Dormant
Company Limited h Bl 187 EmEx

VSR ENHEERAR

Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao PRC Registered RMB30,000,000 80% 80% - Production and sales
Pharmaceutical Company HE it AKH30,000,000 T of medicine
Limited (“Neptunus Fuyao”)** EEREEEY

RNETRERERRAR ([BTRE])

Fuzhou Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 76% - 95%  Production and sales
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd HE FEf AR 10,000,000 T of medicine
(“Neptunus Jinxiang")** EEREEEY

BMEILETEREERAT
(NExez)*

Fuzhou Fuyao Medical Co., Ltd PRC Registered RMB30,000,000 79.6% - 100%  Production and sales
(“Fuzhou Fuyao")*# HE Bl AR30,000,0007 of medicine

RNEEREERAR ((BMEE]) EERBEEY

Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical PRC Registered RMB50,000,000 79.8% - Production of medicine
(Lianjiang) Co., Ltd (“Neptunus q: FEHTT ARH50,000,0007 EERY
Fuyao Lianjiang”)** (Note i)

BIRENE(ET)ERAT
(DEERERL) (M)

Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese PRC Registered RMB31,000,000 76.2% - Production of medicine
Pharmaceutical (Lianjiang) Company # Rl AEH31,000,0007C EEE)

Limited (“Neptunus Jinxiang
Lianjiang")* (Note ii)

BEERNERE(EL)ERAR
(DEESRET)* (MsEi)

Shenzhen Neptunus Changjian PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 100% 100% Sales and distribution of
Pharmaceutical Company Limited H i AR%10,000,0007C medicines and healthcare

products
HERD HERRRER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. Statement of financial position of the Company

(Continued)
Note b: (Continued)

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2018:
(Continued)

*

These companies are registered under the laws of the PRC as limited
liability companies.

Neptunus Fuyao has controlling interests in Neptunus lJinxiang,
Fuzhou Fuyao, Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang and Neptunus Jinxiang
Lianjiang (“Neptunus Fuyao Group”).

Notes:

@

(i)

On 15 August 2011, the board of directors of the Company resolved
to increase the registered capital of Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang from
RMB50,000,000 to RMB112,000,000 of which RMB106,400,000
and RMBS5,600,000 will be contributed by Neptunus Fuyao and
Neptunus Jinxiang, respectively. Up to the date of consolidated
financial statements, the formalities for the increase of registered
capital has not yet started.

On 24 June 2011, Neptunus Jinxiang Lianjing was formed with a
registered capital of RMB50,000,000 of which RMB10,000,000 was
paid up during the year ended 31 December 2011. Additional capital
of RMB21,000,000 was paid up on 17 April 2012. The remaining
registered capital of RMB18,050,000 and RMB950,000 will be
contributed by Neptunus Jinxiang and Neptunus Fuyao respectively.
Up to the date of consolidated financial statements, the formalities
for the increase of registered capital has not yet started.

ire B ER R AT &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE_Z-\F+_A=+—HILFE

35. "D A B AR R 3R (48)

BiED  (8)

LTARZZ—\F+A=+—HAxZ
HEBAREE - (&)

* RERARRBTFEERELRBERE
(BN

#  BEIRBEWEIDR ZEJH?E??%“}
FTRESINETSREI(EER
BEH )%ﬁ&ﬂx*&ﬁm

FaE

)y MZE——FNA+HERHB AR
§$ /}&u&H#/iEEZ_giL/Imuiﬂﬁ
& 7R | A R ¥ 50,000,000 7T 1 41 &=
AR#112,000,0007C * £ AR
106,400, 0007T & A R ¥5,600,000
ﬁ/\%lJEE/iE%E%Z&/iI%%&

é BEFAMBRERAE  BINE
T 7S B 3 48 1 R 2R o
(i) RZT——FXA-F+HERB-BE

SREBEIRY  ZRELXBARYE
50,000,000t EHF R B E=FT
——F+-A=+—HILFEARE
10,000,000 7CE & 1 « BINERAR
#21,000,000 CER =T —=F
A+tBXZf - B TEMERARKE
18 050,000 7t & A K% 950,000 7T 1%

PSRRI RREBTRELE - H

ZHRAEUBHRERAE  EINERER
K)F B AR PR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BT HRARMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-—2—N\EI-A=t—RBILEE

35. Statement of financial position of the Company 35. R A RIEA BRI R ()

(Continued)
Note b: (Continued) Wb« (48)
Notes: (Continued) PisE : (8)
The following table lists out the information relating to the Neptunus TRIRABEEERIEERER ([ FEER
Fuyao Group which has material non-controlling interest (“NCI"). The R DHNEBIREESENER - TR
summarised financial information presented below represents the amounts FHERBEN T AT ET S
before any inter-company elimination. o
2017
—T—tF
RMB’000
AR¥ETTT
NCI percentage EERERA DL 20%
Current assets MEVEE 443,538
Non-current assets FERBEE 293,224
Current liabilities nEBE (247,772)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (20,554)
Net assets BEFE 468,436
Carrying amount of NCI FEPE R AR O AR (B 93,687
Revenue KA 462,379
Profit for the year REE A 23,981
Total comprehensive income 2HENELERE 23,981
Profit allocated to NCI BT FEE AR A = A0 T 4,796
Dividend paid to NCI ST IR E RO E 5,200
Cash flows used in from operating activities KEEBFTRR &N (13,939)
Cash flows (used in)/generated WEEE (TR) /FEREESR
from investing activities 50,798
Cash flows generated from/(used in) mEEBEE (R RER
financing activities (101,389)




Five Year Financial Summary

Fak:

SIS

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\F —F TR F —h4F —Phe
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
RESULTS ¥E&
Revenue N 867,123 790,286 759,111 721,346 648,268
Cost of sales SHERA (364,908) (365,255) (371,905) (368,586) (371,534)
Gross profit E7 502,215 425,031 387,206 352,760 276,734
Other revenue Hiplg A 11,731 8,915 9,102 8,724 10,345
Other net income HpAF=A 1,647 853 3,674 3,730 77
Selling and distribution costs THE R X (349,026) (262,777) (225,786) (199,412) (116,682)
Administrative expenses THFEX (55,916) (51,523) (50,441) (58,630) (53,152)
Other operating expenses Hifsem= (41,220) (46,942) (29,200) (50,537) (45,863)
Profit from operations Fed =iyl 69,431 73,557 94,555 56,635 71,459
Finance costs B%ER (1,787) (3,229) (3,886) (10,361) (11,078)
Profit before taxation BRBLATER 67,644 70,328 90,669 46,274 60,381
Income tax expense Frgmx (16,580) (14,899) (17,852) (14,796) (15,934)
Profit for the year REERA 51,064 55,429 72,817 31,478 44,447
Attributable to owners of AAREEAEN
the Company 48,089 50,257 62,692 21,055 33,174
Non-controlling interests FEE R RS 2,975 5,172 10,125 10,423 11,273
51,064 55,429 72,817 31,478 44,447
Assets and liabilities BEHEE
Total assets BEE 986,096 1,000,232 1,033,614 1,113,166 1,011,664
Total liabilities BmafmE (187,264) (250,464) (334,075) (481,244) (411,613)
798,832 749,768 699,539 631,922 600,051
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Group Property
3L EIIES

PROPERTY IN PRC

Gross Group's
Location Intended use Site area floor area interest
o3k Jizk:S THEE BEEE FEls Rz
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FFK) (FF75K) Bat
Kuigi Village, Industrial 166,109.5 58,434.74 80
Gushan Town,
Jin"an District
Fuzhou City
Fujian Province
The PRC
A BN I%® 166,109.5 58,434.74 80

B 7R LRI A
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